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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MEBERERBREREBER

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS MERE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
Bz HE
—EmE —E =4
t=A=+—-B +=ZA=+—H
IEFEE HFE
RMB million RMB million
ARBBHET AREBETT
Gross revenue Falvge=gul 846.2 976.7
Revenue Wz 357.5 363.8
EBITDA i BT B K 85 A1 A (53.1) (34.3)

Adjusted EBITDA ®@ AR BT E ME A
FEe @ 20.2 (6.6)
EBIT (Loss from operations) HMERFE (K2 FEE) (252.6) (233.0)
Adjusted EBIT @@ KRHEREAFEO@ (194.1) (204.0)

Loss attributable to equity shareholders 7/ 7] IR fE (5 518

of the Company (538.1) (453.3)
Basic loss per share SR E K EIE (46.8) cents 7 (38.9) cents 7

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MBRRERBAEXEER

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (continued) BEEE &)
At At
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
R-Z-MF R-ZZB_=%F
+=BA=+—-H +ZA=+—H
RMB million RMB million
AREBEER ARBBET
Net assets of the Group rEEEEFE 511.6 948.6
NAV per ordinary share © FREBREEFES 0.45 yuan T 0.83 yuan 7T

Notes:

(M Gross revenue represents the gross amount arising from the (1) HBRFEHED FAZERRF 2B

sales of goods, concession sales charged to retail customers,
gross rental income and management and administrative
service fee income charged to tenants.

AEEHE GHES WA REEF K
B2 EERITHRIRGGERAZ 5 -
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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MEBERERBREREBER

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

MERE (&)
Bzt (4)

) Adjusted EBIT is calculated as below: (2) EFAEEBITHETEMT
2024 2023
—E-_ME T
RMB million RMB million
ARBEER AREBETT
Revenue Wz 357.5 363.8
Other income HEa g A 1.0 6.7
Changes in inventories of finished goods &k 17 & & &) (152.5) (168.8)
Sales and other taxes and surcharges SHEE M B AT IR R M a0 E (10.5) (19.2)
Staff costs 8 T A (65.9) (84.4)
Depreciation expenses WEMRX (214.3) (197.4)
Utilities expenses NHEEEMRAE (36.9) (33.1)
Advertisement expenses EERX (11.9) 9.1)
Reversal of provision B FE R E 51.3 60.7
Expected credit losses on trade and other & Ui B 2k & £ 4 g U 5k 78 27
receivables ZEEE (58.2) (58.4)
Impairment losses on prepayments for W ¥ETEN B 2 RE
acquisition of properties E5ia (57.1) (35.7)
Other operating expenses HEMgafz (55.3) (58.2)
EBIT (Loss from operations) BERFE (KEEHB) (252.6) (233.0)
Adjust: Other income AR HARA (1.0 (6.7)
Impairment losses on prepayments WIEMERNRIEZ
for acquisition of properties BEEE 57.1 35.7
Share of result of a joint venture DIEEERTEE 2.4 -
Adjusted EBIT BAEBEAFE
(Loss from operation) (& EE) (194.1) (204.0)

6 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024




FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

3)

Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MBRRERBAEXEER

NEBE (#)

fitat: (%)

Adjusted EBITDA is calculated as below: (3) #EFAZEBITDARMGTEM T :
2024 2023
—E-NE —EC=F
RMB million RMB million
ARBEER AREBETT
Loss of the year NFEEEE (540.1) (460.1)
Net financial costs B BRTHE 283.7 231.8
Income tax FRiSHi (10.9) (3.4)
Depreciation expenses TERX 214.3 197.4
EBITDA 547 B 8% AT AU (53.1) (34.3)
Adjust: Other income AR AU A (1.0) (6.7)
Fair value change on investment properties & ¥ % 8 A A EE(E & 17.1 (1.3)

Impairment losses on prepayments W B Y 2T FRIE 2

for acquisition of properties Ve RIEN: B 57.1 35.7
Adjusted EBITDA AR TR EBS T B 6 AT AE 20.2 (6.6)
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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MEBERERBREREBER

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(4)

To supplement the financial highlights prepared in accordance
with HKFRS Accounting Standards, we also use adjusted EBIT
(loss from operations), adjusted EBITDA as additional financial
indicators. We provide these financial indicators because our
management uses them to assess our financial performance
and eliminate the impact that we do not consider representing
our operating projects. We also believe that these non-
HKFRS Accounting Standards indicators provide additional
information to investors and others in order to help them
understand and assess our consolidated operating results, as
well as helping management in comparing financial results
for each accounting period and with those of peers. The use
of non-HKFRS Accounting Standards indicators has limitations
as an analytical tool as these indicators do not include all
items that affect our performance over the relevant period.
In view of the limitations of the non-HKFRS Accounting
Standards indicators above, readers should not view non-
HKFRS Accounting Standards indicators in isolation or as
alternatives to our current profits or any other operating
performance indicators calculated in accordance with HKFRS
Accounting Standards, in assessing our operating and financial
performance. In addition, as these non-HKFRS Accounting
Standards indicators may not be calculated by different
companies in the same way, they should not be compared with
similarly named indicators used by other companies.

NAV per ordinary share represents the total equity attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company per ordinary share.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2024
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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MBRRERBAEXEER

KEY PERFORMANCE INDEX RARERIEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
Bz BHE
—E-E —E-=F
+=ZA=+—-HB +ZHA=+—H
LEE IFFE
RMB RMB
AR ARB T
Sales per ticket T HEEO 1,382 1,223
Annualised area efficiency (per m?) @ FEAAFHR (BFHK)@ 9,723 11,746
Notes: B &t -
(1) Sales per ticket represents gross revenue divided by total (1 RH5BEBHEBERBERERIANERS
number of transactions of department stores. L Q)
(2)  Annualised area efficiency represents annualised gross revenue () FEALTRIE A EWE IS FE AR

per average operating area of department stores.

DA 8 S 78 o
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Five Years Summary Financial Information

IFENBERRBE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 {2 —F —MF+ -H=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi ("RMB"))  (UAKKE ([ARE])Z3)
RESULTS
L
Nine months
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
—E-ME -—T-=F -—FT-— - <ZE-%
+=A=+-B +-A=t-B +=-A=+-B +-A=t-B +=-A=1+—-H
tEE EFE HFE HEE IENEA
ARETRT AREFTR ARETT AR¥ETr ARETR
Revenue g
- Continuing operations -BRLEED 357,534 363,826 376,070 494,280 397,021
- Discontinued operations —RIEREX% - - - - -
357,534 363,826 376,070 494,280 397,021
Loss attributable to equity KRARRIESL
shareholders of the Company 518
- Continuing operations —BEREER (538,091) (453,250) (361,737) (367,967) (635,095)
- Discontinued operations —RIEREER - - - - -
(538,091) (453,250) (361,737) (367,967) (635,095)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
SERAME
As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R-Z-mEg WNZT-=F RZZ--F RIZT-F WZZT_ZF
+ZB=+—-H +ZA=+-H8 +ZA=1+—H +ZA=t—H +ZA=1—H
ARETRT AREBTT ARETT AREFTR ARETR
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRHEE 7,376,863 7,399,745 7,353,273 7,058,735 6,397,191
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE 220,673 292,342 199,832 150,710 687,307
DEDUCT: L
CURRENT LIABILITIES MBAR 1,793,243 2,259,514 4,442,302 2,789,331 2,733,966
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES MBAEFSE (1,572,570)  (1,967,172)  (4,242,470)  (2,638,621)  (2,046,659)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT  @EERRE
LIABILITIES 8 5,804,293 5,432,573 3,110,803 4,420,114 4,350,532
DEDUCT: ;1
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ErRBaRE 5,292,714 4,483,997 1,603,771 2,611,854 2,312,560
NET ASSETS EETH 511,579 948,576 1,507,032 1,808,260 2,037,972

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | would like to present the audited results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2024.

I. BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2024, China‘'s consumer market continued its rational
trend, with the annual total retail sales of social consumer
goods amounted to RMB44.3 trillion, representing a
year-on-year growth of 3.5%, and the contribution of
consumption to economic growth increased to 49.92%
for the same year. Despite the continuous and immense
efforts in implementing various policies on subsidies for
people’s benefit, the diversification among the retail
sector has been intensified. Department stores and
brand stores were still facing pressure on structural
adjustments, while experiential consumption scenes and
high performance-price categories became the growth
highlights.

Throughout 2024, the Group focused on the strategy
of “creating an ideal community for city life”, among
others, in providing consumers with quality products
and services through optimizing its business formats and
creating innovative scenes, as well as in promoting its
revenue through key project-driven growth, online media
promotion and policy benefits, which mainly included:

Key project-driven growth: The Century Ginwa Saigo
Project boosted both customer flow and sales through
various high-frequency thematic marketing campaigns
throughout the year, such as the collab for solar term
trends and in-depth brand collaboration; The Xianyang
Xintiandi Project successfully introduced numerous city
first-launch stores and excellent brands, and attracted
customer flow through the brand effects, thus further
consolidating the Xianyang regional market with the
synergistic effects from the Xianyang Renmin Store.

Online media promotion: Through the brand collaboration
coupled with membership campaigns, the Group
effectively integrated various online resources and
stepped-up publicity, so as to continuously attract
customers to our stores with satisfactory results.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Policy benefits: In response to government subsidies for
vehicle consumption, “trade-in” of household appliances
and purchase of new digital products, the Group
launched subsidy activities jointly with the government,
so as to drive its sales income of vehicles, household
appliances and digital products.

MARKET DYNAMICS AND RISK RESPONSE

1.

Consumption Stratification and Business
Format Differentiation

With the increasing competition and serious
homogenization among shopping malls, emerging
projects are facing serious pressure to attract
merchants and to divert customers. With the
implementation of “one strategy for one store”
development strategy, the Group developed a
sustainable competitive edge of themed business
and promptly made adjustments that depended
on the local context. Through building core
competitiveness among the areas of commodities,
scenes, marketing and services, the Group focused
on the niche areas with high precision, with a
view to achieving transformation, upgrading and
revitalization.

Increasing Operating Costs and Profit
Pressure

The increase in enterprises’ rigid expenditure
(such as rental expenses and staff cost) and the
fluctuation of supply chain costs have led to an
increase in the operating costs of enterprises. The
Group has further enhanced its human efficiency by
adopting measures of “cost-effectiveness”, as well
as strengthening both quantitative and incentive
measures. At the same time, our supply chain
collaboration modes were optimized. Settlements
have been carried out by adopting the mode
of hierarchical deduction, combining lease and
association, and multi-modal method.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2024
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

For 2025, the Group will focus on the following
directions in response to the changes in the consumer
market:

Change of operations: The Group will realize multi-
format integration and customers’ experience
enhancement, accelerate the introduction of various
formats such as immersive entertainment and healthy
consumption, develop specific brand modification and
upgrading plans for different stores in light of their
business characteristics and market needs, increase
interactive experience elements and leverage functional
and experiential formats to attract customers. With our
“business-minded person” mentality, the Group will grab
a greater market scale and adopt a flexible settlement
mechanism, thus facilitating the improvement of store
performance.

Cost-effectiveness: Strengthening cost control and
tapping into internal potential. The Group will pay
attention to our human resources efficiency, site
management efficiency and square meter efficiency. By
improving the allocation of human resources, products
and sites, the Group will coordinate the brand resources
properly and shorten the idle period. The Group will
continue to optimize staffing and strictly evaluate
mechanisms, so as to create a management atmosphere
with its efficient procedures in staff promotion and
demotion, as well as a “strict entry and strict exit”
mechanism.

Precision marketing: Focused on quality families and
youngsters as our target customers, the Group will
enhance its customer flow in terms of brand image
output, development for featured campaign scene,
online public traffic injections and advantageous formats.
Through the unique operation of self-media channels,
private members’ marketing scenes will be set up, and
the campaigns of membership benefit days will be
normalized, so as to increase members’ stickiness and
improve the efficiency of online and offline integrated
services.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRE®|E

lll. FUTURE OUTLOOK (continued)

Policy synergy: The Group will seize the opportunity of
shifting fiscal expenditure towards the consumption
sector, and will guide the consumers’ green consumption
demand, so as to enhance the consumption experience.
For increasing the customer flow, the Group will also
explore the potentials amid the booming of household
consumption economy and silver economy.

For 2025, the consumer market will continue to face the
dual challenges of demand differentiation and cost increase.
However, through the motivation forces comprised of
“operating adjustment + cost-effectiveness + precision
marketing + policy synergy”, the Group is expected to
further consolidate its competitive advantages in the
regional commercial market. The Group will continue to
focus on consumer demand, and create long-term value for
our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would also like to extend my sincere
thanks to our shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers,
bankers and business partners for their continued strong
support.

Yao Jiangang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2025
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group's gross revenue for the year ended 31 December
2024 was RMB846.2 million as compared to RMB976.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Annualised area efficiency (annualised gross revenue per
average operating area of department stores) for the year
ended 31 December 2024 was RMB9,723 per square meter, as
compared to RMB11,746 per square meter for the year ended
31 December 2023.

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024
was RMB357.5 million as compared to RMB363.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

The gross rental income and management and administrative
service fee income of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024 were RMB113.0 million, as compared to
RMB90.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2023. The
increase was due to the rental and management service fee for
the opened new stores.

The Group’s loss from operations (EBIT) for the year ended 31
December 2024 was RMB252.6 million as compared to loss
of RMB233.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2023.
The operating profit margin (loss from operations over gross
revenue) changed from -23.9% to -29.9%.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s adjusted
operating profit (adjusted EBITDA) was approximately RMB20.2
million as compared to loss approximately RMB6.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023. Compared with the annual
EBIT which excluded the non-operating factor of impairment
of prepayment for acquisition of property of the Xian Center
project, the management considers that the adjusted EBITDA
can better reflect the Company's operating results and
position.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s
impairment loss on prepayment for acquisition of properties
was approximately RMB57.1 million, while the impairment loss
on prepayment for acquisition of properties for the year ended
31 December 2023 was approximately RMB35.7 million. Such
increase was due to the increase in prepayment for acquisition
of properties in excess of the increase in valuation upon
capitalisation of borrowing costs.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS (continued)

Net finance costs of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024 were approximately RMB283.7 million (2023:
RMB231.8 million), which was due to the increase in principal
amount of bank and other borrowings.

The Groups loss for the year ended 31 December 2024
and loss attributable to shareholders of the Company were
RMB540.1 million (2023: RMB460.1 million) and RMB538.1
million (2023: RMB453.3 million) respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s consolidated net asset
value was RMB511.6 million (31 December 2023: RMB948.6
million). As at 31 December 2024, the Group had cash at bank
and on hand amounting to RMB10.7 million (31 December
2023: RMB49.7 million). The current ratio of the Group as at
31 December 2024 was 0.12 (31 December 2023: 0.13). The
gearing ratio, being bank and other borrowings and lease
liabilities less cash at bank and on hand divided by the total
equity, as at 31 December 2024, was 10.13 (31 December
2023: 5.06).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back at the reporting period, the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") retail industry faced and will continue
to face challenges and be subject to internal and external
factors including macroeconomic fluctuation, government
policy guidance, rapid growth of other retail channels such as
e-commerce and rising costs in the short term. By adhering to
the principle of managing its financial resources in a prudent
manner, the Group will optimise its cost structure, improve
its management efficiency and strengthen its capability. It will
strive to make progress in the PRC market which is full of
opportunities and challenges, in order to create values for its
customers and maximise the returns to its shareholders.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no change to the Group’s capital structure during
the year ended 31 December 2024. As at 31 December
2024, the issued share capital of the Company was
HK$114,969,471.5 divided into 1,149,694,715 shares of
HK$0.1 each (the “Shares”).

Details of the Group’s bank and other borrowings for the
year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements. As of 31 December 2024, the cash and
cash equivalents of the Group were mainly denominated in
RMB, with certain amount denominated in USD and Hong
Kong dollars.

On 6 January 2024, the Company issued an interest-
free promissory note in favour of Glory Keen Holdings
Limited (“Glory Keen”), a substantial shareholder holding
approximately 28.07% of the total number of issued shares
of the Company, in the amount of HK$247,184,318 (the
“Promissory Note").

On 8 February 2024, the Company and Glory Keen entered
into an agreement to extend the maturity date of the
Promissory Note (the “Extension Agreement”), pursuant to
which the parties agreed to, among other things, extend the
maturity date of the Promissory Note to 6 January 2025 or
the date on which Glory Keen declares early maturity of the
Promissory Note, following the failure of the Company to
make repayment pursuant to the repayment arrangement as
specified in the Extension Agreement, whichever is earlier.
The repayment arrangement of the outstanding amount due
under the Promissory Note of HK$247,184,318 pursuant
to the Extension Agreement shall be: (i) no later than 29
February 2024, the Company shall repay to Glory Keen not
less than RMB15 million; (i) no later than 31 July 2024, the
Company shall repay to Glory Keen not less than RMB50
million in aggregate (i.e. including the amount repaid pursuant
to subparagraph (i) above); and (iii) no later than 6 January
2025, the Company shall repay to Glory Keen all outstanding
amount.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE (continued)

On 27 January 2025, the Company and Glory Keen entered
into an agreement to further extend the maturity date of
the Promissory Note (the “Second Extension Agreement”),
pursuant to which the parties agreed to, among other things,
further extend the maturity date of the Promissory Note for
two years to 6 January 2027 or the fifth day after the date
on which Glory Keen declares early maturity of the Promissory
Note, upon Glory Keen and/or its shareholders reach the
agreed liquidation condition or are under other circumstances
necessitating liquidation or winding-up, whichever is earlier.
Pursuant to the Second Extension Agreement, the Company
shall repay to Glory Keen all outstanding amount of
HK$241,824,318 (i.e. the remaining amount of the Promissory
Note) on or before 6 January 2027.

Upon repayment of all outstanding amount by the Company
under the Promissory Note, the Share Charge (as defined
below) will be released.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Company did not make any material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures for the
year ended 31 December 2024. As at 31 December 2024, the
Group did not hold any significant investments.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, property and equipment with an
aggregate net book value of approximately RMB3,116.1
million (31 December 2023: RMB3,641.5 million) and
investment property amounting to RMB1,345.4 million (31
December 2023: RMB834.4 million) of the Group had been
pledged to secure the Group’s bank and other borrowings.

To secure the due performance of the Company under the
Promissory Note, the Company executed and delivered a share
charge, which the entire issued share capital of Golden Chance
(Xian) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
held by the Company is made subject to a charge in favour of
Glory Keen (the “Share Charge”).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL LITIGATION

Daming Palace Shopping Mall

Reference are made to the Company’s announcements dated
17 June 2022 and 25 March 2024, and the Company’s circular
dated 30 June 2022.

Xi'an Century Ginwa Ding Yao Shopping Mall Company
Limited* (AL SESBEDBRAF) (“Century
Ginwa Ding Yao”), an indirect subsidiary of the Company,
filed a civil complaint to Xi'an City Weiyang District People’s
Courts, which claims that: (i) the lease agreement entered
into between Xi'an Century Ginwa Shopping Mall Company
Limited* (AZHLZESIEEYWAERAA) (“Xi‘an Century
Ginwa"), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
as original lessee entity, and Shaanxi Daming Palace Investment
Development Co., Ltd.* (RREAARAETREZEBEREMT
2 A]) (the "Lessor”) as lessor in respect of the lease of the
commercial property “Daming Palace Shopping Mall (X
A=A L) " located at No. 359 Taihua North Road in
Weiyang District, Xi‘an City, with two floors underground
and seven floors above ground (the “Property”) for a term of
20 years (the “Lease Agreement”) (as supplemented by the
supplemental agreement to the Lease Agreement entered
into between Xi'an Century Ginwa and the Lessor in respect
of the change of the lessee entity from Xi'an Century Ginwa
to Century Ginwa Ding Yao), be ruled as terminated on 27
November 2023, and the Lessor to repay Century Ginwa
Ding Yao the earnest money of RMB70 million and relevant
interests; and (ii) the Lessor to compensate Century Ginwa
Ding Yao the costs associated with the surrender of the
Property and to bear relevant costs and fees incurred as the
plaintiff in the litigation for exercising the rights.

On 19 March 2024, Century Ginwa Ding Yao received the
summon of Xi‘an City Weiyang District People’s Courts in
respect of the litigation case, pursuant to which the first
hearing of the litigation case was held at Daming Palace
People’s Court of Xi‘an City Weiyang District People’s Courts
on 30 April 2024.

On 26 July 2024, two hearings had been held for the
litigation case, which mainly involved evidence and debate,
and therefore no substantial progress had been made. On 14
August 2024, Century Ginwa Ding Yao withdrew the lawsuit,
and the two parties are currently discussing for a settlement.
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MATERIAL LITIGATION (continued)
Xi'an Centre Development Project

Reference are made to the Company’s announcements dated
4 December 2014, 20 July 2017, 20 September 2021, 29
December 2021, 23 May 2024 and 3 June 2024, and the
Company’s circular dated 22 January 2015.

Century Ginwa Company Limited (42 & ERMD AR AA])

("Century Ginwa” or “Ginwa Bell Tower”), a 83.88% owned
subsidiary of the Company, filed a civil complaint to the People’s
Court of Yanta District of Xi'an City and received a summons
for hearing in April 2024. Century Ginwa demands Xi‘an Yigao
Property Development Company Limited* (FZESEBEXA
FR/A|]) (the “Project Company”) to continue to perform the
agreement entered into between the parties in relation to the
development of the commercial part of “Xi'an Centre” located
at the Xi‘an Hi-tech Industries Development Zone of Xi‘an, the
PRC comprising a gross floor area of approximately 69,061 square
meters and 457 car parking spaces (the “Xi‘an Centre Property”)
in accordance with the requirements of Century Ginwa and the
subsequent purchase of the Xi'an Centre Property by Century
Ginwa and the relevant supplemental agreements. Century
Ginwa also demands the Project Company to undertake a default
penalty in the amount of RMB368.808 million and the related
litigation costs. Such default penalty was calculated up to 19
January 2024 and shall continue to be accumulated until the
actual date of delivery.

On 20 June 2024, the first hearing for litigation case was held.
The opposing counsel applied for adjourning as they needed
more time to sort out the information related to the case,
which was approved by the court.

On 21 August 2024, The hearing was held again, at which
only evidence was presented. Both parties provided and
exchanged evidence for verification. At the same time, Century
Ginwa is actively negotiating reconciliation strategies with the
Project Company. Currently, active negotiations are ongoing.

Save as disclosed above, none of the members of the Group was
engaged in any litigation, arbitration or claim of material importance
in which any member of the Group is a defendant and no litigation,
arbitration or claim of material importance was known to the
Directors to be pending or threatened by or against any member of
the Group in which any member of the Group is a defendant during
the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL PLAN FOR INVESTMENT OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no plans for any
significant investments or capital assets.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the revenue
generated and costs incurred from the Group’s operation of
department stores, shopping malls and supermarkets were in
Renminbi. The Directors believe that the Group was not subject
to any significant exposure to foreign exchange risk as most
of the transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group were
denominated in Renminbi.

PROPERTY HELD FOR INVESTMENT

The Group leased out a non-freehold investment property
under operating leases for commercial use (shopping mall). It is
held under medium term lease and located in Blocks 1 and 3,
Saigo Shopping Centre, South of Feng Cheng Wu Road, West
of Wei Yang Road, Economic and Technological Development
Zone, Xi'an City, Shaanxi Province, The PRC. In 2024, the
property was partially expanded for commercial use as an
investment property held.

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, due to the impact of numerous uncertainties in
domestic and international economy, the current situation may
not be greatly improved in the short term. However, leveraging
the restart and revival of the national economy coupled with
the positive guidance and stimulation of the government
departments on the consumption capacity, we believe that the
consumption capacity will be further released.
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FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Favoured by the overall circumstances, the Company will also
diversify its business for increasing its profit, further develop
its brand agency business, introduce well-known domestic
and foreign brands to enter the northwest market, so as to
provide consumers with more quality choices and provide
operational management services to the franchise stores. By
reducing channels to directly provide goods to consumers,
the pattern of profit distribution will be changed. With our
strong brand strength, outstanding operating efficiency, good
financial performance and loyal customer base, we believe the
Company will maintain its leading position in the marketplace
among the industry and generate better returns for our
shareholders. The Company will also adjust its strategy and
formulate corresponding policies in a timely manner in the face
of many unfavorable conditions.

In the reporting period, the Company focused on the concept
of new retail, to achieve “technology upgrades, service
upgrades, management upgrades”. In the specific business
operations, brand adjustment, membership recruitment,
service techniques, teams of talents and other aspects, the
Company will abandon the original inertial thinking, and
constantly adopt new technologies and new methods to
achieve new breakthroughs in all aspects; at the same time,
the Company will implement planning and design in precise
marketing, management effectiveness, safety operations,
and other aspects one by one, and achieve the matching
of responsibilities and rights. Specific strategies include the
following five aspects:

Strategy I: Plan implementation. Thoroughly complete the
various business indicators of the year 2025. In the aspect of
brand adjustment, we must complete the brand adjustment
plan of 2025 according to the time node. It also clarifies the
overall operational planning work in the future.

Strategy Il: Active expansion. Continue to advance the
Xintiandi Department Store project, which will realize the
commencement of business for the whole floor in the year. At
the same time, we will continue to progress the expansion of
new supermarkets.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK (continued)

Strategy lll: Capital protection. Strengthen revenue, use new
types of financing channel tools, optimise the receivable
turnover period and create a healthy capital liquidity
environment.

Strategy IV: Driven innovation. Integrate consumer finance
and internet financial products; meanwhile analyse the
consumption behavior data of members, and develop the
mobile application of shopping guides.

Strategy V: Management effectiveness. Fully embody the
corporate culture effectiveness, performance management
effectiveness and communication mechanism efficiency, and
integrate the application of new management technologies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had issued the following guarantee: A guarantee
provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in respect of a sum payable for
acquisition of a property by Ginwa Investments Holding Group
Ltd (“Ginwa Investments”) in August 2005. Ginwa Investments
has defaulted repayment of the above sum payable.

As at 31 December 2024, the Directors did not consider it is
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under
the above guarantee. The maximum liability of the Group at 31
December 2024 under the guarantee issued is the outstanding
amount of the liability of RMB9,500,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB9,500,000) plus accrued interest.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2024.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2024, the number of the Group’s staff
was 3,296 (31 December 2023: 3,435), including 627 (31
December 2023: 767) directly employed full time employees,
and the remaining being concession sales staffs managed on
behalf of the suppliers; and the number of male and female
employees was 495 and 2,801, respectively, accounting for
approximately 15% and approximately 85%), respectively.
Most of the employees are employed in Mainland China. The
directly employed employees’ remuneration, promotion and
salary increments are assessed based on both the Group’s
performance and the professional and working experience
of the individual as well as by reference to prevailing market
practice and standards. Apart from the general remuneration
package, the Group also grants discretionary bonus to the
eligible staffs based on their performance and contribution to
the Group. The Group regards high-calibre staffs as one of the
key factors to corporate success.

The Company has implemented fair employment practices,
and adopted the principles of merit-based employment and
talents for suitable positions in the recruitment process without
any gender discrimination. The Group’s staff costs for the year
ended 31 December 2024 were approximately RMB65,859,000
(for the year ended 31 December 2023: RMB84,390,000). In
addition, the Group also provides trainings for employees in
different functions.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as the entering into the Second Extension Agreement,
there have been no significant events occurring after the end
of the reporting period up to the date of this report.

* For identification purpose only
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yao Jiangang (“Mr. Yao")

Mr. Yao, aged 54, was appointed as an executive Director, the
chairman of the Board and the chairman of the nomination
committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”)
on 14 December 2022. Mr. Yao graduated from Xi'an
International Studies University in 1994 and Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business in 2022. He holds an associate’s
degree in German from the Adult Education College of Xi‘an
International Studies University and a master's degree in
business administration. Mr. Yao has extensive experience
in business, retail and management. He joined the Group
in September 2021, and currently holds the position as the
president of Century Ginwa Co., Ltd.. Mr. Yao served as the
senior business consultant of Fujian Dongbai Group and the
general manager of Lanzhou Center of Lanzhou Oriental
Friendship Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (BIMNEAREBEEZBRA
AIE ML) from 2017 to August 2021. He worked as the
vice president of Xi‘an Kaiyuan Investment Group from 2012
to 2017. He also served as the general manager of Shanghai
Kaitong Business Management Co., Ltd.* ( b/&3lEREEEE
BRRAF]) from 2010 to 2011. He also worked at Hong Kong
Walden International Business Management Co., Ltd.* (&
BEEHEEEEIEAMRAA) as the chief business officer
from 2007 to 2009. He served as the general manager of Xi‘an
Meimei Department Store* (FAZEEBTEAQFA) from 2005
to 2007, and the deputy general manager of Century Ginwa
Co., Ltd. from 1996 to 2004.
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Mr. Choon Hoi Kit Edwin (“Mr. Choon")

Mr. Choon, aged 57, was appointed as an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company on 15 October
2024. He has over 30 years of experience in finance, mergers and
acquisitions, and corporate restructuring and held management
positions in various listed companies. Mr. Choon had worked for
one of the Big Four international accountancy firms and another
prestigious CPA firm and had also been engaged in various
mergers and acquisitions exercises. Mr. Choon was the general
manager of finance department of Guangnan (Holdings) Limited
(now known as GDH Guangnan (Holdings) Limited, a company
which shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), stock code: 1203) during its
restructuring exercise from 1999 to 2001. Mr. Choon also has
experience in department store business in the PRC and held the
position of deputy chief operating officer from 2003 to 2007
of Junefield Department Store Holdings Limited (a company
renamed as Macrolink Capital Holdings Limited which shares
was listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 758) and was also
the director of the jointly controlled entity Wuhan Plaza. He was
appointed as the chairman assistant of the Company in 2007 and
served as an executive Director and the chief executive officer of
the Company during 8 March 2010 to 8 March 2017. Mr. Choon
was also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company during
the period. After he left the Company, Mr. Choon served as the
general manager of Xi'an Mingdaotang Project Management
Advisory Company Limited* (FARAE=IERERAAEGR
AF])  from July 2017 to July 2020, and has been a director
of LKF Wen Lu Asset Management Holding Limited since May
2020. He has also been a director of Acme Gear Global Limited
("Acme Gear"”) since 14 June 2024. Acme Gear has an interest in
the shares of the Company which falls to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO").

Ms. Wan Qing (“Ms. Wan")

Ms. Wan, aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director on 24
June 2020 and the chief financial officer of the Company with
effect from 3 September 2023. She currently holds directorships
at certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Wan graduated
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Xi'an Jiaotong
University. She holds a master’s degree in business administration.
Ms. Wan has obtained certain professional qualifications in the
PRC including certified public accountant and certified tax agent.
Ms. Wan is experienced in financing, finance and mergers and
acquisitions. She joined the Group since 2008, and holds the
positions as financial controller and deputy general manager of
Century Ginwa Co., Ltd.. In June 2020, Ms. Wan was appointed
as a vice president of the Group. From 2002 to 2008, Ms. Wan
worked in a reputable accounting firm in the PRC and was
responsible for audit work.
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Ms. Zhang Wei (“Ms. Zhang”)

Ms. Zhang, aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director
on 30 October 2024. Ms. Zhang is a certified senior human
resources manager. She held senior positions in several
public sector and private enterprises. Ms. Zhang worked in
Tongchuan Post Office Express Advertising Bureau, Shaanxi
Postal Information Service Bureau and Ecommerce Bureau of
Shaanxi Post during August 1999 to March 2006, June 2006
to January 2008, and January 2008 to April 2012 respectively.
She was a deputy general manager of the Shaanxi Branch
of YeePay Co., Ltd. during April 2012 to June 2014 and a
general manger of Xi‘an NolLi Asset Management Co., Ltd.*
(formerly known as Xi'an Anjia Xinuo Asset Management
Co., Ltd.) during October 2014 to October 2018. Ms.
Zhang has been a deputy general manager of Xi‘an Qujiang
Cultural Financial Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. since October
2018 and a supervisor of Huaren Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.,
a company whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300110) since April 2024. Xi‘an Qujiang
Cultural Financial Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. is the substantial
shareholder (as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)) of
both the Company and Huaren Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd..

Mr. Huang Zhihua (“Mr. Huang”)

Mr. Huang, aged 47, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 14 December 2022. Mr. Huang graduated
from Zhengzhou University of Aeronautics in 1999 and
Northwestern Polytechnical University in 2009. He holds a
bachelor’s degree in industrial engineering and a master’s
degree in business administration. Mr. Huang has extensive
experience in financing, finance and investment management.
He has joined Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Financial Holdings
(Group) Co., Ltd.* (FALZHTI LS RITR (EE)ERA
A]) since February 2020, and currently holds the positions
as a member of the CPC Committee and the investment
director. He served as the manager, deputy general manager
and risk control director of the first investment department of
Shaanxi Province Industry Investment Co., Ltd. from November
2011 to February 2020, and the director of the investment
project department of Shaanxi Investment Group from June
2003 to October 2011. He served as the director of the R&D
department of Shaanxi Jufeng Investment Information Co.,
Ltd.* (PREAEZREEMABMREAMELF) from September
2002 to May 2003, and the director of the R&D Department of
Tianjin Ronghui Investment Consulting Co., Ltd.* (KERE
HEBHBREE AR from July 2001 to September 2002.
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Mr. Chen Shuai (“Mr. Chen”)

Mr. Chen, aged 51, was appointed as a non-executive Director
on 3 December 2010. He is also a member of each of the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the "Remuneration Committee”) and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He currently holds
directorships at certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Chen joined Hony Capital in 2003 and has served as
managing director of Hony Capital since 2011. As at the
date of this annual report, Hony Capital, through Glory Keen
Holdings Limited, (i) was beneficially interested in 322,727,272
shares of the Company, representing approximately 28.07%
of the number of shares of the Company in issue, and (ii) held
the Promissory Note issued by the Company. Mr. Chen directs
city services, hotel management, investments in financial
services, culture and media, consumer goods and retail and
construction material sectors of Hony Capital. Mr. Chen has
extensive experience in investment management, supplier
management and retail business.

Prior to joining Hony Capital in 2003, Mr. Chen had worked
in an investment company, a PRC retail chain and department
store and a PRC domestic comprehensive supermarket
company. He was a non-executive director of China
Rongzhong Financial Holdings Company Limited (a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code:
3963) from 9 July 2018 to 10 March 2023, and a director of
Shanghai SMI Holding Co., Ltd. (a company whose shares are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600649)
and Shanghai Environment Group Co., Ltd. (a company whose
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock
code: 601200). He was a non-executive director of Hospital
Corporation of China Limited (a company whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3869) from 23 June
2020 to 20 November 2020, and was re-designated as an
executive director of such company since 20 November 2020.
He also served as a director of I-Mab Biopharma Co., Ltd.
(a company listed on NASDAQ, stock code: IMAB) from 3 April
2023 to 22 August 2024. Mr. Chen holds an Executive Master
of Business Administration degree from The China Europe
International Business School. He received his bachelor degree
in Economics from Beijing Forestry University.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (“Mr. Tsang”)

Mr. Tsang, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 25 September 2008. He is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each of
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Tsang has over 20 years of experience in accounting
and finance. At present, he practices public accounting.

Mr. Tsang was the joint company secretary of Green
International Holdings Limited (a company whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2700) from 1 April
2019 to 31 July 2023.

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng (“Mr. Ruan”)

Mr. Ruan, aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 15 May 2015. He is also the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Ruan
is currently the Deputy General Manager of Bozhi Technology
(Beijing) Limited.

Mr. Ruan was the senior investment manager of Hony Capital
from 2003 to 2009. He previously worked in ZTE Capital
and TCL Ventures as vice president and executive director
respectively and served as a law lecturer mainly for corporate
law, tax law and securities law in the arts and law faculty in
Beijing University of Chemical Technology. During that period,
he was a part-time lawyer in a number of law firms. He has
solid legal practice experience and is familiar with corporate
governance, corporate finance and investment, mergers
and acquisition, business restructuring. He holds a master
of business administration degree from the China Europe
International Business School and a bachelor degree and a
master of economic law degree from the Law School of Jilin
University.
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Ms. Song Hong (“Ms. Song"”)

Ms. Song, aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 October 2020. She is also a member
of the Nomination Committee. She graduated from Nankai
University in 1990 with a double bachelor’s degree in tourism
economic management and sociology. She completed the
EMBA program from the Guanghua School of Management,
Peking University in 2000. Ms. Song has around 30 years of
experience in logistics management and procurement. Ms.
Song served as the vice president and chief operating officer of
Zhuhai Apex Technology Co., Ltd. (/&R R AR
AA]) (currently named as Ninestar Corporation, a company
whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
stock code: 002180) and Zhuhai Seine Technology Co., Ltd.
(RBEMNTEIRXRM AR AEF) from 2016 to 2017. She
worked at Hony Capital from November 2008 to 2015, during
which she served as the founding partner and managing
director of Beijing Hony Yuanfang Investment Consultants Ltd.
(kR BEFEBMARZAR), a subsidiary of Hony
Capital, as well as the vice president of Lenovo Mobile Co.,
Ltd., the president of Shenzhen Longhao Co., Ltd. (F3IIIEE
YEBMR A F])  (currently named as Shenzhen Longhao Tiandi
Co., Ltd. OURYITERIERMABMRAF)) and the president of
King Hero Limited (B RAR) (a company established
in the British Virgin Islands and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) for which the companies were invested by
Hony Capital. She worked for Lenovo Group from 1998 to
2007, responsible for logistics management and procurement
business, and served as the vice president of the global
logistics department.

*  For identification purpose only
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together
with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and those of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Environmental protection

In order to promote corporate governance, drive
environmental protection proactively, facilitate relationships
among stakeholders and contribute to the society, the
management has established Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG"”) Committee to set targets, policies,
procedures and guidelines for ESG related matters so as to
promote the sustainable development of the Group’s business
and the community where the Group’s business is operated.
Five Task Forces are set up under the ESG Committee.
Members in the Task Forces come from the elites of relevant
departments responsible for assisting the ESG Committee
to monitor the promotion of the corresponding ESG related
matters, establish key performance indicators and periodic
effectiveness assessment. The ESG Committee is responsible
to report to the Board periodically the status of execution and
recommendations of improvements.

The Group has set up an energy conservation project team to
implement a number of energy saving and emission reduction
measures in offices, department stores and supermarkets to
reduce electricity consumption, discharge of pollutants, and
to avoid wastage of resources. For achieving the concept of
"Green management and balanced development”, the Group
will continue to review and monitor the implementation of each
measure, and optimise the measures based on their effectiveness.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group has ensured and will continue to ensure full
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on its operations, including but not
limited to laws and regulations in relation to product safety
and liabilities, customer rights protection, employment and
occupational safety and laws and regulations relating to
property leasing and property management.

The management will monitor the impact of any changes in
the relevant laws and regulations from time to time and seek
external advice if considered necessary.

Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

EEMAREEE_Z_ME+ = A
=+—HIFEZRE ERLEZIE
W]k o

ARAZEIBEBRREZR - SHBLQ
Al EBEBHN P B RRME6 -

XK ERE

RIERE

ABTRACEELR EREGHBYIREN
RE - REFBHEFENLEL S B2
BEKIIIRE @ hER([ESGEE
g HEBEE - HEREREEEETE
1ZBOR - R P R3ESl  WEEITEEB A
SENEBNEEEBHLEITRA MR
BER-ESGEEEB TRASENA: /)
HRNERESHEBAIMNER DREE
WEIESGE EQEBSIMHREIRR g
NESARBER B HE R ESUEE
N EBRHER K - ESGEE BT HRES
FTERATHELRIREECEZS -

AEBEKRSEER M ERAE B
EE5MBA TS E RS IRENEE RS
B AR A EIIERE ISR BE A K
HRRBER AEESUERN LER
B IR AV HETT 1B IR AR N T B 1L
VTEBaELE AEHR] 2B -

B EERER

AEBECDHRMGEEERT2ETHAR
SEZEREREFENMBARIER
BRETERNEEARZEREE REBE
EREN - BENMBRRZEHIERNIARM
BENMEZHERMEEENER LR -

ER BT BRI A RAR AR
BEFELZHE RRBESBIINR
B

HESHEHEERERLA
“ENEER

31



32

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group is engaged in the operation of department stores,
shopping malls and supermarkets in the PRC. The risks
associated include burglary, fire, significant incidents, cash
storage and in transit. The Group has followed relevant laws
and regulations to set up security measures to lower the
chance of these risks, to protect the security of human lives
and inventories and to minimise any loss.

For other risks, such as credit risks, interest rate risks, liquidity
risks, currency risks and equity price risks, and risk reduction
measures, please refer to “Financial Risk Management and Fair
Values” in note 31 to the financial statements.

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group firmly believes that maintaining good relationship
with key stakeholders (including employees, customers,
vendors, governing bodies and shareholders) is the key
element to ensure long-term success and continual profit
growth.

(1) Employees
Employees are the most important and valuable assets
of the Group. The Group has established comprehensive
talent recruitment and sound performance appraisal
polices to reward and recognise performing employees
with competitive remuneration package, and to
promote them with career development and progression
by appropriate training and providing them with equal
opportunities within the Group for career development.

(2) Customers

Our customers are mainly retails customers of
department stores. Through good standards of the
look, appearance and actions of employees, the Group
creates a good image of service. The Group not only
devotes to set up a consistent labelling system and clear
pricing system, but also endeavors to eradicate the
selling of fake and inferior quality products. The Group
treasures complaints and comments from customers.
In order to provide excellent customer services and
to increase market share and business expansion, the
Group has set up various channels to strengthen the
communication with customers, including customer
satisfactory surveys, customer opinion cards and website
of the Company.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Relationships with key stakeholders (continued)
(3) Goods suppliers and services providers

The Group adheres to open, fair and transparent criteria
in choosing goods suppliers and services providers and
has set up a vendor evaluation system. The evaluation
will base on prices, quality, costs, delivery and after-sales
services after strict execution of purchase procedures
and goods/service inspection standards. In order to
ensure sustainable quality of goods and service supply,
the Group will carry out continual monitoring and
periodic examination of all vendors.

(4) Regulators

The Group operates in the retail business through
different department stores which are subject to the
jurisdictions of the national and local regulators.
Along with compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations, each department store of the Group
has taken steps to ensure that relevant local concerns,
customs and changes of laws or regulations have been
accounted for.

(5) Shareholders

For communication, shareholders may contact the
Group via “contact us” section of the website of the
Company. Besides, the Group will also communicate
with shareholders through printed or online version
of notices, announcements, annual and interim
reports. Annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss and cash flows of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2024 and the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2024 are set out in
the financial statements on pages 136 to 144. A balanced
review of the Group’s business, an analysis of the application
of financial key performance indicators and a discussion
on the Group’s future business development are provided
in the “Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index”,
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” sections of this Annual Report, which is also part of
this Directors’ Report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2024.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the
three years ended 31 December 2024, 2023, 2022, 2021 and
the nine months ended 31 December 2020 and the assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2020, 2021, 2022,
2023 and 2024 are set out on page 10.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 30 to
the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set
out in note 30 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s reserves (including
retained profits, if any, and contributed surplus, subject to
equity shareholders’ approval) amounting to RMB995,255,000
(31 December 2023: RMB995,255,000) were available for
distribution to the Company’s shareholders. In addition,
the share premium of the Company in the amount of
approximately RMB1,019,254,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB1,019,254,000) may be distributed in form of fully paid
bonus shares.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of
the Group and its employees make monthly contribution to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer’s
and the employee’s contributions are subject to a cap of
monthly earnings of HK$30,000 and thereafter contributions
are voluntary. As stipulated by the rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in the PRC. The Group contributes to
retirement plans at specified percentages of the basic salaries
of its employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company or his/her connected entities had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at 31 December 2024
or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2024.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year
ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yao Jiangang (Chairman)
Mr. Qin Chuan (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned with effect from 10 July 2024)
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit Edwin (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed with effect from 15 October 2024)
Ms. Wan Qing
Ms. Zhang Wei (appointed with effect from 30 October 2024)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Zhihua
Mr. Chen Shuai

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng
Ms. Song Hong
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

In accordance with Bye-law 84(1) of the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”), one-third of the Directors for the
time being should retire at each annual general meeting from
office by rotation, Mr. Yao Jiangang, Mr. Huang Zhihua and
Mr. Chen Shuai will retire from office of Directors by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Choon
Hoi Kit Edwin and Ms. Zhang Wei, being Directors appointed
after the annual general meeting of the Company held on 26
June 2024, shall be subject to re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offers themselves
for re-election.

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit Edwin has been appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company
with effect from 15 October 2024. Ms. Zhang Wei has been
appointed as an executive Director with effect from 30
October 2024.

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit Edwin and Ms. Zhang Wei had obtained
legal advice from a firm of solicitors qualified to advise on
Hong Kong law as regards the requirements under the Listing
Rules that are applicable to him/her as a director of a listed
issuer and the possible consequences of making a false
declaration or giving false information to the Stock Exchange
on 8 November 2024. Mr. Choon Hoi Kit Edwin and Ms. Zhang
Wei have confirmed they understood their obligations as a
director of a listed issuer.

The independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. Tsang Kwok
Wai, Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng and Ms. Song Hong, have confirmed
to the Company their independence, and the Board considers
them to be independent for the year ended 31 December 2024.
The Company considers that each of such independent non-
executive Directors to be independent from the Group based on
the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 25 to
30.

None of the Directors had entered into any service contract
with any member of the Group which is not terminable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

EERESEZIRBEEN (H)

BEARA ﬂz AIABA)([ARI4AI])EE
AN ER =D —WESELTER
%@EK?%@@E Pk L - BB
EERBREEEBSRERERRAEF RS £
HBERE BAERITBEEBEBET-

BIEARMAFES3)E BREANLER
REZLT (ARARAR T _NF XA
T+ RBRETZRREAFASRETZE
B)BREERFBFRG LEE B8
MY FEEBEET-

BANEEE_T_NFE+ATHBEER
RERRRRBZHMITEST RITHRAH R
Bt -_T_WFTA=+RHEERE
RATES

R-Z-_WNE+—ANR BRENEER
REXTERERREIER LHBETAE
ER LR BITE TR E A R R B <2 BT VR I
ERBHAIREHEREMNDAERR W
—RABERREBEDREE R NEMSE
BHRREZERBER -BRANEERKEX
TEHRREABEERALHRITAES
HEE-

B IERITEE (BGBEE S AE - BubEilg it
ERRALZT)ERAARGIEREB L
BEEeRARENEE S _NF+=

—t+t—HUIEFEHBBIAL -REL
MRBIEIN3MEFTEIES A RAFR AL
MEBIIENTESHYRAEBRNEILA
j:o

EEBEEHBENE2E308H
BEEMEERNEEEMFAE RRFILA

SEAAR-—FARMNEE OXERER
SN T T IARR AR 2 BRI & 4T



DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers. Such insurance were in force during the reporting
period and as of the date of this report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT AND TOP FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and top five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the financial statements.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Company by band for the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out as follows:
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Receiving Financial Assistance

Reference are made to the Company’s announcements dated
8 February 2024, 5 March 2024, 27 January 2025 and 17
March 2025 and the circulars dated 14 February 2024 and
28 February 2025 relating to the connected transaction
for receiving financial assistance in relation to the entering
into the Extension Agreement and the Second Extension
Agreement.

On 6 January 2024, the Company issued the Promissory Note
in the amount of HK$247,184,318 to Glory Keen, a substantial
shareholder holding approximately 28.07% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Receiving Financial Assistance (continued)

On 8 February 2024, the Company and Glory Keen entered
into the Extension Agreement to extend the maturity date of
the Promissory Note, pursuant to which the parties agreed
to, among other things, extend the maturity date of the
Promissory Note to the second anniversary of the date of
Completion (i.e. 6 January 2025) or the date on which Glory
Keen declares early maturity of the Promissory Note, following
the failure of the Company to make repayment pursuant to
the repayment arrangement as specified in the Extension
Agreement, whichever is earlier. The repayment arrangement
of the outstanding amount due under the Promissory Note of
HK$247,184,318 pursuant to the Extension Agreement shall
be: (i) no later than 29 February 2024, the Company shall
repay to Glory Keen not less than RMB15 million; (ii) no later
than 31 July 2024, the Company shall repay to Glory Keen
not less than RMB50 million in aggregate (i.e. including the
amount repaid pursuant to sub-paragraph (i) above); and (iii)
no later than 6 January 2025, the Company shall repay to
Glory Keen all outstanding amount.

On 27 January 2025, the Company and Glory Keen entered into
the Second Extension Agreement to further extend the maturity
date of the Promissory Note, pursuant to which the parties
agreed to, among other things, further extend the maturity
date of the Promissory Note for two years to 6 January 2027
or the fifth day after the date on which Glory Keen declares
early maturity of the Promissory Note, upon Glory Keen and/
or its shareholders reach the agreed liquidation condition
or are under other circumstances necessitating liquidation
or winding-up, whichever is earlier. Pursuant to the Second
Extension Agreement, the Company shall repay to Glory Keen
all outstanding amount of HK$241,824,318 (i.e. the remaining
amount of the Promissory Note) on or before 6 January 2027.

The entering into of each of the Extension Agreement and
the Second Extension Agreement constituted a connected
transaction for the Company and is subject to the reporting,
announcement, circular and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The independent shareholders of the Company have
approved the Extension Agreement and the Second Extension
Agreement at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 5 March 2024 and 17 March 2025 respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO which were required to be entered into the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
issuers as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code"), were as follows:
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Name of director Nature of interests shares held the Company
EARQF
Frise &7 ERITEER
EEnA EEME ZEREE REABLEIL
Ms. Wan Qing Interests of spouse 123,500 (Note 1) 0.01%
B AL [N (KtzE1)
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit Edwin Iﬂterest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 28.07%
BRANEE REHEEER (Note 2) (Fftat2)
Beneficial owner 10,098,000 0.88%
EnfEBA
Long position in the ordinary shares of associated REBEIEZERZ2HR
corporations
Percentage

of the share
capital of the

Name of associated Nature of Number of associated

Name of director corporation interests shares held  corporation
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Ge Xin, the spouse of Ms. Wan Qing, is beneficially
interested in 123,500 Shares. Therefore, Ms. Wan Qing is
deemed to be interested in 123,500 Shares in the Company
under the SFO.

2. On 3 July 2024, Acme Gear Global Limited, a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Choon Hoi Kit Edwin has conditionally agreed
to purchase a total of 322,727,272 Shares from Glory Keen.
Therefore, Mr. Choon Hoi Kit Edwin was deemed to be interested
in 322,727,272 Shares in the Company under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company had, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, nor were they taken
to or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or any interests
which are required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code or any interests
which are required to be entered into the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2024, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being
interests of 5% or more of the Company’s issued ordinary
share capital. These interests are in addition to those disclosed
above in respect of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS FERRRBROREBRD 2
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND wRER (&)
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)
Long position/short position in the shares of the rXAFRBZRE ER
Company
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Number of ordinary share
Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of
Name of shareholder short positions  Nature of interests shares held the Company
EARRR
e &1T BRATEER
ey RE/ER BENE EERMA REzBHEA L
Qujiang Cultural Financial International Long positions Beneficial owner 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%
Investment Limited
BRIt eRERREERAA kg EaEEA (K1)
Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Financial Holdings  Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%

(Group) Co. Ltd.

BRBINERAR (EE)ARRA &2 RREHZERAES (K1)
Xi‘an Qujiang New District Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.24%
Management Committee

AZHINEERZEE KkE REEHZERAER (Hit1)

Glory Keen Holdings Limited (“Glory Keen") Long positions Beneficial owner 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%

REmmaRAR ([RE]) ke EaEA 7))

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
Kke REEHZERAER (Hit2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,721.272  (Note 2) 28.07%
kB RREHZERAES 7))

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,721,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
Kke REEHZERAER (Hit2)

Hony Group Management Limited Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
kB RREHZERAES (Kit2)

Hony Managing Partners Limited Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
Kke REEHZERAER (Hit2)

Exponential Fortune Group Limited Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,727,272 (Note 2) 28.07%
ke RREHZERAES (Kit2)

Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions Interest in a controlled corporation 322,721,272 (Note 2) 28.07%

BeBLE Kkg REBHZERAER (Hit2)

Acme Gear Global Limited Long positions Beneficial owner 322,721,272 (Note 3) 28.07%
kB EaEA =)

HESHEHEERERLA
“ENEER 4 1



42

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Long position/short position in the shares of the
Company (continued)

Notes:

(1

Quijiang Cultural Financial International Investment Limited
held 336,166,156 Shares. Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Financial
Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. holds the entire issued share
capital of Qujiang Cultural Financial International Investment
Limited. Each of Xi'an Qujiang New District Management
Committee and Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Holding Company
Limited beneficially owns 80.05% and 19.95% equity interests
in Xi'an Qujiang Cultural Financial Holdings (Group) Co.
Ltd., respectively. Xi‘an Qujiang New District Management
Committee owns 99.9% equity interest in Xi‘an Qujiang
Cultural Holding Company Limited. As such, Xi‘an Qujiang
Cultural Financial Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd. and Xi'an
Quijiang New District Management Committee were deemed
to be interested in 336,166,156 Shares by virtue of their
shareholding in Qujiang Cultural Financial International
Investment Limited.

The long position of 322,727,272 Shares represents the
322,727,272 Shares held by Glory Keen. Hony Capital Fund
2008, L.P. holds the entire issued share capital of Glory
Keen. Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. is the sole general
partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Hony Capital Fund
2008 GP Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hony Group
Management Limited, is the sole general partner of Hony
Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. Hony Managing Partners Limited
owns 80% equity interests in Hony Group Management
Limited. Hony Managing Partners Limited is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Exponential Fortune Group Limited.
Mr. Zhao John Huan holds 49% of the issued share capital
of Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Each of the above-
mentioned parties was therefore deemed to be interested in
the interest held by Glory Keen.

Glory Keen has conditionally agreed to sell and Acme Gear
Global Limited has conditionally agreed to purchase a total
of 322,727,272 Shares pursuant to a sale and purchase
agreement entered into by and between the parties on 3 July
2024.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and chief executives of
the Company are not aware that there is any person who, as
at 31 December 2024, had an interest or short position in the
Shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who is, directly
or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meeting of any other member of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates had any interest which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group's largest
customer and five largest customers taken together were
less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the year ended
31 December 2024. The aggregate purchases attributable to
the Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers taken
together were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest major customers
and suppliers during the year ended 31 December 2024.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities
(including the sale of treasury Shares) during the year ended
31 December 2024.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
and the laws of Bermuda.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2024.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the identity of the Shareholders to attend
and vote at the annual general meeting of the Company to
be held on Tuesday, 17 June 2025 (“2025 AGM"), the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday,
11 June 2025 to Tuesday, 17 June 2025, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2025 AGM,
all transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at 17/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 10 June 2025.

MATERIAL EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Save as the entering into the Second Extension Agreement,
there have been no significant events occurring after the end
of the reporting period up to the date of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
date of this annual report, there is sufficient public float of
more than 25% of the Shares in the market as required under
the Listing Rules.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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AUDITOR

KPMG retired at the conclusion of the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 30 June 2023 (the “2023 AGM").

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited and WUYIGE
Certified Public Accountants LLP have been appointed as the
overseas and domestic auditors of the Company, respectively
at the 2023 AGM.

The term of appointment of McMillan Woods (Hong Kong)
CPA Limited and WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP as
auditors of the Company shall conclude at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

A resolution for the re-appointment of McMillan Woods (Hong
Kong) CPA Limited as overseas auditor and WUYIGE Certified
Public Accountants LLP as domestic auditor of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Save as aforesaid, there has been no change in the auditor of
the Company during the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
Yao Jiangang

Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 26 March 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns.

The Board regularly reviews its corporate governance practices,
risk management and internal control policy and procedures
in order to meet the rising expectations of stakeholders and
comply with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements,
and to fulfill its commitment to corporate governance
excellence.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code") as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the directors, all the directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2024.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2024 and the date of this annual report,
the Board is comprised of four executive Directors, two non-
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.

The members of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yao Jiangang (Chairman)

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit Edwin (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Wan Qing

Ms. Zhang Wei

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Zhihua
Mr. Chen Shuai

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng

Ms. Song Hong

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to
the affairs of the Group. Each executive Director is suitably
qualified for his/her position, and has sufficient experience
to hold his/her position so as to carry out his/her duties
effectively and efficiently. There are no relationships (financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships)
between members of the Board. Biographical information of
the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors” of this annual report.

OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. According to CG
Code Provision C.5.1, the Board should meet regularly and
Board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximate intervals. During the year ended 31 December
2024, the Board met regularly and frequently for the review
and approval on the business of department stores, shopping
malls and supermarkets. Details of Directors’ attendance of the
Board and the general meetings held for the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out as follows:
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Board General
Name of Director meetings meetings
=3 EExggR BREXE
Executive Directors
HITEF
Mr. Yao Jiangang 7/7 2/2
ok 3 55 A
Mr. Qin Chuan (Note 1) 3/3 2/2
=)NEE (KaE1)
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit Edwin (Note 2) 3/3 N/A
BN A (HfaE2) i A
Ms. Wan Qing 717 2/2
B+
Ms. Zhang Wei (Note 3) 2/2 N/A
sRE2ZL (KaE3) i A
Non-Executive Directors
FHITESE
Mr. Huang Zhihua 7/7 2/2
BERELRYE
Mr. Chen Shuai 5/7 172
PR b %% A

HESHEHEERERLA
“ENEER

47



48

Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

Board General
Name of Director meetings meetings
EEHR Ezega RRRE
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUIFNITEE
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 717 272
TEELEE
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 4/7 2/2
bl e
Ms. Song Hong 717 2/2
RALZ+
Notes: B et -

1. Mr. Qin Chuan resigned with effect from 10 July 2024. 3
Board meetings and 2 general meetings were held before his
resignation.

2. Mr. Choon Hoi Kit Edwin was appointed with effect from 15
October 2024. 3 Board meetings and no general meeting were
held after his appointment.

3. Ms. Zhang Wei was appointed on 30 October 2024. 2
Board meetings and no general meeting were held after her
appointment.

All Directors are provided with relevant materials relating to
the matters brought before the meetings. They have separate
and independent access to the senior management and the
company secretary of the Company at all times and may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
When queries are raised by Directors, steps would be taken
to respond as promptly and as fully as possible. All Directors
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda of
Board meetings. Notices of at least 14 days of Board meetings
are given to the Directors and Board procedures comply with
the Bye-Laws of the Company, as well as relevant rules and
regulations.

FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Company’s operation is vested
in the Board. The Board carries out its functions according to
the powers conferred upon it by the Bye-laws of the Company
which is uploaded onto the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company, and since the date of uploading, no
significant changes have been made.
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The main functions and duties conferred on the Board include:

- management of the overall business and strategic
development;

- deciding business plans and investment plans;

— convening general meetings and reporting to the
Shareholders; and

—  exercising other powers, functions and duties conferred
by Shareholders in general meetings.

The Board is responsible for fulfilling the corporate governance
responsibilities under A.2.1 of the CG Code. Regarding the
aforementioned functions, during the year, the following
works, inter alia, were performed by the Board: (i) reviewed the
Corporate Governance Report of the Company for 2023; and (i)
reviewed the trainings and continuous professional development
undertaken by the Directors and senior management.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
and the senior management of the Company. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approvals
must be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the aforesaid officers.

The Directors may have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary of the Company to ensure
that the board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed. In addition, the Directors may, upon
reasonable request, seek independent professional advice
under appropriate circumstance at the Company’s expense.
The Board shall resolve to provide separate, appropriate,
independent and professional advice to the Directors to assist
the relevant Directors in discharging their duties.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment to
Board meetings and scrutinizing the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision. In
particular, they bring an impartial view to issues relating to the
Group's strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors have extensive academic, professional
and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advice to the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors provide independent
advice on the Group’s business strategy, results and
management to ensure that all interests of Shareholders are
taken into account, and the interests of the Company and its
Shareholders are protected.
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The Board has three independent non-executive Directors
in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, which
requires that every board of directors of a listed issuer must
include at least three independent non-executive directors.
In addition, at least one independent non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, who has appropriate professional
accounting qualifications or financial management expertise
in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board, in
compliance with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has a mechanism in place to ensure independent
views and input are available to the Board: (a) where
appropriate, the Company shall arrange suitable and sufficient
resources to cover any matters relating to the obtaining of an
independent opinion by the Board, including but not limited to
the engagement of a legal team or any other professionals for
such purpose; (b) where appropriate, the Directors shall give
at least three working days’ notice to the company secretary
of the Company to obtain an independent opinion, including
but not limited to engaging a professional team for such
purpose; (c) the Board is required to review its structure, size,
composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) and
diversity policy at least annually to ensure that the composition
of the Board complies with the relevant requirements of the
Listing Rules including maintaining a balanced mix of executive
and non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) so that the Board has a strong element
of independence which can effectively exercise independent
judgment; and (d) if all the independent non-executive
Directors have served on the Board for more than nine years,
the Company should consider to appoint a new independent
non-executive Director at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the said mechanism during the year and considered that it
has been operating effectively and will continue to monitor its
implementation and effectiveness on an annual basis.

Each of the independent non-executive Director has provided
his/her annual confirmation of independence to the Company
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing in preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cashflow for that period.
The Company's accounts are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction
training so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and of his/her duties
and responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
to enrol in professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance and
corporate governance practices organised by professional
bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the CG Code.

All Directors participated in appropriate continuous
professional development and refreshed their knowledge and
skills during the year ended 31 December 2024 for ensuring
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Such professional development was completed by
way of attending briefings, conference, courses, forum and
seminars, teaching, self-reading and participating in business-
related researches which are relevant to the business or
directors’ duties. Each of the Directors has provided a record of
training they received for the year ended 31 December 2024 to
the Company.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
separate and are not performed by the same individual as this
ensures better checks and balances and hence better corporate
governance. Mr. Yao Jiangang is the Chairman of the
Company, and Mr. Choon Hoi Kit Edwin is the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

The Chairman’s responsibility is to oversee the functioning of
the Board and the strategies and policies of the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for monitoring the
daily operation and management of the Company.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Zhihua has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing
from 14 December 2022. Ms. Song Hong has entered a letter
of appointment with the Company without a specific term.
There is no letter of appointment executed by the Company
with each of Mr. Chen Shuai, Mr, Tsang Kwok Wai and Mr.
Ruan Xiaogfeng, and each of them has no fixed term of service
with the Company.

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years in accordance with the Bye-laws.

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board
or as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office until
the next annual general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the (i) Audit Committee, (ii)
Remuneration Committee and (iii) Nomination Committee
with defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees, which explain their respective roles and the
authorities delegated to them by the Board, are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice and other assistance
under appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Company, with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee shall consist of not less than 3 members.
Currently, the Audit Committee consists of two independent
non-executive Directors: Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and Mr. Ruan
Xiaofeng, and one non-executive Director: Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr.
Tsang Kwok Wai is the chairman of Audit Committee.

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to review
the financial reporting process of the Group and its risk
management and internal control systems, oversee the audit
process and perform other duties assigned by the Board and
make recommendations for the Company to improve the
quality of financial information to be disclosed. It also reviews
the annual and interim reports of the Company prior to
approval by the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit
Committee reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and made a recommendation as
regards the re-appointment of the external auditor. In addition,
the Audit Committee, together with management and
independent auditors, have reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters including the
review of the audited results for the year ended 31 December
2023 and the unaudited interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2024 prior to approval by the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, two meetings were
held by the Audit Committee. The attendance record of each
member of the Audit Committee at the meetings of the Audit
Committee is set out below:
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Audit
Committee
Name of Director meetings
ERERS
EEpnE 25
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 2/2
EERELEE
Mr. Chen Shuai 2/2
BoR BIb 55 4
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 2/2
Puielg 5 4

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee shall consist of not less than
two members. Currently, the Remuneration Committee
consists of two independent non-executive Directors: Mr. Ruan
Xiaofeng and Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and one non-executive
Director: Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duty of the Remuneration Committee is to
formulate the remuneration structure and policy of the Group,
to review the remuneration packages of executive Directors
and senior management, including bonuses to ensure that
such remuneration is reasonable and not excessive. Generally,
their remunerations are determined based on their experience
and qualifications, the Group’s performance as well as market
conditions. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the
approach under code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code
to make recommendations to the Board on remuneration
packages of the Directors and the members of senior
management.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Remuneration
Committee has, among other things, reviewed the remuneration
package of the Directors and senior management of the
Group and made recommendation of the remuneration of the
proposed Directors for the Board's approval.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, two meetings
were held by the Remuneration Committee. The attendance
record of each member of the Remuneration Committee at the
meetings of the Remuneration Committee is set out below:
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Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 172
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of one executive
Director: Mr. Yao lJiangang, one non-executive Director: Mr.
Chen Shuai and three independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng and Ms. Song
Hong. Mr. Yao Jiangang is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
once a year and to identify (including not limited to engaging
independent search firm(s) to assist such identification)
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships. The Company has
implemented the following Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”): the Company recognises and embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board, and considers diversity
at Board level as an essential element in maintaining a
competitive advantage. The diversity factors considered by
the Company include but are not limited to skills, experience,
expertise, culture, independence, age and gender. The
Company shall appoint at least one female director. Ms. Wan
Qing and Ms. Song Hong currently serve as Directors of the
Company. In identifying suitable director candidates and
making such recommendations to the Board, the Nomination
Committee would also take into account various aspects of
a candidate, including but not limited to his/her education
background, professional experience, experience with the
relevant industry and past directorships. In addition, the
Company will go to great lengths to achieve gender diversity
when recruiting employees at all levels (including middle and
senior levels), so as to provide suitable successor directors for
the Board when appropriate and ensure gender diversity of the
Board.
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During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed the Board’s structure, size and
composition to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills,
independence and experience appropriate to the requirements
of the business of the Company, reviewed the annual
confirmation of independence submitted by independent non-
executive Directors and assessed their independence. The
Nomination Committee also made recommendation of new
Director candidates for the Board's approval. When identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the
Board, the Nomination Committee will give consideration to
the Board Diversity Policy, and the Board will review the Board
Diversity Policy annually to ensure its effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, two meetings were
held by the Nomination Committee. The attendance record of
each member of the Nomination Committee at the meeting of
the Nomination Committee is set out below:
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Mr. Yao Jiangang 2/2
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Mr. Chen Shuai 2/2
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EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY

For details of the Company’s employee diversity, please refer
to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of this
report.
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AUDITOR

KPMG retired upon conclusion of the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 30 June 2023 (“2023 AGM"), and
McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited (“McMillian
Woods"”) and WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP
("WUYIGE") have been appointed as the overseas and
domestic auditors of the Company, respectively at the 2023
AGM.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in auditor of the
Company during the past three years.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the terms of engagement
of McMillian Woods and WUYIGE, inter alias, (i) the size and
structure as well as the nature and complexity of the business
of the Group, (ii) the relevant audit fees and (iii) the resources
deployed by McMillian Woods and WUYIGE in respect of the
audit of the financial statements of the Group in accordance
with “Guidelines for the Effective Operation of Audit
Committees — Selection, Appointment and Reappointment
of Auditors” published by the Financial Reporting Council on
16 December 2021 and recommended to the Board the re-
appointment of McMillian Woods and WUYIGE as overseas
and domestic auditors of the Company at the 2025 AGM.

A resolution will be submitted to the 2025 AGM to re-appoint
McMillian Woods and WUYIGE as overseas and domestic
auditors of the Company.

The external auditor is refrained from engaging in non-audit
services except for specific approved items, such as review of
interim results of the Group. The Audit Committee reviews the
external auditor’s statutory audit scope and non-audit services
and approves its fees. A remuneration of RMB1,235,000 and
RMB1,365,000 was paid/payable to McMillian Woods and
WUYIGE repectively for the provision of annual audit and
review of interim results services. No other non-audit services
were provided by McMillian Woods and WUYIGE for the year
ended 31 December 2024.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and the
finance department, is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and the Group for each
financial year which shall give a true and fair view of the
financial position, performance and cash flow of the Company
and its subsidiaries for that period. The Directors acknowledge
their responsibilities for preparing the accounts of the
Company and the Group. As at 31 December 2024, the Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of McMillian Woods, the Company's
external auditor, in relation to the financial statements are set
out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in
this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged an external professional company
secretarial services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited
("Uni-1"), to provide compliance and full range of company
secretarial services to the Group in order to assist the Group
to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit
different commercial needs. Ms. Chan Yuen Ying Stella, the
representative of Uni-1, was appointed as the named Company
Secretary with effect from 1 January 2024.

Ms. Wan Qing, an executive Director, is the primary point of
contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, Ms. Chan Yuen Ying Stella had taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training for the year ended 31
December 2024.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound
and effective risk management and internal control systems
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2024, the
Group has complied with the Corporate Governance Code by
establishing appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. Management is responsible for the
design, implementation and monitoring of such systems so
as to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interest,
while the Board oversees management in performing its duties
on an ongoing basis. The Board is also responsible for ensuring
maintenance of proper accounting records to provide reliable
financial information and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations. The main features of the risk management and
internal control systems are described in the sections below:

Risk Management Framework

The Group maintains a risk management framework which
manages the risk associated with its business and operations.
The system comprises the following phases:

(i) Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives;

(ii) Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly; and

(i) Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure
effective communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted during the year
ended 31 December 2024, no risk at a high level was
identified.

TREREE

| B o I N R B 4

ESRATEHARARARERREAX
ZRBEBREAMEZERG -BHE—T N
FH+-_A=+—RLEFE AEEDET
CEERTR BYUBELRBYZARE
BERABEERG -EEERAERTR
2R BRIER UREAEEEE
AERED MEFTREIEEEEEER
BETERE EZTRERRERZ
EMRET R AIR M Al SER IS B R SR FEAR
BT EBADI MOER R EE R NEE
ARG EZHHN T XEEHA:

Bk EEER
AEEEEAREEERE BETRA
EHREAERBZAR - ZFRREUT

B B

(i) W5 BpIERERE BB ERA
EFXERRERZAR

(i) FHE-TEBRZAEERTZE I
FEiAHEREBRES K&

(i) ‘= EERRELEE ERE
EE2ANBBY BB R

)
A

BEAEE-_ZE-_NE+-_A=+—HIt
FRETZ ARG LEBEREMASE

B o

HESHEHEERERLA
“ENEER

59



60

Corporate Governance Report
CEERRE

Internal Control Systems

The Group adopts internal control systems which are
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (“COSQO") framework. The COSO
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The components of the framework are shown as follows:

(i) Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group;

(i) Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed,

(iii) Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives
to mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are
carried out;

(iv) Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the
information needed to carry out day-to-day controls;
and

(v) Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each component of internal control is
present and functioning.

Upon identification of major internal control defects, the
Group shall require the relevant departments to rectify
immediately. For those material defects which cannot be
rectified immediately, the Group will formulate corresponding
rectification plans, with efforts to promote rectification. Based
on the internal control reviews conducted during the year
ended 31 December 2024, no significant control deficiency
was required to be brought to the attention of the Audit
Committee and the Board.
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Internal Audit

The Group has engaged an external professional (the “Internal
Control Consultant”) to assist the Group in carrying out the
Internal Audit (“IA") function for the year ended 31 December
2024. The IA function was independent from the Group’s daily
operation and it assisted the Audit Committee in carrying
out appraisal on the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group. The appraisal
was performed through conducting interviews, collecting
walkthroughs and performing tests of control effectiveness.
The Group has reviewed an IA charter to ensure it has defined
the scope, duties and responsibilities of the IA function and its
reporting protocol.

The Company has also conducted an annual risk assessment
to identify respective strategic risks, operational risks,
financial risks and compliance risks of its major business
segments. Based on the result of the annual risk assessment
and following a risk-oriented methodology audit approach,
the Company has devised a three-year internal audit plan
that prioritized the significance of the risks identified into
annual internal audit projects to assist the Audit Committee
in assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. According to the three-year
internal audit plan approved by the Board, review of the
internal control systems was conducted annually and their
results were reported to the Board via the Audit Committee
afterwards.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for overseeing the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis,
and ensuring review of the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems on an annual basis. Several areas
have been considered during the Board’s oversight and review,
which include but are not limited to (i) the changes in the
nature and extent of significant risks since the latest annual
review; (i) the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its
business and the external environment, and (iii) the scope and
quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of
the internal control systems.
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The Board, through its reviews and the reviews made by
the Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group were effective
and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2024. Such
systems, however, were designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and could only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board also believes that the Company has adequate
resources in terms of internal audit, accounting and
financial reporting functions and in aspects related to the
environmental, social and governance performance and
reporting of the Company, and qualifications and experience
of relevant staff, and also provides sufficient training programs
and budget for the year ended 31 December 2024.

Inside Information

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the
Group also adopts and implements inside information policy
and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been
taken by the Group from time to time to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent breach of disclosure requirements
in relation to the Group, which include:

(i) The access of information is restricted to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis.
Employees who are in possession of inside information
are fully conversant with their obligations to preserve
confidentiality;

(ii) Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations;

(i)  The Executive Directors are designated persons who
speak on behalf of the Company when communicating
with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors; and

(iv)  Unless the information falls within the “Safe Harbour”,
the Company will disclose such inside information to the
public as soon as practicable.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may declare dividends from time to time. In
proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take into
account, inter alia:

a) the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

b) retained profits and distributable reserves of the Group
and each of the members of the Group;

Q) the level of the Group’s adjusted net debts-to-equity
ratio, return on equity and the relevant financial

covenants;

d) the Group’s current and future operation;

e) any contractual restrictions from the payment of
dividends;
f) any restrictions under applicable laws or regulations;

o) the dividends received from the Group’s subsidiaries and
associates, which in turn will depend on the ability of
those subsidiaries and associates to pay a dividend;

h) the Group’s expected working capital requirements;

i) general economic conditions and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the
Group; and

i any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

No dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount
recommended by the Board.

This dividend policy and the declaration and/or payment of
future dividends under this policy are subject to the Board's
continuing determination that this dividend policy and the
declaration and/or payment of dividends would be in the best
interests of the Group and the Company’s shareholders, and
are in compliance with the bye-laws of the Company and
all applicable laws and regulations. The Board endeavours
to maintain a balance between meeting the Company’s
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management
with a sustainable dividend policy.
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The Board will continually review the dividend policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend, modify and/or cancel the dividend policy at any time.
This dividend policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend
and/or in no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend
at any time or from time to time, there can be no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any
given period. Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay
dividends, the form, frequency and amount will depend upon
the abovementioned factors.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, any one or
more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Suites 1106-08, 11th Floor, The Chinese
Bank Building, 61-65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong,
to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition, and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRIES MAY BE PUT TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Suites 1106-08, 11th Floor, The Chinese
Bank Building, 61-65 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.
The company secretary of the Company is responsible for
forwarding communications relating to matters within the
Board’s direct responsibilities to the Board and communications
relating to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions and
inquiries, to the executive Directors of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2024.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.
The Company has established a number of communication
channels to maintain an ongoing dialogue with its
shareholders and to enhance the transparency of the Group.
These include (i) holding annual and special general meetings
to provide a forum for shareholders to communicate directly
with the Board and the Board committees, at which the Board
and the Board committees may also seek for and understand
the advices of shareholders and stakeholders; (ii) distributing
corporate documents and releasing announcements to
disseminate the Group’s latest information to the shareholders;
and (iii) maintaining the Company’s website to provide an
electronic means of communication with the shareholders and
the public.

Shareholders and other interested parties are welcome to
access the Group's information from the Company’'s website
at www.cgrh.com.hk. The Group’s corporate information
including terms of reference of the Board committees, the
Group's financial reports, announcements and circulars are
available on the website. In order to enhance shareholders’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and
development, the Company will continue to improve its
corporate disclosure on the Company’s website and the
communication with its shareholders.

The Company has reviewed the implementation of the above
shareholder communication policy during the reporting period.
The Company believes that such policy is appropriate and
effective given that it has provided an effective channel for
shareholders to express their opinions to the Company and
for the Company to seek for and understand advices from
shareholders and stakeholders.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Overview

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Century Ginwa
Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased
to present the Environmental, Social and Governance
(hereinafter called “ESG") Report (the “Report”) of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as the
“Group” or “we"”) for the year ended 31 December
2024 (the "Reporting Period”). The Report outlines the
policies, sustainability strategies, management approach
and initiatives implemented by the Group and the
performance of the Group in environmental and social
aspects of its business.

Reporting Scope

The Report covers the Group’s businesses in operating
department stores, shopping centers and supermarkets in
Mainland China. During the Reporting Period, there were
no significant changes to the scope of reporting.

Reporting Basis

The Report discloses the required information under the
“comply or explain” provisions of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide as set out in
Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("HKEX"). The relevant provisions and details are set out
at the end of the ESG Report.

Reporting Principles
The Group adheres to the following reporting principles
as the basis for the preparation of the Report.

1. Materiality

The threshold at which ESG issues determined by
the Board are sufficiently important to investors and
other stakeholders of the Group that they should
be reported, details of which are set out in the
sections headed “Stakeholders’ Engagement” and
“Materiality Assessment” below for more details.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)
Reporting Principles (continued)
2. Quantification

The quantified environmental and social key
performance indicators (“KPIs") are disclosed
in the Report to give stakeholders of the Group
a comprehensive picture of the Group's ESG
performance. The information is accompanied by a
narrative, explaining its purposes and impacts.

3. Balance

Every effort has been made in the Report to reflect
the performance of the Group’s ESG activities
impartially and avoid selection, omission or
presentation format that might inappropriately
influence the decision or judgment of the readers of
the Report.

4. Consistency

As far as is reasonably practicable, the Group
has used consistent methodologies to allow for
meaningful comparisons of ESG data over time.

MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

Board Statement

The Board takes overall responsibility for ESG matters and
their integration into the Group’s management approach
and strategies. It guides the management and monitoring
of ESG matters that have been identified as relevant to
the Group, and reviews the progress made against ESG-
related goals and targets.

Report of Chairman

The Group is committed to corporate social responsibility
and balancing environmental, social and economic
benefits. It also aims to balance its business development
with the interests of its key stakeholders and operates its
business in a sustainable manner. To achieve this vision,
the Group has set a sustainability framework that focuses
on environmental protection, resource management,
employee and community well-being and guides its
sustainability efforts to ensure that sustainability elements
are integrated into every business process and all business
decisions.
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BE-HERERKSE

MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Report of Chairman (continued)

Global warming is a major concern of governments
worldwide. As a socially responsible corporate, the Group
is committed to mitigating its environmental impact and
integrating responsible environmental practices into its
businesses. Meanwhile, the Group endeavours to foster a
sense of environmental stewardship within the Company,
with an aim to make joint efforts with employees to build
an environment-friendly and resource-saving enterprise.

Following the removal of quarantine restrictions
worldwide, the economy has been gradually recovering.
However, heightened economic uncertainties in the
globe and Mainland China have led to an increased
market volatility. In addition, the pace of economic
recovery was slower than expected, posing challenges
to the business of the Group. In response to these
challenges, the Group continues to take proactive steps,
including strengthening of its review process on ESG-
related risks and opportunities, adapting to changes
caused by the external environment and continuing
to promote measures to revitalize the business of the
Group. Aside from this, the Group still pays attention
to the employee remuneration and benefits, career
development opportunities and provides a safe working
environment, so that employees can work proactively and
enthusiastically, and realize their self-worth in the home
of “Century Ginwa “. Besides, the Group keeps the initial
aim of embracing corporate social responsibility, actively
participates in public welfare undertakings; continues
to allocate resources to optimise the equipment and
facilities using natural resources and set an example,
respond to the environmental protection measures of
local governments, and promote various environmental
protection activities in shopping malls, shopping centers
and supermarkets, so as to contribute positively to the
global climate change. However, there might be a long
way to fight against the pandemic. The Group hopes
that all of the employees and society will continue to
put unremitting efforts in leading through the crisis
and challenges and make continuous progress towards
sustainable development.
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Report of Chairman (continued)

To achieve this vision, the Board has set a number of
environmental and social KPIs and taken a top-down
approach to disintegrate the KPIs into the functional
departments. The Board not only improved the well-
being of the employees but also urged the employees
to make changes in different areas, such as reducing
greenhouse gas emissions and making good use of
resources. During the Reporting Period, the Group has
made achievements by actively supporting the Group’s
sustainable development strategies and objectives from the
management team and all employees. The relevant scope,
progress and achievements relating to the environmental
and social KPIs are disclosed in the Report.

The Group aims to become the first group army in the
commercial sector in Central and Western China and a
respectable retail enterprise. Going forward, the Group
serves to enhance its business performance through
implementation of sustainable development strategies
and to generate more meaningful long-term value for the
enterprise and its stakeholders.
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BE-HERERKSE

MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Governance Structure

ESG Committee is established and chaired by the Chief
Executive Officer of the Group. The committee members
include representatives from major departments, including
Integrated Management Center, Internal Control & Legal
Department, Brand Development Center, Operations
Management Center and Engineering Management
Center, etc.. The ESG Committee will follow the
requirements of laws and regulations; and to conduct
business following appropriate best practices; like setting
up ESG targets, policies, procedures and guidelines. In
order to promote our Group’s business and the long-term
sustainable development of the local community of our
business locations, we improve our corporate governance,
protect the environment, engage our stakeholders and to
contribute to the society. We have five ESG Task Forces
under the ESG Committee, with keys members from
the related departments assisting the ESG Committee
to supervise and monitor the progress of various ESG
activities, to coordinate in setting up key performance
indicators, to reqgularly assess the effectiveness, and
to hold seminars to enhance the staff awareness in
environmental protection. The Group also collects the
appeal and feedbacks of stakeholders through various
channels. For example, customers, suppliers/brands
and shareholders can make their recommendations via
Operations Management Center, Integrated Management
Center/Brand Development Center, and general meeting
of listed companies. The Group also set up suggestion box
to collect employees’ suggestions which are directly sent
to the management. The management implements the
relevant suggestions after evaluating the feasibility.
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MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Governance Structure (continued)

The terms of reference, organizational structure,
reporting line and members of the ESG Committee are as

follows:

Community and
Shareholders/

Investors Focus Task Force

REEMEEMT A

Integrated Management
Center

REEEADL
e To maintain good
communication with
shareholders and other
stakeholders, and to
enhance shareholders’
value in the long run

e To care for the
community and people
in need; to ensure
that the interests
of the community
are considered in
conducting business
activities

o EREMEMIBHER

RRENER RER
ROREE®R

o BLHERAREA
T HREBEHEE
AR M 2

ESG%E@E’JH%H*%’EI

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee Leader:

Chief Executive Officer

(Secretary of the Committee: Company Secretary of the Group)

BE HERE

THAR
(ZEERE: AANE)

RESEREE:

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee Convenor
BR HERERZEEEEA

Employees and
Occupational
Safety Focus Task Force
ETARZHE A
Integrated Management
Center and
Internal Control & Legal
Department
RREBDLR
AL
To care for our people, o
from recruitment,
training to developing
our employees R
To maintain good
communication and
interactions with the
management team .
To give appropriate
encouragement
and recognition to
employees

To provide a safe
working environment

To prevent briberies,
extortion, frauds and
money laundering

BISIMAR BE o

MER .
SEREGERITNE
BAUED .
HETRTEENSE
&A:r—‘—-

REZEMIERE

BIER R Bk
EEEME

Suppliers
Focus Task Force
fEmET N
Integrated Management
Center and
Brand Development
Center
REBEERLK
mEBRFRD
To pay attention to
product safety from
suppliers

To focus on the
procurement procedures
and the practice in
supplier selection

To maintain good
communication and
interactions with
suppliers and to build
up trust; so as to keep
the good reputation,
integrity and sustainable
development of the
Group

BIftEmEmLEe
BIIRBIZF A M
EREED

BERHRGRIFNE
BARYER UEE
EEMEE FENT
REREE

Customers
Focus Task Force

EFREA

Operations Management
Center

BEEEADL
e To concern about the
customers' service
quality expectations

e To maintain good
communication and
interactions with
customers and to build
up trust; so as to keep
the good reputation,
integrity and sustainable
development of the
Group

e To focus on protecting
our customers' rights
and interests; and their
privacy

o

o BIBERBEELRS

e

o HEFRERIFNER
MEUERE MEESE
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EnER

o BIBBHMEENEP
LB RRE
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Environmental
Focus Task Force
RERER LG
Integrated Management
Center and
Engineering Management
Center
FEEERLR
IREEHDL
e To cultivate a corporate
culture in promoting
energy conservation,
to prevent pollution, to
reduce emissions and to
reduce wastes

e To pay attention to
the environmental
protection related
policies, measures and
effectiveness (including
setting up of KPIs and
performance evaluation)
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BE-HERERKSE

MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Governance Structure (continued)

The Board has appointed an independent consultant
to provide advice on the ESG matters and assist in
collecting data and information for conducting various
analyses and providing improvement recommendations
on ESG performance. The Group has also collected the
views of key stakeholders on ESG matters during daily
operations and conducted a materiality assessment to
identify important ESG issues for the Group, details of
which are disclosed in the sections headed “Stakeholders’
Engagement” and “Materiality Assessment” below. To
effectively lead the ESG process of the Group, the Board
monitors the work of all departments to ensure that
they work closely together to achieve the sustainable
development goals of operational compliance and social
responsibility.

Stakeholders’ Engagement

The Group is committed to maintaining the sustainable
development of its business. While achieving both
economic and social benefits, we actively shoulder
the social responsibilities and uphold the corporate
philosophy of “grace for the times and sincerely
contributing to the society”, and support environmental
protection at the communities where the business
operates. The Group maintains a close tie with
its stakeholders, including government/regulatory
organizations, shareholders/investors, employees,
customers, suppliers, community, etc. and strives to
balance their opinions and interests through constructive
communications in order to determine the directions
of its sustainable development. The Group continues
to identify, understand, assess and determine its
environmental, social and governance risks in response
to the needs and expectations of various above-
mentioned stakeholders, and ensures that the relevant
risk management measures and internal control systems
are operating effectively. The following table shows the
communication channels, management response to the
stakeholders’ expectations and concerns:
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RE HERERRSE

MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL, ZRR - HERERNER
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued) (&)
Stakeholders’ Engagement (continued) BENESHE(E)
Expectations
Stakeholders and concerns Communication channels Management response
BHE HEHRER BERE EEEERE
Government/requlatory > Compliance in > Periodic report/interim > Uphold integrity and compliance in operations
organizations applicable laws and announcement > Pay tax on time, and in return contributing to the
regulations > Correspondence society
> Fulfill tax obligation > Field investigation > Establish comprehensive and effective internal
> (Cooperation > Process business via control system
government website or > Respond to government’s policies and to build a
application harmonious society together
B/ EE R > ETEAMOLEEE > ERgE/BELE > REERRFHAERAER
> BORBER > EREE > REHHARSLE
> BEHE > B AN > RURPEBERHNHBAHER
> FRPNBEAULIEREF > DEBNRRLARERNELE
PERE
Shareholders/investors > Return on > Information disclosed on the > Management possesses relevant experience and
investment HKEX website professional knowledge in business sustainability
> Information > The Company’s official > Ensure transparent and effective communications
transparency website by dispatching information on the websites of
> Corporate > Annual general meeting and HKEX and the Company
governance system other shareholders’ meetings > Set up an investor hotline to maintain close and
effective communication with the market and
investors
> (ontinue to improve the internal control system
and risk management
BE/BREE > REBH > RARAIRBRABERE: > EREABRWEARAZENG BRREBOTE
> FALNHES 58 el
> RERERER > AQRA@ > FRREXARARRMEERERER BRE
> RRAEREMBREEE AERERER
> RERZHEAGRIBATSRREZZUREN
BB
> BNTERENHERERERER
Employees > Labor rights > Staff activities > Set up contractual obligations to protect labor
> Career development > Employee performance rights
> Compensation and evaluation > Establish a fair, reasonable and competitive
welfare > Induction and on the job remuneration scheme
> Health and training > Pay attention to occupational health and safety
workplace safety > Internal meetings and > QOrganize leisure activities to enhance cohesion
> Care for employees announcements
> (Contact via email, employees’
mail box, phone and
communication applications
> Employees’ reasonable
recommendation
management measures
BT > BI1#G > BIE® > HEENEEURES TR
> FRUR > BIENER > BURT ABNABEINGHER
> RFEMET > ABHEEBIE > TEBRERERZ2
> BERZ2 > AHfgEkBE > BRETEBERERD
> HEET > BASFHE BIHM-
BEEREARTEA
> BIRBILEBAERIE
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RIBE HE8RE

A

II. MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Stakeholders’ Engagement (continued)

Stakeholders
BHE

Brands/Consumers

RiEE,/ HEE

Expectations
and concerns

BMEHERR

> Integrity and
contractual
obligation

> High quality
products

> Intimate service
and experience

> Privacy protection

HEED
;DD gﬁﬂﬂ
B RBEER
RERLRE

vvav
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Communication channels

BERE

>
>

YYVYVY

Business visit

Through Brand Development
Center/Operations
Management Center
Contact via email and phone

call

Customer satisfaction survey
and customer comment cards
Advertising media

BHED

BERRTL,/BEERRL
BRETBHREARS

EPMEEHBEREEERR
BEEES

i3

%5%%&%5&‘&’9%@
(4&)
BHESR(E)

Management response
EEERE

>
>

VV

vy

Ensure proper contractual obligations are in place
Actively communicate with the brands to set
a reasonable payment settlement schedule, to
reach mutual agreement with partners and gain
confidence from brands, and to create favorable
condition for the company and stakeholders
working together
Continuously introduce quality brands and
enhance service quality to satisfy customers; and
focus on shop positioning so as to make each
store have its own characteristics and to reduce
competition among shops having the same brands,
and to achieve virtuous cycle of differentiated
operations
Establish uniform labels and set prices for
products, and strive to eliminate fake and inferior
products to protect consumers’ rights and interests
Establish communication channels through
interviews, phone surveys, hotline and complaint
mailboxes
Organize customer satisfaction survey to improve
service quality
Develop a comprehensive members' information
confidentiality mechanism and carry out regular
information system maintenance
HRETANAEE
BREAREHER SBOTHERPR HXE
Wﬁﬁaﬂﬁ ﬁimﬁﬁmhm BEEH R
FERATBRAENR T BE
%E%A@Eﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ%%gﬁuﬁﬁgﬁ'ﬁ
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RE HERERRSE

MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL, ZRE HERERNEE
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued) (&)
Stakeholders’ Engagement (continued) EHhESHE(EZ)
Expectations
Stakeholders and concerns Communication channels Management response
BHE HEHRER BERE EEEERE
Suppliers > Stable demand > Business visit > Ensure proper contractual obligations are in place
> Fair and open tender > Contact via email and > Establish policy and procedures in supply chain
> Corporate reputation phone call management
> Through Procurement > Establish and maintain strong and long-term
Center/Brand Development relationship with suppliers, to build up confidence
Center of suppliers, and to create a good situation in
which all interested parties and the company work
together

> Strengthen the procurement management system
continuously and brand business system

HER > FREE > BHFED > BRETAOER
> RYRAFAR > RBTTBHREERS > HIEHEEERNBRNIEF
> (EEFEE > REPL/ REERDPL > REFAERANSERR 2UHEENED
BEENGEFERRBALENRTBE
> BEMBRESEHNERREREHE
Community > Environmental > The Company’s official > Pay attention to climate change
protection website and information > Continuously invest resources in environmental
> Reduce waste publicity website of protection
generation government department > Actively promote the sorting of garbage
> Community > Community activities > Encourage employees to actively participate in
contribution > Promotional activities charitable activities and voluntary services
> Economic > Publicity booths and posters > Maintain good and stable financial performance
development and business growth
> Respond to government’s appeal of stimulating
business growth so as to drive the economic
development of the community
HE > RIERE > ARAMEBRBGHMAESR > BIREEL
> RLBEMHNEL NN > FERBHRREIERALR
> HE2H > HREH > BEREFNRHENTIE
> REER > RH#HEE > BEETIRG2EEEEYNERRE
> SEEMLNER > BRRFNFBERENEBLR
> BEFATE RASSERHEE THLEMN

TERR
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BRRE HERERBRKE

II. MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Materiality Assessment

During the Reporting Period, the Group held discussions
with the management and conducted materiality
assessment through various channels to identify ESG
issues in which both the Group and its key stakeholders
are interested and assessed the level of concern as
viewed by them so as to select the relatively important
ESG issues. For the materiality assessment, the Group has
adopted the following three processes:

BRETRERNBTR

stakeholders' engagement

EEHEMESGER

ZToRR HERERNER
(%)
ERMFME
R¥EHA - A K EHEE R EETT
mREBTRRE ETEEEN
i I EBRMHEERNEEMEL
MRE HENERER BALE
THEBRENEREE KMmERH
HEEZMESGHEE - HNEZ N
il AEBERIUA T = ERE:

e Through diverse channels and internal discussions
e Examines and adopts the ESG issues of concern the past

BELFHBERNEL2EEHRFTRINVESCER

e Draws attention to emerging ESG issues

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Synthesizes, analyzes and evaluates the views of all parties to
identify and prioritize potential and important issues

Fa AMRFESHIER NHAEEEZNER YANSE
BEI LB R

Develops materiality matrix based on the importance of the issue
to the Group and its key stakeholders
REZREARERIERNENERRERRERIEERE

Interacts with the management team to validate the materiality
assessment and ensure that these issues are aligned with the
sustainable development direction sought by the Group
HEREKLY URBEEZMAGER BRELFBELE
ESRNATHERRT R

Reports the materiality assessment to the Board and makes the
required disclosures in the ESG Report
BELAENERUTLERNETGER YRESCHREET
fEPT R # I BR



MANAGEMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (continued)

Materiality Assessment (continued)

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BB -#HE8K

BRE -#HERER
(%)

EREE

HEE

EE'IE?WE (%)

Materiality assessment helps the Group to ensure its

business objectives and development direction are
in line with the expectations and requirements of its
stakeholders. The matters of concern of the Group and

BE 74

shareholders are presented in the following materiality

matrix:

Importance to Stakeholders

HEIENEEH

High

Medium

Low

@

18

Materiality Matrix
BEENEE

4k 7/]

THER

ZHFFEAPAREEERERER
mERNENRERENR NE
B A0 BT RO B FIRIG HI R A
MERERE [E A -

@ Anti-discrimination & Talent management > Customers' satisfaction
@ Labor rights protection & Staff training and > Product and service quality
promotion > Anti-corruption
& Staff compensation > Stimulation of
and welfare consumption
> Protection of the
people’s livelihoods
* TR o AAEE > EPREE
& RIEAR & ETIEIEET > BmERBEE
& STHMEREN > RES
> RIFEE
> RAERRE
<> Greenhouse gas emissions | > Operational Compliance
<> Energy consumption > Customers' privacy
@ Occupational health and measures and protection
safety > Suppliers management
> Community involvement
> Intellectual property rights
$ RERBHMN > 2EASH
< BIREEA > REZPEML
. H&%@Eﬁéﬁiﬁ’i > HEmER
> Z_IJ:E ///\
> HBEE
@ Preventive measures for <> Water resources utilization
child and forced labor
<> Exhaust air emission
<> Sewage discharge
<> Generation of non-
hazardous wastes
& BHETIRAEHSEIHN $ KERER
=i
& BERHEM
¢ BRER
S BEREVHN
Low Medium High
& H B
Importance to the Group
HAEMNEEH
<> Environmental ¢ Employee > Operation
$ BREFA ¢ ET7M| > ZENH

HESHEHEERERLA
“ENEER
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RE HERERRSE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group strictly complies with the laws and
regulations on environmental protection at operating
locations, including the “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Environmental Protection “, the “Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution”, the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste”, the “Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Noise Pollution”, the
“Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of
China” of Mainland China and the applicable laws and
regulations of the provincial and municipal bureau in
ecology and environment. The Group always paid great
attention to energy conservation, emission reduction
and environmental protection, and adheres to the
management philosophy of sustainable development
to achieve green operation and balanced development;
in response to the global environmental protection
trends, the Group implements energy conservation
and environmental protection measures to mitigate
the environmental risks and negative impacts from the
Group’s business activities. The ESG Committee plays
a critical decision-making role on various measures,
including environmental protection, customers’ service,
supply chain, employees’ and investors’ concerns,
and gradually enhances the Group’s sustainability
performance. Besides, we strictly adhere to the
applicable environmental laws and regulations and
support the government in various actions to protect
the environment, and hopes to fulfill the expectations
and concerns of both the Group and its stakeholders in
business development and environmental protection.

In order to implement the Group’s environmental
protection policy effectively, we have set up Property
Safety and Security Department at each mall for
monitoring the daily environmental and resources
conservation management work within the mall and
office areas; and demand our employees to strictly
follow the Group’s internal guidelines to collect, classify,
store and dispose of wastes; hope to reduce waste and
to avoid resources wastage through various measures.
Please refer to the details in the “Management of
Emissions” and “Management of Resources Utilization”
sections below.
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

1.

Management of Emissions

The Group integrates green operation into our
development strategies to monitor and manage
various environmental factors and their impacts
on the environment, with an aim to build a strong
environmental management system. The Group’s
economic and trading business does not involve
any production activities, and its environmental
impacts mainly comes from use of natural
resources, generation of solid wastes (Please
refer to the “Management of Disposal of Solid
Waste” section below for details) and discharge of
domestic wastewater from office, shopping mall
and supermarket operations, and never produced
any solid or liquid hazardous wastes. The use of
natural resources (including gasoline, diesel, natural
gas and electricity) will produce air pollutants and
greenhouse gases (Please refer to the “Management
of Resource Utilization” section below for details);
and domestic wastewater is discharged to the local
wastewater treatment plant through the urban
wastewater pipeline.

Management of Disposal of Solid Wastes

The solid waste generated by the Group can
be divided into two types, recyclable and non-
recyclable, which mainly include the product
packaging materials (such as plastic bags, wrapping
paper, carton box), slow-moving goods, kitchen
waste, construction and engineering wastes
and domestic garbage. In order to reduce waste
production and the negative impacts on the
environment, we encourage the shops to use bio-
degradable plastic bags and packaging paper, and
strictly implement the plastic bag levy system; we
donate slow-moving consumable goods to the
people in need; encourage employees to take food
at right portions and reduce food waste; re-use
waste spare parts for the repairs and maintenance
of the equipment inside the malls; recycle and
re-use the wooden boards, lights and electrical
equipment removed or discarded by the brands
after shop renovation; post environmental slogans
in the malls and organize activities in the theme
of environmental protection so as to enhance the
public awareness in saving the environment.
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7 5

CHERERRE

Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Management of Disposal of Solid Wastes
(continued)

The Group always advocates the belief in green
environmental protection, actively promotes wastes
classification and resources recycling for relieving the
pressure on the environment and to spread messages
on important measures for improving the living
environment, continue to instill knowledge of wastes
classification to employees and customers and to
explain how people’s behaviors have been damaging
the environment and facilities and to illustrate the
correct way of implementation. The Group has set
up recycle bin for hazardous wastes, kitchen wastes,
recyclable wastes and non-recyclable wastes and to
share wastes recycling knowledge at promotion booths
inside shopping malls; so as to actively promote the
knowledge on wastes recycling and classification, and
to advocate “mixed wastes is garbage and classification
turns wastes into resources”, hope to raise the
proportion of the recyclable wastes; and at the same
time, assist the local government to promote wastes
classification; and to cultivate people’s habit to live a
“low-carbon” life; and produce less wastes.

For the wastes generated from equipment repairs
and maintenance inside the shopping malls and
supermarkets, and the construction wastes produced
by shops when they move in or undergo renovation,
we follow the local urban waste disposal management
requirements to arrange wastes collection by
construction companies or the local government
sanitation department; and illegal dumping of waste
is forbidden. The Group started to collect data on
domestic wastes and domestic wastewater from
shopping malls and offices since March of 2019,
and implemented the relevant measures relating to
the production, disposal and reduction of domestic
wastes and organized environmental protection
trainings at appropriate times to enhance employees’
awareness of environmental protection. With the active
support of our employees, the Group’s environmental
management system has been enhanced progressively,
and will continuously optimize various re-use and
wastes reduction measures. The Group focuses not
only on its own business operations, but also actively
promotes the global sustainable development trend.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

1.

Management of Emissions (continued)

Management of Disposal of Solid Wastes
(continued)

Shopping mall at Saigao re-opened in the first half
of 2023. There were fewer catering merchants
opened, resulting in fewer kitchen waste generated.
As the number of catering merchants gradually
increased, the non-hazardous solid waste generated
by the Group during the Reporting Period increased
by approximately 712.02 tonnes or 41.42% as
compared with the previous year, with a total of
approximately 2,431.14 tonnes of non-hazardous
solid waste generated. As a result, the intensity of
non-hazardous solid waste generated by the Group
this year increased by approximately 18.60% as
compared with the previous year, which is aligned
with the expectation of the Group. Please refer
to the “Summary of Environmental Data and
Performance” section below for the relevant data.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly
abides by the environmental laws and regulations
of the State and local ecology and environmental
bureaus, and the Group did not involve in any
confirmed violations or non-compliance incident
relating to emissions that had a significant impact
on the Group.
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RE HERERRSE

Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization

The Group has been strictly complied with the
“Regulations on Energy Conservation in Shaanxi
Province”, the “Regulations on Energy Conservation
in Public Authority” and the applicable energy-
saving policies and requirements of each city, carried
out the energy-saving and emission-reduction
projects on shopping centers, continuously
enhanced the projects by adopting various measures
to conform with the national environmental
protection policy of energy-saving and emission-
reduction. The Group clearly understands the use
of resources not only increased the operating
costs, but also has impact on the environment.
Therefore, the Group strictly monitors and manages
ESG data. In order to operate as a conservation-
oriented enterprise, green management is
implemented throughout the Group to correct
our wasteful behavior in daily work and living.
Besides, we have also established “Employees’
Suggestion Rationalization Management Measures”
to provide direct communication channel between
employees and the management in order to
advocate employees to participate in operation
management. We hope that employees can raise
up different effective recommendations relating to
their familiar working environment and to formulate
efficient energy-saving and emission-reduction
policy, further promote and implement measures
in energy-saving, emission-reduction and efficient
use of resources, thereby reducing operating costs,
creating publicity and atmosphere of energy-saving
and emission-reduction in the working environment,
and minimizing the Group’s negative impact on the
environment.
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RE HERERRSE

Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Diesel, Gasoline and Natural
Gas Consumption

Diesel and gasoline fuel-based vehicles are mainly
used for guest pick-up, business trips and materials
transportation. We analyze the monthly fuel
consumption data to regulate our employees on
the usage of vehicles. If abnormalities are found,
the vehicle administrators are required to provide
explanation. Drivers must plan the routes before using
the vehicles and use the shortest route and the fastest
way to reach the destination. We also require the
driver to stop the engine to prevent engines idling;
conduct regular repairs and maintenance to reduce
extra fuel consumption and waste gas emissions due
to part failure. Besides, we also promote and publicize
the “low carbon travel” emission-reduction measures,
encourage employees to use public transportations
or the shared bikes within the urban area to reduce
use of vehicles, thereby reducing emissions and
greenhouse gas. We hope the employees could deliver
the message of “Living Green” to their family and
friends; and to motivate more people to build an
ecological civilization together.

The drop in the sales of supermarkets during the
year resulted in less delivery services. Therefore,
the consumption of diesel of the Group during
the Reporting Period decreased by approximately
1,225.08 liters or31.60% as compared with
the previous year, with a total of approximately
2,651.39 liters of diesel consumed. Due to the drop
in the frequency of vehicles for business reception
during the year, the consumption of gasoline of
the Group during the Reporting Period decreased
by approximately 1,680.36 liters or 26.85% as
compared with the previous year, with a total of
4,578.57 liters of gasoline consumed.

The Group set targets at the beginning of the
Reporting Period to decrease the consumption
intensity for diesel and gasoline by 30%, and
this year's targets have been achieved. Please
refer to the below table and the “Summary of
Environmental Data and Performance” section
below for the relevant data.
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Diesel, Gasoline and Natural
Gas Consumption (continued)

Natural gas is mainly used in heating. We stipulate
that the heating system could only be used when
temperature fell below certain degree so as to avoid
over-usage or waste of natural gas due to the use
of heating system under inappropriate temperature.
During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed
approximately 37,008.00 cubic meters (“m3")
of natural gas, representing a decrease of
approximately 79.00 m3 or 0.21% as compared with
the previous year.

The Group set a target at the beginning of the
Reporting Period to keep the consumption intensity
1 for natural gas constant, and this year's target
has been achieved. Please refer to the below table
and the “Summary of Environmental Data and
Performance” section below for the relevant data.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s use of
energy and Scope 1 greenhouse gas emitted are as
follows:

= BRERE(E

2024
2024FE
co,
equivalent
emissions
Consumption (Tonnes)
8 (4774
EE¥HE
FHRE ()
Direct Use of Energy:
HEEARER:
Diesel 2,651.39 Liters 7.35
g om AFH
Gasoline 4,578.57 Liters 12.40
U AR
Natural Gas 37,008.00 m3 67.78
RIRR, SR
Greenhouse Gas Emission 87.53
BEREHHMEE
Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity 2 0.30

BEREBHHERE?
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Diesel, Gasoline and Natural
Gas Consumption (continued)

Notes:

1 Natural gas is only used in one of the shops of the
supermarket at Xianyang. The consumption intensity
for natural gas referred here is calculated based
on the floor area of this shop of the supermarket
at Xianyang instead of the total floor area of the
Group.

2 The Group’s greenhouse gas emission intensity is
calculated based on 0.001 square meters (m?) of the
floor area of the shopping malls and offices. During
the Reporting Period, there was no significant
expansions in the shopping malls, supermarkets and
offices nor relocation or demolition project related
to the business.

3 Part of last year’s comparative figures are restated to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

Management of Electricity Consumption

The Group has always concerned about the impact
of its business operations on the environment.
However, due to the nature of our business, high
demand of electricity consumption in shopping
malls, mainly used in lighting and air-conditioning.
In order to balance the energy-saving and emission-
reduction target and satisfying the customers’
needs, we strengthen the management of electricity
use within malls and the publicizing effort of
energy-saving and emission-reduction in various
aspects. We hope to maximize the efficiency in
electricity use, and at the same time, build up habit
in energy conservation in our business environment.
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

For the management of lighting system, Property
Safety and Security Department strictly controls
the electricity consumption during renovation of
new brands and the existing brands, controls the
use of high-energy lighting, and at the same time,
recommend the use of LED energy-saving lighting.
The brands have to control their electricity load, and
turn off the lights when there is no one in the shops.
We conduct detailed inspection and acceptance
procedures on different aspects, such as industrial art,
fire prevention, safety, design, resources and energy
consumption when the renovation is completed.
These measures can effectively control the energy
consumption of the brands in future operation. For
the electricity management of existing brands and
the public areas of the malls, other than continue
to request the brands to use LED energy-saving
lighting, we also adopt various electricity conservation
measures, for example, we only switch on the
monitoring lights and emergency lights during non-
business hours; the brands must apply in writing
and pay the extra electricity charges if they demand
additional electricity during non-business hours. We
will not provide additional electricity if the brands or
external units did not submit the application and pay
the extra electricity charges. We implement regional
lighting arrangements, and turn off unnecessary lights
in some areas, adjust the running time of the escalator
to avoid unnecessary wastage, thereby reducing the
electricity consumption from lighting in the malls.
Apart from electricity use for lighting, supermarkets
need to store a variety of fresh food and goods in
24-hour freezer facilities for preservation purposes.
These facilities consume huge amounts of electricity,
so we take various measures to reduce electricity
consumption. For example, we carry out targeted
maintenance and repairs for the equipment; plan to
carry out innovative and intelligent management of
the equipment so that the equipment can adjust its
temperature automatically according to the detected
temperature and the product type, and to switch
intelligently its operation mode (such as sleep mode
at night); provide alert or signal in case of equipment
failure so that the responsible departments can carry
out repairs as soon as possible and to reduce the
failure rate of the equipment.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

For the electricity management of air-conditioning,
we conduct regular repair and maintenance
and monitor the operation of air-conditioning
equipment inside the malls, clean the facilities
regularly, and carry out appropriate energy-saving
re-engineering for the facilities, thereby increasing
their output rate, and reducing the additional
electricity consumption from abnormal operation.
Besides, we adopt appropriate measures to control
the temperature, timing difference and air volume
of the air-conditioning equipment, such as, we
reasonably adjust the temperature according to
seasonal change, real-time temperature data feed
from the monitoring system inside the malls and the
feedback from on-site personnel. We also adjust on/
off time of the facilities and the ratio of fresh air
supply, aiming at satisfying the comfort needs of
customers, and at the same time, achieving the goal
of energy-conservation.

The Group has established a strict review and
approval procedure for selecting suppliers of
power facilities and equipment, the suppliers
have to provide qualification certificates and
product manual. We compare the qualification
among different suppliers and evaluate different
criteria about the equipment (including energy
consumption, quality, function, etc.) prior to
purchase so as to reduce unnecessary energy
consumption due to unsuitable facilities and
equipment. Property Safety and Security
Department is responsible for the daily inspection
of offices and shopping malls, and the organization,
planning, execution and inspection of energy-
saving and consumption reduction work, and the
maintenance staff conducts regular repairs and
maintenance on electrical facilities and equipment.
When faults or abnormal operations are found,
immediate repair is carried out to reduce energy
consumption and to avoid accidents. We also
actively conduct energy-saving technological
transformation for electrical appliances to improve
the power efficiency of the unit.
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

For the electricity management in office, we post
different energy-saving promotional slogans in the
offices; increase the natural lighting capacity of the
work place; encourage employees to change their
habit in use of electrical appliances by turning off
the unnecessary lights and electrical appliances
during lunch break and after work, the computer
and the printer are set to automatic sleep mode.
Restricted use of air conditioners according to
seasonal and temperature changes, the temperature
setting of the air conditioner in summer and winter
cannot be lower than 26°C and not higher than
20°C respectively, air conditioner should be turned
off 15 minutes before the end of office hours; doors
and windows must be closed when air conditioners
are turned on.

The Group believes that publicity and education
is also an important part of energy-saving and
emission-reduction work. Within the corporate,
we remind our employees to abide by the energy-
saving measures during the morning assembly, so as
to enhance their awareness in energy-saving, and
hope that employees can understand that everyone
must work together to remain competitive under
the fierce market competition. We also hope that
employees can start from every little thing and are
determinant to avoid resource wastage, thereby
enhancing their environmental protection awareness
in work and life through participation in energy-
saving and emission-reduction activities. Besides,
we post various energy-saving slogans in shopping
malls, use electronic displays to publicize energy-
saving tips. We organize different promotional
activities in shopping malls to educate the public
about the relationship between energy usage and
the sustainability of the planet.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2024

= BRERE(E

2,

ERERANER (&)

EORANEE (&)

UM AERNRERER T E B
IR RGP R TR M ENRE S
BIREE B QISR B AR

BRHBIE BTRE K TR %
BBV EEEEEENE
B BEMRERERTEABE
RIS - ERRIEF TR
LB RREER  EAREE
NAZFHNRERE D BIT LR R
26" CMTREEPR20°C: B AR5
HERANSDERE A B2
I ZE M TRIPI R -

AEEEEEBTHE TR
B TFEZN —IR: REEA
2B PN E e IR HE R
BTERETEEER R8T
BHISMOERNERE I/
PETHBEARNNTIEHFE
T RRBERL N7 BERTT
BEBRMTEBETHRAZ
AR RS HEB TRETE
TR EME  BRER
BERRENRR  URITARE
T VEAIAEE R B IR R B a8 o Uit
S BPIRE S REYH LA
REETRIMEFREIREE  (EHE T
BURFRENE R NER BT
RIS EES  FEULHE KR
TR 5 PR B4 BR AT AR I AV BR AR



Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
2.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Electricity Consumption
(continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed
approximately 39,887.13 megawatt hours
("MWh") of electricity, representing an increase
of approximately 6,096.71 MWh or 18.04% as
compared with the previous year. This is mainly due
to the re-opening of shopping mall at Saigao in the
first half of 2023, and the start of operation of a
new property company in 2024.

At the beginning of the Reporting Period, the Group
set a target to reduce the consumption intensity
for electricity by 1% as compared with the previous
year, and this year’s target has been achieved.
Please refer to the below table and the “Summary
of Environmental Data and Performance” section
below for the relevant data.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s use of
energy and Scope 2 greenhouse gas emitted are as
follows:

2024

20245 &
CO,
equivalent
Consumption emissions
(MWh) (Tonnes)
—S1bhx
ERE EEHHE
(BEBF) (W)

Indirect Use of Energy:

BEfERARR:

Electricity 39,887.13 24,335.41
B

Greenhouse Gas Emission 24,335.41
BEREHMEE
Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity ' 2 82.95

BERMANETE" "
Notes:

1 The Group’s greenhouse gas emission intensity is
calculated based on 0.001 square meters (m?) of the
floor area of the shopping malls and offices. During
the Reporting Period, there was no significant
expansions in the shopping malls, supermarkets and
offices nor relocation or demolition project related
to the business.

2 Last year’s comparative figures are restated to
conform with the current year'’s presentation.
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Water Resources Consumption

The Group uses government-supplied water
sources in shopping malls and offices. Although
we do not encounter any water supply problem
during the Reporting Period, we clearly understand
the importance of water resources for business
operations and living needs; therefore, we
implement various measures to enhance water
resource use efficiency and to avoid wastage.
Property Safety and Security Department of each
mall regularly collects and analyzes the statistical
data of water consumption to monitor the water
usage. We educate and promote the concept of
“green life” to our employees and customers by
way of slogans, training and publicity activities.
We have implemented a number of measures
and retrofitted the equipment in the malls; for
the purpose of reducing water use as long as the
comfort of the customers is not compromised.
For example, adjust the operating frequency of
the water pump motors flexibly so as to minimize
the electricity and water consumption, strengthen
water pipes inspection to avoid running, dripping,
leaking and long flowing water; re-use condensed
water from air-conditioning equipment in the
cooling tower, as the temperature of condensed
water is low enough to reduce the temperature
of the cooling tower less energy is consumed,
and at the same time, reduced the frequency of
water replenishment into the cooling tower; install
water-saving faucets and reasonably adjust the
volume of water outflow; use foot valve manual
flushing to replace automatic induction flushing;
regularly check the water facilities to prevent
water leakage; immediately repair or replace when
problem is found, and keep detailed records. The
Group persistently instilling its employees about the
importance of the conservation culture, and puts up
posters of different resource saving methods in the
office area, and demands the employees to control
the water flow at low level, water tap should be
turned off after use.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2024
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of Water Resources Consumption
(continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed
approximately 279,133.09 m3 of water resources,
representing an increase of approximately
46,895.22 m3 or 20.19% as compared with
the previous year. This is mainly due to the low
occupancy rate in 2023 when the shopping mall at
Saigao was opened in the first half of 2023, and
the start of operation of a new property company in
2024.

At the beginning of the Reporting Period, the Group
set a target to keep the consumption intensity for
water resources constant as compared with the
previous year. The consumption intensity for water
resources this year slightly increased by 0.67% as
compared with the previous year. Please refer to the
below table and the “Summary of Environmental
Data and Performance” section below for the
relevant data.

During the Reporting Period, the Group's use of
water resources is as follows:

Water Resources
KER

Total

BwE

Intensity !

=
£\r§1
Note:

1 The Group’s greenhouse gas emission intensity is
calculated based on 0.001 square meters (m?) of the
floor area of the shopping malls and offices. During
the Reporting Period, there was no significant
expansions in the shopping malls, supermarkets and
offices nor relocation or demolition project related
to the business.
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Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2,

Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of the Use of Packaging Materials

The packaging materials used by the Group
mainly include plastic and paper bags provided
for customers to carry the purchased goods, and
packaging materials used for supermarket stock up
and packaging of fresh food; in order to actively
support the national policy of “Administrative
Measures for the Paid Use of Plastic Bags at
Commodity Retailing Places”, and to achieve
the aims of conserving resources, protecting
the ecological environment, and influencing our
consumers to reduce plastic shopping bags use, to
bring their own shopping bags, and to use more
eco-friendly shopping bags; we have established the
“Regulations for the Use of Eco-friendly Shopping
Bags” to ensure the Company’s environmental-
friendly shopping bags are used appropriately. The
Group restricted salespeople from providing plastic
shopping bags to consumers at below-cost price or
free of charge. We also regularly assign delegated
staff to packaging counters to inspect and carry out
comprehensive monitoring, including assessment of
the application standards, charge level and review
of the packaging materials record. Besides, we have
also promoted the concept of “green lifestyle” to the
public, and posted promotional slogans at various
sales areas, appealed consumers to reduce the use
of plastic products and use more bio-degradable
materials to reduce the impact on the environment
due to incorrect or excessive use of packaging
materials.

During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed
approximately 31.07 tonnes of packaging materials,
representing a decrease of 13.48 tonnes or 30.26%
as compared with the previous year. This was mainly
due to the drop in the sales level and the closure of
two supermarkets in 2024.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

2. Management of Resources Utilization
(continued)

Management of the Use of Packaging Materials
(continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group's use of
packaging materials is as follows:

Packaging Materials

EmFTAeEME
Total

Intensity !

=
L;_éu\J_tX‘F1
Note:

1 The Group’s greenhouse gas emission intensity is
calculated based on 0.001 square meters (m?) of the
floor area of the shopping malls and offices. During
the Reporting Period, there was no significant
expansions in the shopping malls, supermarkets and
offices nor relocation or demolition project related
to the business.

Management of Paper Consumption

In order to reduce the impact of our daily office
operation on the environment, the Group actively
promotes the “Paperless Office” policy, sets up office
automation system to enable each department to
distribute information and documents in electronic
format; paper purchase by the procurement center
and set up an office paper distribution registration
management system; demand employees to check the
format of the document before copying or printing;
reduce the font size of the file to make full use of
the paper without affecting the legibility; fully utilize
paper by reusing single-sided papers, and collect
double-sided printed papers to qualified recycler for
handling. We have also introduced different electronic
payment methods in various department stores
and supermarkets to speed up the implementation
of paperless payment, and to carry out promotion
activities through online digital marketing channels
and reduced use of printed materials.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

3.

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group has always been actively bringing
environmental responsibility into its daily operations,
energy consumption and waste production is
monitored and managed over the years, and
will continue to monitor, identify and disclose
the impact of our business activities on the
environment. The major impact on the environment
and natural resources from shopping malls and
offices operations mainly come from waste gas,
greenhouse gas, wastewater and solid waste
generated from the use of natural resources
(including electricity, natural gas, fuel, water, paper,
etc.), and the construction wastes and domestic
wastes generated from the operation of shopping
malls.

The quarantine restrictions has been removed
and the economy has been gradually recovering.
However, heightened economic uncertainties in
the globe and Mainland China have led to an
increased market volatility. In addition, the pace
of economic recovery was slower than expected,
posing challenges to the business of the Group.
Faced with the decline in profits of physical
retail corporates, the Group’s determination to
environmental protection and green operations
has not diminished. With years of accumulated
environmental protection work experience, we
have effectively reduced operating costs, allowing
us to invest more resources and implement various
measures to increase resource efficiency. Besides,
the Chinese government provides preferential
policies and tax reductions for various industries,
which indirectly provides great support to the
Group’s environmental protection work and reduces
economic pressure. We will continue to advocate
the concept of conservation, manage resource
utilization and enhance the employees’ awareness
of environmental protection.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Ill. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

4.

Climate Change

Climate change is expected to worsen the
frequency and severity of extreme weather events
and cause catastrophic damage. Climate change
is also changing seasonal and annual patterns
of temperature, precipitation and other weather
phenomena, increasing risk of heavy rains, rising
tides and flooding that can cause serious damage
to assets such as buildings, warehouses and
inventories, resulting in economic losses. In the
long term, climate change may lead to rise in the
sea level, long-term changes in climate patterns
of chronic heat waves such as persistent higher
temperature, heavy rainfall, frequent typhoon,
etc.. It may affect employees to go to work and
goods transportation, thereby affecting operation.
Therefore, the Group understands these trends
and the relationship with its businesses can help
the Group to prepare, analyze possible risks and
opportunities, seize the opportunities of potential
benefits and establish the response capacity of the
Group in the long run.

In response to climate change, the Group will
continue to pay attention to climate changes,
continuously review and monitor the implementation
of various measures, constantly optimize measures
based on effectiveness, establish various effective
and appropriate measures with reference to its
operations, implement “green operation, balanced
development” and seek opinions from external
parties whenever needed, for reducing our carbon
footprint. We hope to use this report to share with
the others the results of our efforts and performance
on natural resource conservation, and to convey
environmental protection messages to stakeholders,
so as to achieve a more powerful environmental
protection publicity effect and to work with all walks
of life to mitigate the climate change.
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IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES

Employees are our valuable assets and the key driver
for the Group’s sustainable and long-term business
development. We devote to create a non-discrimination,
equal, harmonious and safe workplace and establish a
comprehensive talent management mechanism. In order to
adhere to our governance philosophy of attracting talent
by means of “compensation”, “relationship”, “career”
and “working platform”, we offer equal opportunities of
advancement and providing commensurate remuneration
and various benefits. The Group has strictly complied
with the relevant laws and regulations on employment
and Labor of Mainland China and Hong Kong, including
the “Constitution of the People’s Republic of China”,
the “Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Law of the People’s Republic of China on Protection of
Minors”, the “Provisions on the Special Protection on
Minor Workers”, the “Provisions on the Prohibition of
Using Child Labor”, the “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Women’s Rights and
Interests”, the “Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, the "Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, the “Social Insurance Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Regulations on Work-Related
Injury Insurances”, the “Trade Union Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Employment Promotion Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Labor Dispute
Mediation and Arbitration Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Protection of Disabled Persons”, the “Individual
Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the
“Implementing Regulations of the Labor Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Prevention
and Treatment of Occupational Diseases Law of the
People’s Republic of China” of Mainland China, and the
“Employment Ordinance”, the “Employees’ Compensation
Ordinance”, the “Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance”, the “Minimum Wage Ordinance”, the “Sex
Discrimination Ordinance”, the “Disability Discrimination
Ordinance”, the “Family Status Discrimination Ordinance”,
the “Race Discrimination Ordinance”, the “Occupational
Safety and Health Ordinance” of Hong Kong and other
local government requirements and standards. Relevant
information will be described in detail in the sections
headed “Employment”, “Health and Safety” and “Labor
Standards” below.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES

1.

Employment

The Group has established an internal management
system which specifies the requirements for
recruitment, promotion, dismissal, working hours, rest
periods, compensation, welfare and other benefits.

Recruitment, Promotion, Dismissal, Equal
Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination

The Group is a fair opportunity employer and
respects personal privacy, and established related
policy in this area. During the recruitment
process, the department head determines the job
positions’ responsibilities and requirements, and
the Human Resources Department assesses and
screens applicants according to the requirements.
We adhere to the merit system principles and fair
recruitment. The appropriate candidates would
be selected based on their morality, knowledge,
abilities and job requirements, and regardless of
their nationality, gender, age, geographical, religious
beliefs. The policy applies to all phases of the
employment relationship, including but not limited
to, hiring, promotion, performance appraisal,
training, personal development and termination.
The Group handles dismissal and compensation in
accordance with the local laws and regulations.

In order to enhance work quality and employee
competencies, the Group conducts periodic
performance appraisal and fairly assess the level
of awards, salary increment and/or promotion
recommendations based on a number of criteria,
including working experience, seniority, knowledge
and skills, performance, contributions, etc.. In the
performance appraisal process, the department head
communicates and discusses with employees about
their achievements, suggest areas for improvement,
and setting objectives and performance indicator
for the next appraisal period, so as to motivate the
employees for continuous improvement and to
develop their potential.

On the basis of equality, the Group hopes to
identify talents who are committed and dedicated
to work, willing to take responsibility, keep learning,
continuously improving their abilities and willing to
move forward with the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES - ERERRBIER (&)
(continued)
1. Employment (continued) 1. EEE)
Recruitment, Promotion, Dismissal, Equal e Ei - fEE FEHE.
Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination STt RRIEER (&)
(continued)
At the end of the Reporting Period, the number RAREHR  REBEMNEE A
and distribution of the Group’s employees are as HROMERIB T :
follows:
2024 2023
20245 E 20235 F!
Gender 1 5l
Male 5514 247 295
Female & 380 472
Employment Type {&{& & 5!
Full-time 25 625 764
Part-time 3% B 2 3
Age Group F# 4 5l
18-30 58 82
31-45 332 424
46-60 236 261
>60 1 -
Geographical Region ith &
Mainland China & Bl A #b, 627 767
During the Reporting Period, the Group's average R|ERN XEERETHE
monthly employee turnover rate is as follows: AMKEMRTER:
2024 20231
2024F & 20235 F'
Gender 4% Bl
Male 5 1% 2.23% 3.17%
Female 2z 2.73% 3.18%
Age Group Fi#z#H 5l
18-30 5.44% 6.06%
31-45 2.25% 3.11%
46-60 2.17% 2.14%
>60 - 50.00%
Geographical Region ith &
Mainland China & Bl A 3, 2.54% 3.17%
Note: Ff ot -
1 Last year's comparative figures are restated to 1 EFEEEEFEINERLER
conform with the current year’s presentation e
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IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

1.

Employment (continued)
Compensation, Welfare and Other Benefits

The Group attracts and retains outstanding talents
with competitive remuneration packages and regularly
assesses their salary levels to ensure it is up to the
market standard. The Group benchmarks the up-to-
date remuneration data in its industry, and strives
to establish a fair, reasonable and competitive
remuneration scheme in order to ensure the pay
level of general staff is competitive in the region
where the Group operates; and the core members
are remunerated competitively within the industry.
Employees’ salaries level is decided based on one's
knowledge, skills, experiences and education
background relevant to their work requirements, and
the Group implements a remuneration system that
consists of basic salary and performance-based bonus.

The employees’ remuneration package includes
basic salary, overtime pay, and so on. Other benefits
include birthday gifts, festive gifts, etc.. We provide
anti-heatstroke and warm drinks and supplies to
special position workers (including security guards,
staff canteen’s employees, parking crews) during
high temperature and cold weather.

Besides, the Group provides social security benefits
for all employees following the requirement of
the local labor laws and social security laws and
regulations. The Group contributes to various social
security schemes (endowment insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, work injury
insurance and maternity insurance) and housing
provident fund for the employees in Mainland
China, and contributes to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.

Working Hours and Rest Periods

The Group pays attention to its employees’ health
and encourages everyone to maintain work-life
balance, and set up employee work hours according
to the requirements of the local labor laws and
protects the employee rights to rest days and
holidays; so that all employees are entitled to rest
days and statutory holidays such as annual leave,
maternity leave, funeral leave and work injury leave
in accordance with the local labor laws.
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7 5

CHERERRE

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

2,

Staff Health and Occupational Safety

The Group pays attention to its employees’ health
and provides a safe work environment so as to
prevent occupational hazards and various incidents
from happening. We sign target responsibility
statement of “Setup Safe Workplace” with each
subsidiary, and formulate safe management
team with reference to the company’s operation.
Management and employees at all levels must
clearly understand their own safety responsibilities
and strictly perform the requirements as stated on
the target responsibility statement.

Safe Business Premises and Working
Environment

The Group establishes a safety management
manual to strengthen its fire safety management
in its business sites, key departments and offices.
Smoking is prohibited for staff and customers;
and we target to keep our shopping centers,
malls, supermarkets and offices smoke-free.
We designated staff to regularly carry out fire
prevention patrol every day at all locations and
critical departments; and keep patrol records. We
take immediate remediation or precautions once fire
hazards are found. In compliance with the local fire
prevention standards and policies, we have stringent
management on fire equipment and facilities; carry
out repairs and maintenance, and keep records.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

2,

Staff Health and Occupational Safety
(continued)

Property Management

In order to regulate the property management
work, we have established property management
policies and procedures. Integrated Management
Center and Engineering Management Center are
responsible for monitoring, inspection, providing
guidance and evaluation work. Employees have
to report to maintenance staff immediately when
repairs (such as electrical equipment, electric power
distribution equipment, facilities at shopping
malls, air-conditioners, drainage equipment, etc.)
are needed for shopping centers, supermarkets
and offices so as to ensure the customers’ and
employees’ safety at these locations. Staff of special
work types (such as electrician, welders) must
possess valid license before they are allowed to
work; for example, to get a fire certificate before
using fire; carpenter should promptly clean up with
the sawdust and shavings after job completion;
inflammables, explosive, chemical or dangerous
materials are prohibited and no storage is allowed,;
paint workers should not blend paints on-site or at
the locations close to fire or electric source; paints
should be covered with lids immediately after use.
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7 5

CHERERRE

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

2,

Staff Health and Occupational Safety
(continued)

Safety Training

Training topics are mainly related to workplace
safety and occupational health. The Group raises
its employees’ safety awareness by providing
appropriate occupational health and safety training
to introduce the corporate development plan,
enhance their awareness on safety and continuously
strengthen their consciousness, improve their
professional skills, especially for those job positions
under significant potential safety hazards, and enable
them to perform their duties in a safe environment.
Employees have to report to the management
immediately when incident occurs or aware of any
potential hazards. Safety education and training work
plays an important role to ensure the workplace is
safe. New hires must receive safety training prior to
put into work. This is to make sure that staff have the
necessary safety knowledge in their position; familiar
and able to master the safety techniques required.
Key and special positions (such as fire control center)
have to take professional training and pass the
examination before they are assigned to take up the
role. Firefighters have to be familiar with and master
the use of various types of fire prevention facilities
to ensure that they can operate with the equipment
for fighting fire. During the Reporting Period, we
organized various fire safety training activities.

During the Reporting Period, the number of lost
days due to work injury are as follows:

Lost Days Due to Work Injury
EILBERXIERR

There was no work-related fatality occurred in each
of the past three years (including the Reporting
Period) within the Group.

Note:

1 Last year’s comparative figures are restated to
conform with the current year’s presentation
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IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

3.

Staff Development and Training

In order to align the staff career development with
its long-term corporate business plan, the Group
sets up staff training polices with reference to the
departmental human resources needs. The Human
Resources Department established a comprehensive
staff training plan with an aim to build an excellent,
well-trained and responsible corporate team. This
can enhance the staff's knowledge and management
capabilities and improve their work ability,
performance and efficiency, and raise their enthusiasm
in work to activate team spirit.

New hires have to participate in induction training
and pass the assessment. The training topics
include corporate culture, site management, sales
skills, membership policies, service etiquette and
skills, quality awareness, fire safety (on-site public
facilities). On top of providing foundation training,
we also provide skills advancement, professional
and management training to ensure that staff
possess professional theory and knowledge, and
new knowledge for overcoming challenges in order
to lay a solid foundation for long-term development
of employees and the Group.

During the Reporting Period, in addition to the new
hire induction training, we also organized various
training programmes related to corporate management,
customer service, finance, procurement, human
resources, employees’ health and work safety (please
refer to “Health and Safety” section above for details
of employees’ health and work safety), etc. The training
topics include corporate culture training, efficient team
development, contract management methods, retail
market insights in the new consumer era, business
etiquette, one-day work flow training, expense
management methods and expense reimbursement
precautions training, procurement management
methods, attendance management system, team
cohesion workshops, etc. In order to achieve better
results from organizing training programmes, employees
are asked to provide feedback and satisfaction level
upon completion of training programmes and serve as
reference for next year’s training plan.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES - EBERBIER (&)
(continued)
3. Staff Development and Training (continued) 3. EIRENIEINNE)

During the Reporting Period, the percentage of the RBEHRN REEBNTINE T

Group's employees trained ' is as follows: BoOlTIER:

2024 20233
20245 F 2023F &3

Gender % 5l

Male 551 27.76% 29.29%

Female Z 1t 57.00% 70.96%

Employee Category B4k 4 I

Senior management = 4 & 12 B 33.33% 94.59%

Middle management F & & 12 [ 55.88% 63.57%

Ordinary staff @8 T 44.92% 52.06%

During the Reporting Period, the average training RIEHR - KEBREEH Y

hours per the Group's employee? are as follows: A= (N

2024 20233
20245 F 2023F &3
(Hours) (Hours)
(/NEF) (/INEF)

Gender % Bl

Male 55 1% 1.88 3.26

Female Z 1t 5.22 10.43

Employee Category B 4% 48 Al

Senior management = 4 & 12 B 1.72 51.88

Middle management /£ & 1% [ 7.47 6.75

Ordinary staff @8 T 3.53 6.02

Notes: Bt -

1 “The percentage of the Group’s employees trained” 1 [FINETHS ] ZIENE
refers to the number of Group’s employees trained BERMERATIE T A
within the Reporting Period divided by the sum of UREBEERS T AZRRE
Group’s number of employees at the end of the EHIRBEBL S T A B 487 -

Reporting Period and the number of departing
employees within the Reporting Period.

1 04 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

3.

Staff Development and Training (continued)

Notes: (continued)

2 “The average training hours per the Group’s
employee” refers to the number of training hours
provided by the Group to its employees within the
Reporting Period divided by the sum of Group’s
number of employees at the end of the Reporting
Period and the number of departing employees
within the Reporting Period.

3 Last year’s comparative figures are restated to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

Labor Standards

The Group cherishes human rights and protects
labor rights and interests, and does not allow to hire
child labor and forced labor. The Human Resources
Department of the Group conducts background
checks and reference checks in its hiring process to
prevent any child labor. Besides, the Group has also
implemented various measures to prevent any forms
of forced labor, including prisoners, indentured
servitude, bonded labor. For example, labor contract
is signed by the employee on a fair and voluntary
basis, ensure employees do not need to bear any
onboarding costs, never deduct wages, benefits
or property of employees, detention of employee’s
identity card or other identification documents
is strictly prohibited, any form of physical abuse,
assault, body search or insult, or forcing an
employee to work by means of violence, threat
or unlawful restriction of personal freedom are all
forbidden. Employees’ consent for work overtime
is required to avoid involuntary overtime work, and
the employees are compensated as appropriate
in accordance with the applicable labor laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not involve in any violation of the laws and
regulations related to the child and forced labor.
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7 5

CHERERRE

IV. EMPLOYMENT AND LABOR PRACTICES
(continued)

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not involve
in any non-compliance incidents relating to employment,
health and safety, and labor standards that have
significant impact on the Group.

OPERATING PRACTICES
1.

Supply Chain Management

The Group conveys its concern on environmental
issues to its suppliers and business partners, and
expects them to implement similar practices. The
Group also serves to maintain long-term, stable
and strategic cooperative relationships with leading
suppliers, and co-develops with its suppliers on the
basis of equality and win-win situation.

We have established procurement management
measures and procurement management implementation
rules to strictly control and monitor the procurement
process relating to materials, engineering work
and services. We have set up strict processes and
requirements in respect of the management of
approved suppliers, procurement methods, quality
improvement, procurement contract, etc.. in order
to ensure the procurement processes are carried
out following the principles of fairness, justice,
openness, effectiveness, integrity and ethics, and
to enhance efficiency and ensure good product
and service quality. The centralized procurement
team is responsible for establishing procurement
policy and carrying out daily procurement work. The
audit team conducts qualification evaluation and
reviews the procurement process. The supervision
team monitors the compliance of procurement
process, handles reports and appeals relating to the
procurement process, corrects violated behaviors
and penalizes the employees for breaches.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2024
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

1.

Supply Chain Management (continued)

To accept new suppliers, we will pay visits to their
business sites, and evaluate their certifications,
internal management policies documents, work
manual, operational status, etc. to make sure
that they possess the capabilities in fulfilling the
obligations. We also establish strict evaluation
procedures for renewal of merchandise suppliers,
and regularly compile statistics and review
the performance of our suppliers, assess their
capability, business status and operational results;
in order to grasp the product sales situations and
make appropriate adjustment to our strategies.
The evaluation includes reviewing of their
market position, their overall capability, product
quality, supply performance, sales performance,
quality service, business results; and conduct a
comprehensive evaluation based on a combination
of scores and text comments. The evaluation result
is sent to management to ensure that the selected
suppliers are competitive and possess recognized
qualifications and good internal control system,
stable quality, on-time delivery, laws and regulations
compliance. We have established policies and
procedures in supply chain management and
provided various reporting channels for employees,
suppliers, customers and other business partners
to report any violations and suspected abuse one’s
authority for own interest. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not have significant issues
relating to violations in this respect.
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CHERERRE

V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

1.

Supply Chain Management (continued)

During the Reporting Period, the number and
geographical distribution of the main suppliers that
have business with the Group are as follows:

Mainland China A B (A
Hong Kong & /&
Oversea /&4h

Note:

1 Last year’s comparative figures are restated to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

Product and Service Responsibility

The Group realizes that the department store and
shopping center business not only need to guarantee
high-quality goods, but also need to provide
customers with high-quality services and establish
good corporate image. Therefore, we follow the
operating strategies and goals of each operating
location, and observe the requirements of laws and
regulations, market conditions, customers’ needs and
expectations and other information to establish our
policy relating to quality. The Group pays attention to
customers’ needs, wins customers’ confidence with
high-quality and distinctive products; cares about
customers’ feelings, provides services that exceed
customers’ expectations, and creates surprises for
customers; protect its own image, promotes business
innovation, and insists on adopting innovative
methods to enhance customers’ service experience;
focus on trends; while leading the trend and
advocating consumer spending on the mainstream
culture, we also pay attention to the customers’
experience. Every department, every employee of the
Group, everything they did, and every word they said,
altogether built the “Century Ginwa” brand. Both
the front-line employees and back-office personnel
uphold the Group’s core value of “To do the best, and
never change “, consistently implement each quality
policy, provide customers with high-quality services
and products, and instill the thoughts of “our action is
customers’ needs driven” among employees, so as to
achieve a first-class enterprise brand image.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2,

Product and Service Responsibility (continued)
Customer Service

In order to build up an image of excellent
service, we established employees’ handbook to
strictly require our staff to pay attention to their
appearance, phone manner, reception etiquette,
conduct and behavior, dressing, job descriptions and
requirements, and service greetings, etc. We have
established service quality monitoring system to
accurately evaluate the company’s service quality, to
promptly remediate problems found, and to provide
customers with satisfactory services meeting their
needs. When serving customers, every employee
must abide by the Group’s professional ethics, serve
customers with sincerity, respect customers’ national
customs and religious beliefs, and should not judge
people by appearance or comment on customers.

During the Reporting Period, the number of
products and service related complaints received are
as follows:

Complaints received £ % 8% 5F

Product Quality

The Group strictly implements the price policy, hoping
to achieve “Fair trade, genuine products at fair price,
and adequate measurement”. In order to strengthen
the quality management of merchandise and maintain
the reputation of the malls, we have established the
“Merchandise Quality Control Regulations” according
to the national product safety standards. Before
each type of merchandise are placed on the counter,
the relevant departments have to check and accept
the brand products according to the acceptance
standards, and the supervisory departments monitors
the merchandise acceptance process including the
appearance, shelf life, labels, safety, instructions for
use, etc., to ensure the products provided by the
suppliers comply with the national standards and our
requirements, and at the same time, to prevent the
inflow of fake or inferior merchandise and to protect
the legitimate rights and interests of consumers.

7 5
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RE HERERRSE

V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2,

Product and Service Responsibility (continued)
Quality of Brand

In order to continuously strengthen the brand
products quality monitoring, to maintain our
reputation, to eliminate fake and shoddy goods,
and to protect the consumer rights and interests
by the Group; we follow the applicable local laws
and regulations in brands and goods selection;
and monitor and manage closely the brands and
suppliers that we work with. We also establish
supplier renewal system to ensure that the suppliers’
merchandises are continuously keeping at high
quality.

Customers’ Complaints

Besides, continuous improvement is one of the
key principles of the Group's quality management.
We actively seek various opportunities to improve
the quality of products and services, correct and
reduce the adverse impact on the Group, to meet
customer requirements. We, from time to time,
conduct customer satisfactory survey to obtain
feedbacks on our malls’ reputation, merchandise
and service quality, shopping environment, service
facilities, goods pricing, etc. in the form of
phone calls and on-site visit. We regularly review
the number of customers’ complaints received,
analyze and evaluate our customers’ comments
and suggestions; and to formulate improvement
plan to enhance our service quality. We remind our
employees of the service image requirements and
customers’ feedback during morning assembly. We
also use the customers’ complaints as case sharing
and employee training materials to strengthen
the responsiveness of employees to customers’
complaints and to give the customer better
impression.

Recall of Merchandises

During the Reporting Period, the Group has no
product sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

2,

Product and Service Responsibility (continued)
Intellectual Property Rights and Portrait Rights

The daily operations of the Group in shopping malls
often involve the use of the others’ intellectual
property rights and portrait rights. In order to
prevent infringement behaviors, we have established
“Management Regulations Involving the Use of
Others’ Intellectual Property Rights and Portrait
Rights in Propaganda”, strictly regulate the pictures,
celebrities portraits, copyrighted emoticons, text
materials, fonts, video and audiovisual materials used
by us and brand owners in promotion inside and
outside the shopping malls, and through different
media. Any promotion without the authorization from
the owners are strictly prohibited. We also regularly
organize training relating to the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Advertising”, the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Copyright” and the
applicable laws to strengthen the professional skills
and litigation awareness of the employees.

Customers’ Data Privacy

In order to strengthen our connection with customers,
we have set up membership system since 2000,
member services and concessions are given by member
class; a customer service consultant is assigned to
each of our senior members and focus on meeting the
customer's personal preferences and needs; and we
become the pilot enterprise in the Northwest Region.
Confidentiality is one of the Group’s core values. We
set up management policies relating to information
security, information system network, set up access
right with information system to handle and store
customers’ information diligently and confidentially, and
to protect customers’ privacy. All employees are strictly
prohibited to disclose any such information to third
parties without proper authority unless there is a legal
or professional right or duty to do so.

Compliance

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s products
and services did not involve in significant issues
relating to violations nor did the Group receive
any complaints concerning breaches of customer
privacy, loss of customer data, intellectual property
rights and portrait rights.
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7 5

CHERERRE

V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

3.

Anti-corruption

Maintaining an ethical working environment is one
of the Group’s core values. We have adopted a
zero-tolerance approach for all kinds of corruption,
bribery and extortion situation. To comply with the
“Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” enforced
by the Hong Kong Independent Commission
Against Corruption and other applicable laws and
regulations, we set up “Anti-fraud and Reporting
and Complaint Management Regulations” and
“Employee Integrity Regulations” to regulate the
conduct of employees. Offenders who request
and accept bribes, obtain other illegal interests
are heavily penalized, including termination of
employment contracts, sent to the judicial authority
(if violating local laws and regulations), and so on.
Management includes fraud risk assessment in its
annual enterprise risk assessment. Management
identifies and assesses the significance and
likelihood of fraud risks at the corporate level,
business unit level and major account level. Each
department establishes internal anti-fraud control
measures, including approval, authorization,
verification, checking, division of responsibilities,
performance review and protection of company’s
asset security. The Group conducts background
checks on personnel to be hired or promoted
to important positions, such as educational
background, work experience, criminal record, etc
to minimize the fraud risk. In addition, the Group
effectively communicates anti-fraud policies and
procedures and related measures to employees
in various forms (such as employee handbook,
company rules and regulations, publicity or intranet
announcements, etc.), and organizes employee
training on relevant laws and regulations and
professional ethics standards to enable employees
to understand the concepts involved in the code
of conduct. All employees must be aware of the
company’s serious attitude towards preventing
fraud and their own responsibilities in anti-fraud,
and consciously strive to improve their anti-fraud
knowledge and skills.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE HERERRSE

V. OPERATING PRACTICES (continued) - EEEM (E)

3. Anti-corruption (continued)

We bring the disciplinary monitoring work in the
business process, ensure that there are channels
(including for reporting boxes, email and hotline)
for reporting suspected cases of obtaining personal
interests in carrying out one's job duties, briberies,
extortion, fraud, money laundering in breach of
policies, regulations, and laws in strict confidence to
the Internal Control and Legal Department. We also set
up suggestion box and reward employees who make
good recommendations. We sign the anti-corruption
agreements with suppliers. During the procurement
and bidding processes, the Internal Control and Legal
Department participates in the procurement and
bidding work to monitor the compliance of each
department (such as bribery, receiving gifts and mis-
behavior in the bidding process, etc.); the Internal
Control and Legal Department also participates in the
engineering work inspection process, and is responsible
for monitoring whether the engineering companies
are authorized, their employees’ qualification, whether
the equipment is consistent with the contract terms,
and whether the company has executed the inspection
according to the process, and so on. During the
Reporting Period, the Group or its employees did not
involve in any litigation cases of corruption.

IV. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to building the corporate culture
of “open and creative, win-win, grace for the times and
sincerely contributing to the society”, advocate a green,
energy-saving and safe lifestyle, and devoted to charitable
activities to show our determination in taking up the social
responsibility, to care for the people in need and to push on
building a harmonious enterprise. The Group advocates the
concept of sustainable development and jointly promotes
regional economic development. The Group is a responsible
taxpayer and offers job opportunities to local people. We
paid “five insurances and housing provident fund” for
staff in Mainland China and the mandatory provident fund
contributions for staff in Hong Kong. We run our business
following good practices; we actively promote green
energy-saving and environmental friendly concepts; we
set up a role model for the industry; and to some certain
extent, we have contributed to social stability and building a
harmonious community.
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RE HERERRSE

V. ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA + BEEHEXREFE
SUMMARY
Unit 2024 2023 ¢
B 20245 E 20234 [&5

Greenhouse gas (“GHG"”) Emissions 3:

BERE

Scope 1 ":

gE-":

Total Tonnes 87.53 95.62
we 7

Intensity * Tonnes 0.30 0.39
=E 1

Scope 2 %

gE=2:

Total Tonnes 24,335.14 20,615.53
we A

Intensity * Tonnes 82.95 83.90
=nE MR

Air Emissions 3:

EERABHENE:

Nitrogen Oxides Kilograms 66.17 129.18
AFY NN

Sulfur Oxides Kilograms 0.11 0.19
Tk R (7] NN

Particulate Matters Kilograms 3.17 8.06
B NI

Non-hazardous Wastes *:

EEEREY

Total Tonnes 2,431.14 1,719.12
we g

Intensity * Tonnes 8.29 6.99
=7 Ee 7

Packaging Materials Used for Merchandise:

EmmrAEEMR:

Total Tonnes 31.07 44.55
we 7

Intensity * Tonnes 0.11 0.18
=E 7

1 1 4 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024



ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA
SUMMARY (continued)

Energy and Water Consumption:

RREFREREE:

Electricity:
L
Total

RE
Intensity *
B

Diesel:
£
Total

HweE
Intensity #
2

Gasoline:
;I
Total
Intensity *
=

Natura gas:
RAR:
Total

me
Intensity 4

el

Water:
KER:
Total

weE
Intensity *
zlod
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RR HEREBRE

Unit
By

MWh
Ik B B
MWh
JK BB

Liters
T
Liters

At

Liters
AF
Liters

N

Cubic meters
LK
Cubic meters
S K

Cubic meters
Cubic meters

M 3K

t BRREBERABE (&)

2024 2023 ¢
20245 E 2022F "
39,887.13 33,790.42
135.96 137.51
2,651.39 3,876.47
9.04 15.78
4,578.57 6,258.93
15.61 25.47
37,008.00 37,087.00
126.15 150.84
279,133.09 232,237.87
951.46 945.12
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BRRE HERERBRKE

SUMMARY (continued)

Notes:

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA

Scope 1 refers to the Group’s business direct GHG
emission, including combustion of diesel, gasoline and
natural gas.

Scope 2 refers to the Group’s business indirect GHG
emissions, including consumption of purchased electricity.

The carbon emissions are calculated with reference to the
emission factors published by the electricity suppliers, the
“2019 China Regional Grid Baseline Emission Factors”
issued by the Climate Change Department of the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC and the
“Reporting Guidance on Environmental Key Performance
Indicators” issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The above environmental performance data intensity is
calculated based on 0.001 square meters (m?) of the floor
area of the shopping malls and offices.

During the Reporting Period, the non-hazardous solid
waste was the construction waste generated from
renovation work and the domestic waste produced by
the employees of all shopping malls and offices. Since
the construction waste was handled by the construction
contractor which did not provide relevant production data.
Therefore, we did not disclose the relevant data in this
Report. And, domestic waste data is a multiple of average
daily weight of waste produced by each person and the
number of employees at month end.

Part of last year’s comparative figures are restated to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BERRE

“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE N\ HBHAXZMER LT

REPORTING GUIDE"” BY THE STOCK EXCHANGE

OF HONG KONG LIMITED

General
Disclosure/KPIs

—RIKE
BAREMIER

Aspect A1
EmEA1

General Disclosure

—RKE

KPIA1.1
B R AR WUIRIRATLT

KPI A1.2

B B4R IR IRAL .2

KPI' A1.3

R AEMIRIREAL3

KPI'A1.4

BB IR IRA1 .4

Reporting Guideline

WwmEE S
A. Environmental
ARE
Emissions
BE Y

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges

into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-

hazardous waste.

ﬁf‘%fﬂ&/' *ﬁ%ﬁ'ﬁﬁtfiﬁ(‘ KRB BERESE

(a ) Eﬁz% ' )SZ

(b) BFHBETABEAZENHBERZLBROINER -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BRI TE AR AR R B DB

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

B (FHE) REREZ (BE2))RZEREBHEMNE (AN
Bk (mER)BmE (MASGESSM BREREAR)

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

Fﬁ?iﬁ%@ﬁ%%iﬁi (KA @Eﬁ%ﬁ)& (WER)EE (AT
EE8 BEIZEFE

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where

appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

Fﬁ?iﬂﬁﬁfé;ﬁ%ﬁ! (A @Euﬁ:)&( BR)BE (AF
EE8 BEIZEFE

(RE - HERERBERESD

Page

HE

78-81

114

84,89, 114

N/A
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RE HERERRSE

VI.

“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING GUIDE" BY THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs

—REE
ARERER

KPI A1.5
FASRAR IR IRAT5

KPI'A1.6

BB A IR TRAL6

Aspect A2

[E A2
General Disclosure

—REE

KPI'A2.1

B4 IR IRA2.1

KPI A2.2
B SR A5 B2 A2.2
KPI A2.3

RS AE IR IRA2.3

KPI'A2.4

BB S 1R A2.4

(&)
Reporting Guideline
&R

A. Environmental (continued)
AR (&)
Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

AR LR E B R R R ER)E L B IR ERENA) 2P B -

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

MR RENBERERZEMNTT L MM ATET LR EE B
BRREIEL AT LR -

Use of Resources

BEREH

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
water and other raw materials.

BREMRER (BREER KEEMRERME) OBER -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.
electricity, gas or oil) in total (MWh) and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).

RENEISMERR SHEER(WE [aUh) BFEE
(RMKERHHAE) REE (WA EBESEN  GEREAE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
BAEKERTE (MAGESESEN BER®AHE) -

hall}

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
H PRI BB RE AN B R R AESE L B R AR

g

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

it SKEGE KR EP] BRI R RE - DA KR AT ET S 89 K R &R
BERRREDELE RIS
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“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING GUIDE" BY THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs

—RIRE
ARERER

KPI' A2.5

BB AE IR IRA25

Aspect A3
BT A3
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI' A3.1

BB AE IR IRA3

Aspect A4
[EEA4
General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI' A4.1

842 48 B IZ A4 1

BB -#HE8K

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BERRE

N BERBEXZARATIMN

(REBE - -HERERHEESD

(#&)
Reporting Guideline Page
&R E#

A. Environmental (continued)
ARE (&)
Total packaging material used for finished products (in
tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced.
B mATAE®
BAHE -

KMHmeE (UMatE) R (ER) BLE

The Environment and Natural Resources

BERRXARER

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

AR T AT IRBE LR RARBERERERTENBR -

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.
Ml EREHHRBERRAAERNERFZEREERERA
T EN{TE -

Climate Change

RizrB1t

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer
Bl K EE B &N
EEMBE-

EEHBETAELERENEARKRERH

Description of the significant climate-related issues which
have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and
the actions taken to manage them.

RO RAREGHETAEATENERRIGHEBER
NE1TE) -

92-93, 114

94

94

95

95
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VI.

“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING GUIDE" BY THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs

—REE
ARERER

Aspect B1
[EEB1

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI'B1.1

BA B2 48 IEIRB1

KPI'B1.2
A 5245 IR 1B .2
Aspect B2

[ B2
General Disclosure

—RE

(&)
Reporting Guideline
&R

B. Social
B.iE
Employment
EE
Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
ERFM LR BREEEA TERE KRB TEHE -
% At~ RIBAR DA K B M 15 i S AR A A9 -
(@) B3R &
(b) BFHBETABERZENHEBEERELROINER -

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example,
full-or part-time), age group and geographical region.
MR EEAD (NEBEGERE)  Ficdn MR E 5
EERE-

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region.

RIER - FRAMN RS DNEERKLL K-

Health and Safety

REHEZR

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.

BRARMZ2TERERREESHABELEEN:

(a) B : &2

(b) BFHBETABEAZENHBEELROINER -

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024
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“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE N\ HEEAXSZMER DTN

REPORTING GUIDE” BY THE STOCK EXCHANGE GRIE -HE2ERERHTEES)
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (continued) (4&)
General
Disclosure/KPls Reporting Guideline Page
—BE
BRRENIEE wmEE S BE
B. Social (continued)
B.#g (&)
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each 102

B B2 48 IR 1RB2.1

KPI B2.2
B R AR IR 1RB2.2

KPI B2.3
B 4B 5 1EB2.3
Aspect B3

[EH B3
General Disclosure

—RWE

KPI' B3.1

73§ 48 B 1RB3.1

KPI' B3.2

B S 4E IR 1RB3.2

of the past three years including the reporting year.

BEZF (BEERFE) SFAT T HMABRLE-

Lost days due to work injury. 102
AIGEAIIEASH-
Description of occupational health and safety measures 100-102

adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.
BT IR B R R RET 2 U RBERRTRERT
b7

Development and Training

R RIEI

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for 103-105
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.

BRRITEE BT TR E /O K8 S 5 BE B BRSR - f AL 15 31

CEIR

The percentage of employees trained by gender and 104
employee category (e.g. senior management, middle

management).

BUFILEERMN (NSRERE PREEE)EASHXI

EEBDL-

The average training hours completed per employee by 104

gender and employee category.

RUERIRERERAE D BREETKEINFHES-

HESHEHEERERLA
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VI.

“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE N\ EBHKESXRZAERA TN

REPORTING GUIDE"” BY THE STOCK EXCHANGE CRIE - HEREARHEIES])
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (continued) (4&)
General
Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline Page
—REE
BREENER HwEES ¥
B. Social (continued)
BAtE (&)
Aspect B4 Labor Standards
[EEB4 % T 28|
General Disclosure Information on: 96, 105-106

—RKE

KPI B4.1

A 52 45 IR 1EBA. 1
KPI B4.2

B3R 1B BUE 1R B4.2
Aspect B5

& B5

General Disclosure

—RIEE

KPI B5.1
B S AR IR 1RB5. 1

KPI B5.2

A B2 48 IR 13 B5.2

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced Labor.

BEABY IEE T skoa s TH:

(a) B : &

(b) BFHETABERTENHEBERZLROIHNER -

Description of measures to review employment practices to 105
avoid child and forced Labor.
R BB O E e AR R E T R Hlss T e

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when 105
discovered.
RIS HZ RGN HIR A BB R ERERE) 25 -

Supply Chain Management

e EE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the 106-108
supply chain.

ERHEENRRE R SRERBE -

Number of suppliers by geographical region. 108
mRRE DR HEREE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, 106-107
number of suppliers where the practices are being

implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored.

M B EERHEmHED - AERTTA BN R HER K

B AKRBBEHRITRERT A

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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VI.

“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING GUIDE" BY THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs

—RIRE
ARERER

KPI B5.3

B %248 IR 1RB5.3

KPI' B5.4

B %248 M IR1EB5.4

Aspect B6
[E E B6

General Disclosure

—REE

KPI B6.1

79§52 48 MIE 13 B6.1

KPI B6.2

B $2 48 M IE15B6.2

(BE- e
(#&)

Reporting Guideline
wmEE S
B. Social (continued)
B.#g (&)

Description of practices used to identify environmental and
social risks.

AR R B AR IRR g RRER
MBI RERT A

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

A ERE M ERRRES BIREREMRLRFNED - AKX
HEAMITRERT A

Product Responsibility

EmEE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and services provided and

methods of redress.

EHEMEEEMNRENEREAL S BS FELLES
BN R ER:
(a) BLSR : &

(o) BFTHBTABERZENHBEARLEONER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons.

EEFRCEXERBAETAR > EEFRPHMARKNE S
Lt -

Number of products and service related complaints received
and how they are dealt with.

HERMNEm KRG OIFEE A NS -

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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RERBEES)

Page

B

106-107

106-107

108-111

110

109-110
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VI.

“ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING GUIDE"” BY THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (continued)

General
Disclosure/KPIs

—REE
ARERER

KPI B6.3
M E BB 1EB6.3
KPI B6.4
F 4R 4B BUIE 15 B6.4
KPI B6.5
75 45 I 1EB6.5

Aspect B7

[EEB7
General Disclosure

—RE

KPI B7.1

B B2 48 IE1RBT 1

KPI B7.2

B B2 48 IR 1RBT .2

(&)
Reporting Guideline
#H&E o

B. Social (continued)
BAE (&)
Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
s g R ERBFNED -

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
HrEERTERERERBKIEF -

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies,
and how they are implemented and monitored.

BB EEHEBERMRERALBEBSR  ARBERITRER L.

Anti-corruption

RES

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

B IEEE $xR HMEFRAERERN:

(@) B &

b) EBFTHBETATEAZENEBEEZRBOINER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the
reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RBERHRNHETAIEEERE T EEENESHFARN
BB MFRER-

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
M EEERRRET  URABEARITRER %

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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RR HEREBRE

N BBES K%FEEBE’D\:JH’J

REPORTING GUIDE"” BY THE STOCK EXCHANGE CGRIE - HEREBHEIES|)
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (continued) (4&)
General
Disclosure/KPIs Reporting Guideline Page
—REE
BRENER ¥ & 15 5l BE¥™
B. Social (continued)
BAtE (&)
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors 112-113
and staff.
R B4R N HE1EBT .3 HmMESEREIRENREGTEI -
Aspect B8 Community Investment
[E E B8 HERE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the 113
needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to
ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’
interests.
— R BN R2ERBERLEEMEHRFENBREELITD
SEBRMEMZAIEE -
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental 113
concerns, Labor needs, health, culture, sport).
B 5245 512 B8 ETERERE (NHE RREFE LIHR @R UL -8
B)e
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. 113
RABEAA N H515B8.2 EEIBRMBAER (WeEHFMH) -
Note: KfsF -
1 The Group’s main business is operating department stores, 1 REFFBEKBCL T EREIE
shopping centers and supermarkets. We did not generate BN RBRTE B REE
any hazardous wastes. AT EREY) -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B RS

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 136 to
264, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with HKFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

R

BRREZEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional BEEZETEERERMNEXHE £
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the  HMIEAHMGAMERENBZPRE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These ~ EHEE % HFEEAER MY LKA BB R
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the  REFTEEEZNMNHEREREEE
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming BMLABU BIMNREER

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Assessment of impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

BEKELEEREFG

Refer to Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements, accounting judgements and estimates
in Note 3(b)(i) and the material accounting policy information in Notes 2(e) and (j).

BRHEE M IFHRARM 145215 ~ BEE3(b)()A) & &1 H B R b &t A KM it 2(e) X ()ay & 5T UK B #Y -

The Key Audit Matter
HREREE

As at 31 December 2024, goodwill and intangible
assets, which arose from business acquisitions of
department store and supermarket operations in prior
years, amounted to approximately RMB279,611,000 in
total. No impairment losses on goodwill and intangible
assets were recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2024.
RZZB_MF+_R=+—H BELELEE (A
TFEHEITAE Fﬁ%&ﬁ_ﬁ&m%%i‘k2¥%ﬂﬁzﬁ§ﬁﬁﬁ

H)AHHNABARKE279,611,0007T c REIZE ZT U4
TZA=tTHLEFEZGAERRxAMEERHE
N & E 2 RBERE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNERTNAEEEREE

Our audit procedures to assess impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets included the
following:

B EE B EERENEZREF 2N
TN&IE:

o assessing the external valuer’s qualifications,
expertise and experience and considering
the external valuer’s objectivity and
independence.

FHEONERIEERI ) B S - EEMB LR
WEEINBEEMEZTE N BT
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

ARERSER (F)

Assessment of impairment of goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

BERELEERENME (&)

Refer to Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements, accounting judgements and estimates in
Note 3(b)(i) and the material accounting policy information in Notes 2(e) and (j). (continued)

B RRIARE I AN 14215 ~ B aE30)()ay & &1 HIEF S 1 51 LA R M at2(e) R ()i &5t LR B K (8)
How the matter was addressed in our audit
(continued)

BMWERTNAEEEEEE (£)

The Key Audit Matter (continued)
BEEZREE (&)

The financial performance of the Group’s department
store and supermarket operations, as a consequence
of a slow-down in economic growth in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), as well as intense
competition from surrounding shopping malls and
online retail sales, has underperformed management'’s
expectations when these businesses were acquired,
which has increased the risk that goodwill and
intangible assets related to these business acquisitions
may be impaired.

MR EARLME ([HE])LEERMENRKEFE
BEDTOEPELITENEREFMNE . BEE£EEAERE
GRBRTEEBOMBERBENEEBEWEZSTR
BROEH - ENTEBERBZEEZBNBEER
BERBLRENERR -

Management performs impairment assessments of
the relevant cash generating units (“CGUs") to which
goodwill and intangible assets have been allocated
at the end of each reporting period. Management
compares the carrying amount of each CGU with its
recoverable amount, which is determined by assessing
the value-in-use based on discounted cash flow
forecasts.

ERERBENBREHRESEBELRBLEENE
BReELAEN ([(ReELBM])ETREN G -&
BESREELSUNOREERLEBTERIES
REenERAFTENEREEETH A YL & HiE
THEE -

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

assessing and challenging the Group’s
identification of CGUs and the allocation of
goodwill, intangible assets and other assets
to those CGUs;

A kER EEEHREESBEUNER
kRAzZEHReELELU KRS BEEE
NEMEE

evaluating the key assumptions used in
the estimated future cash flow, including
forecasts of future revenue growth rates
and operating profits margins, by comparing
with forecast approved by management,
historical performance and externally available
information;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BA RS

ARERSER (4)

Assessment of impairment of goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

BERELEERENME (B)

Refer to Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements, accounting judgements and estimates in
Note 3(b)(i) and the material accounting policy information in Notes 2(e) and (j). (continued)
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The Key Audit Matter (continued)
BEEREE (&)

How the matter was addressed in our audit
(continued)

EMWEZTNAREEE@EER (&)

The preparation of discounted cash flow forecasts
involves the exercise of significant management
judgement, in particular in forecasting revenue growth
and operating profit and in determining appropriate
discount rates.
MHEABRReREALRERBEHERAE LH
REBAKGIER REERNAREEEEHAMRE
A o

We identified the assessment of impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets as a key audit matter
because management’s forecasts of the future cash
flows involve certain critical judgements in respect of
the assumptions made, which are inherently uncertain
and could be subject to management bias.

BPRAREBELRBETLEERENTEE —RBAREZ
2E RAREEEBYHARKRRS RIS REAMED
R HE TR HIE  MAFHEARE FR T ETER

ARXIERERENTE-

With the assistance of auditor’s experts,
evaluating the methodology used in the
valuations of CGU, challenging the key
assumptions and critical judgements made
in the preparation of the discounted cash
flow forecasts prepared by management
by comparing key inputs with historical
performance, management’s budgets
and forecasts and other external available
information, and evaluating the discount rate
applied in the discounted cash flow forecasts
by assessing if the parameters adopted in
calculating the discount rate was within the
range of relevant industry;
EREMERNGE T AR EEEN
HMEMANF L HRHFBBHRERER
R (REEEEBSHEREAZBUREBER
R EREEE RFERIAREAMINBAIIGE
FHETTHEERMGAER) RATEL A RR R &
BEHERBE R WRANEAEREREE
FIERAN 2B R EEBETEN S E AT
BRI M ETERPTAMRRIR R ;

obtaining management’s sensitivity analysis
and challenging the key assumptions to which
the outcome of the impairment assessments
was most sensitive, including forecast revenue
and forecast operating profits and considering
if there was any indication of management
bias in the selection of these assumptions; and
ERERENBREDIT  BROBEN LS
REGROARRR (BEEAKE LB
KRERN) EREEEREEATRBATRERE
EEEEZERRHFEEEERR &

considering the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the
impairment assessments and assessing the
adequacy of the disclosures against prevailing
accounting standards.
ZRMAMENANGEMBHREFEL 2T
B WAt RRITEEAFL 2 KBRS
B
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

ARERSER (F)

Valuation of land and buildings held for own use and investment properties

FEBAZIHREFURKRENEMLE

Refer to Notes 12 and 13 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes

2(h) and (i).

BRI E B IREN T 1213 R F2(h) % () & 5TBUE ©

The Key Audit Matter
HERERSBE

The Group is engaged in the operation of department
stores, shopping malls and supermarkets and
properties management in the PRC.
EEETFENFAETEKLEAERS BYH OB
BHBARMEER -

The Group’s land and buildings held for own use and
investment properties are revalued at the end of each
reporting period and are stated at their fair values. The
aggregated amount of these land and buildings held
for own use and investments properties were stated at
their fair values of approximately RMB4,461,489,000
as at 31 December 2024 which accounted for 61%
and 59% of the Group’s non-current assets and total
assets as at that date.
ESEERFERZ I NEBFUARKREMEN S W
EHREM BREAABAR - RZZTE_MF+=A
=T —B ZEREFERAZIHMEEFURKREME
2 BERE N AELANR¥A,461,489,0007T 51 Bk - 15
RzB BEXEEERDEENBEEZ61%KM59% °

The fair values of land and buildings held for own
use and investment properties were assessed by
the management based on independent valuations
prepared by an external property valuer using certain
estimates, which included comparable market prices.
FEERZT M EBFURKREMENRIAEIHE
BEANIINEYEGEMERE TR (BETEL
BMIHER) mENBILAEMTG -

We identified the valuation of land and buildings held
for own use and investment properties as a key audit
matter because of the significance of their value to
the Group's total assets and determining their fair
values involve a significant degree of judgement and
estimation uncertainty.
BPRRFEERZ T REFURREMENMELE
RIBAREZEE RASHEBRY E5EAEE
BEX BEFEAABESREREZEERHE R
THETE M
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMENERTNAEEEREE

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation
of leasehold land and buildings held for own
use and investment properties included the
following:

B ERFEE R T REFURKREMEMR
ENEZRFEFEATEE:

o assessing the external property valuer's
qualifications, expertise and experience and
considering the external property valuer’s
objectivity and independence;

AN E L ERNER  BRM&R
WEBEEE MM

o With the assistance of our auditor’s
experts, we reviewed their methodologies
and key assumptions, and assessed the
reasonableness of significant unobservable
inputs by comparing them to market data.
We also examined adjusting factors for
property conditions and locations, verified
supporting documents to validate major
investment properties; and
ERBMERNHE T HAEHRENS
ENBRRER WEBETISEBRETHR
FHEEANAIB R ABIEN SR - ;M
MEEWENRA LB RABRRE  ZEF
AXHNREFEREME &

o considering the disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements in respect
of the valuation of land and buildings held
for own use and investment properties.
ZREAVBRRTERAFEER 2 L
MBFUARIREYEEERNKEE -



Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

R

ARERSER (4)

Assessment of impairment of prepayments for acquisition of properties

W iR M TN R 2 BE R

Refer to Note 18 the consolidated financial statements, accounting judgements and estimates in Note 3(b)
(i) and the material accounting policy information in Note 2(1)(ii).

A2HGEMIERAN T8 - A3 (b)) & 51 HIBF R Ad 5t LA R M ax2()(iey EA & &t R B+ -

The Key Audit Matter
HRERSBIE

As at 31 December 2024, prepayments for acquisition of
properties amounted to approximately RMB2,217,041,000.
Impairment losses on prepayments for acquisition of
properties of approximately RMB57,134,000 were
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2024.
RZZE_ME+_A=+—8 WEDENTENFKIE
A A/ARY2,217,041,0007C - REBE =T ZMF
TZAZT—HIEFENGERRRABRKEYE
AR RIE 2R EE B AR 57,134,0007T °

The economic challenges surrender in the PRC which
has increased the risk that prepayments for acquisition
of properties may be impaired.

Hh B T PR A B R B S5 0N T WU ) 35 TR N FRIA AT AR
TORE A Ak o

Management performs impairment assessments of
prepayments for acquisition of properties at the end
of each reporting period. Management compares
the carrying amount of prepayments for acquisition
of properties with its recoverable amounts. The
recoverable amounts of prepayments for acquisition
of properties were based on the discounted cash flow
which assessed by the management with assistance by
independent external valuers using certain estimations.
ERERSHMERREWBEBYENTANFKIBETRE
AHfE - B ERKEERMNRIENREDEER AT
Bl & REETLR - WHEYERNFIEN AT KE S EE T
BEMBERSRENE BEREEEABLINBEE
Rb 1% Bh T 2 A TG EfTAT (4 -

We identified the assessment of impairment of
prepayments for acquisition of properties as a key audit
matter because of the significance of their value to the
Group’s total assets, representing approximately 29%
of the total assets of the Group and determining their
recoverable amounts involve a significant degree of
judgement and estimation uncertainty.

BB RWEM RN TIB ZRER G2 —HEREZ
FE REARHEEY EXEHEEBEA(LE &
SBREEN29% )  BEEFHEAKEEL MNEKIR
J& B9 H i N Al 5T T REE M

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN EZRTNAEEEREE

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment
of prepayments for acquisition of properties
included the following:
BAFHEKRBYRBANRIBZBREZEZIEFE
BT RE:

o assessing the external property valuer's
qualifications, expertise and experience and
considering the external property valuer’s
objectivity and independence; and
FHENERYIEGEMHNER FEREER
WEBEFBMENE L &

o With the assistance of auditor’s experts,
evaluating the methodology used in the
valuations of CGU, challenging the key
assumptions and critical judgements made
in the preparation of the discounted cash
flow forecasts prepared by management
by comparing key inputs with market data,
management’s budgets and forecasts and
other external available information, and
evaluating the discount rate applied in the
discounted cash flow forecasts by assessing
if the parameters adopted in calculating
the discount rate was within the range of
relevant industry.
ERBMBERNHE T T EREEEEN
HMEMANTE BREMFAESRER
A (REEEEASHERRBAZRIEETISHN
B EEEEE MFERAREAMINBAIIGE
FHETT LB AR B2 ) B BT ) BV BR R R AR
ERHERREE R WRANEFTERRE
AN 2HEEEMBITENSEERNG
HARR @ METERFTAMALIR K
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B RS

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRS
Accounting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

R
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within
the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and review of the audit work
performed for the purpose of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

%gﬁgﬁm%&%é&tﬁ#&%ﬂ@i&

s HEEEARBELLESHEAENEER
1 R (ERFTREHNEZEER) ES
FHRESHHMNAMAATEEHR
4 BEREERERERNELEASR
I E RN EE S AW o AT
MABARFEEATHEENE FEEX
B REFRB IRV B RE
MBI ESR (ZEENE) BN
BANER -RMANGEREREEZ
BERERHMESHNERER A
- RREMHHAMAATEES EF
BEESELE-

o ESAMBIMRNERYIER B
kAR BREBELGEAVHEHRRE
BIRERAINEN T A RR T HEEE
RHREMH-

e HERMOTEEER UNERA
M ERERERBAEHEMNYH
BERMRSBEENEZER (FRY
REMBHRRBERELOER M
BEEE HENEHIEEREZAE
EVETTH B Z TAE - AL A R A
MERSERAE2HEE-

BB (AR ER) Bl sE KA
HEREZAER (BREAMEFTXHER
MR BPIEFIE ARG BB B EERE -

BHTAEZZESR‘E—DER KR
B2 ETA BB EBERENR
I A I AT RE B B AP L M A A R
HFTBRE R (WER) IRETTEVERELE
IRMREEBEEZEZEGRE-



AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BA RS

BRBMBEZAREMBRRNEM

AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL (#%&)

STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because

REREZZEQBEBNER HMARR
BERFARHECZANRGAMBHRERM
EREENFH ALBREREZSE
BPERBMRETHAZEEE RIF
ERBOERBE I NRAREZEIE K (£
DEBRT)BREAMEREEAED S
BB AR EMS RO QKNG KPR
REZEBRTERERMNBRERRE-

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Leung Kam Wa
Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number: P08370

24/F., Siu On Centre
188 Lockhart Road
Wan Chai, Hong Kong

26 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mER®ER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi (“"RMB”))  (UAANERKE ([ARK])Z5)
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
fft 5 AR®Fr ARETFT
Revenue U&= 4 357,534 363,826
Other income H b WA 5 1,030 6,685
Changes in inventories of finished — &k AFE&E 5
goods 20 (152,496) (168,753)
Sales and other taxes and surcharges 55 K £ th F{ 18 K M hn & (10,472) (19,194)
Staff costs 8 T A 6(b) (65,859) (84,390)
Depreciation expenses TERX 12 (214,290) (197,407)
Utilities expenses NHEERE (36,907) (33,064)
Advertisement expenses EERAX (11,871) (9,093)
Reversal of provision B RO 29 51,328 60,733
Expected credit losses on trade and i Us R 3K &% H 4t /g Us 3%
other receivables EHEEERE 31(b) (58,150) (58,423)
Impairment losses on prepayments W B& ¥ % F8 5 ZUE 2
for acquisition of properties BEEE 18 (57,134) (35,747)
Other operating expenses HM &M 6(c) (55,336) (58,193)
Loss from operations REER (252,623) (233,020)
Valuation (losses)/gains on an KEMEZEE
investment properties (E18) Mz 13 (17,131) 1,270
Share of result of a joint venture DMEEERAER 17 2,408 -
Net finance costs MBERERE 6(a) (283,651) (231,802)
Loss before taxation BRELAIES 1B 6 (550,997) (463,552)
Income tax PRSHE 7 10,923 3,409
Loss for the year rEEEE (540,074) (460,143)
Attributable to: HUTALTHEN:
Equity shareholders of the ZN/NEI g5
Company (538,091) (453,250)
Non-controlling interests FEERR R = (1,983) (6,893)
Loss for the year AEEER (540,074) (460,143)
Loss per share BREE
Basic and diluted (RMB) ERREE(ARET) 11 (0.468) (0.389)
The notes on pages 145 to 264 form part of these  F145%2648 v Mz AR ZZHGEA T

consolidated financial statements.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REeEaRAEMEE KSR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HZ_—FT_WF+_HA=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB) (LA R#Z27)
2024 2023
—E-IF —T=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ft &+ AR¥FT AR®F T
Loss for the year rEEEE (540,074) (460,143)
Other comprehensive income/ AEEHMEZEKE
(expense) for the year (after (BxX) (RHBRBERE
tax and reclassification FoERE)
adjustments):
Items that will not be reclassified to BT EEFHEEER
profit or loss: 2B
— Surplus on revaluation of land —EhMFEER 2L
and buildings held for own use, RiEFRAER (HRBIE)
net of tax 10 113,005 120,403
— Equity securities at FVOCI-net —RARBEFEBRHEE
movement in fair value reserve FEAE A B2 E W a2
(non-recycling) mEHF-ANERE
(TR 8%) B E)H5H 10 371 12,053
— Exchange differences on —BREREINEKZ
translation into presentation bE 5 =&
currency 10 (10,298) (17,661)
Other comprehensive income AEEHMEEWE
for the year 103,078 114,795
Total comprehensive expense for AEE2HRA XA
the year (436,996) (345,348)
Attributable to: HUTALEM:
Equity shareholders of the ZIN/NEI g5
Company (435,072) (340,397)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR M A (1,924) (4,951)
Total comprehensive expense for FNFE2HEE XA
the year (436,996) (345,348)
The notes on pages 145 to 264 form part of these %145¢264EZWIBZHW ZEGE T
consolidated financial statements. e E A )
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRIk R &

At 31 December 2024 RZZEZNFE+_-_HA=+—H

(Expressed in RMB) (XA KRB Z231)
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=4F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 2% AR¥TT ARKFIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property and equipment IEINE L 12 3,517,687 4,085,901
Investment properties wEWE 13 1,345,377 834,400
Intangible assets mEEE 14 244,482 244,482
Goodwill S 15 35,129 35,129
Investment in a joint venture KEEERT 17 6,408 -
Prepayments for acquisition of H&Eﬁ%%Zﬁﬁ%ﬁE
properties 18 2,217,041 2,189,475
Deferred tax assets REFIBEE B 28(c) 10,739 10,358
7,376,863 7,399,745
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 23,399 28,003
Trade and other receivables JFE U B 31 % EL b B MR 21 137,395 166,375
Prepayments AT IR 38,981 36,705
Equity securities designated ?Emﬁiﬂﬁjbfﬁﬁgﬂ, ]
at FvVOC| FFAHMEE U S 2 R E
% 19 10,188 11,534
Cash at bank and on hand RITHEGFLFERS 22 10,710 49,725
220,673 292,342
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JFE A<F BR 20 % L Ath B A< 3R 23 578,068 544,263
Promissory note EHEE 24 223,330 229,214
Contract liabilities cRAE 25 154,257 158,338
Bank and other borrowings RITRHMEE 26(a) 596,769 1,042,885
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 27,732 19,886
Income tax payable JES FT S HR 28(a) 35,585 36,098
Provisions B A 29 177,502 228,830
1,793,243 2,259,514
Net current liabilities REBEETEE (1,572,570) (1,967,172)
Total assets less current liabilities #2EEBAEBEE 5,804,293 5,432,573
The notes on pages 145 to 264 form part of these 145¢264EZW&75ZH523 EiRa %

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B BRI R

At 31 December 2024 WR-ZE-PF+_-HA=+—H

(Expressed in RMB) (LA R#Z271)
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Mt i AR¥TFT AR F T
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 26(b) 4,256,919 3,448,513
Lease liabilities MEBRE 27 313,619 341,884
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFRIBEE 28(c) 722,176 693,600
5,292,714 4,483,997
NET ASSETS EEFRE 511,579 948,576
CAPITAL AND RESERVES R R & 30
Share capital N 103,602 103,602
Reserves {1 385,675 820,764
Total equity attributable to equity A TR REGESEE
shareholders of the Company 489,277 924,366
Non-controlling interests FEERER 22,302 24,210
TOTAL EQUITY A 511,579 948,576

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

26 March 2025.

Yao Jiangang
ok 32 S
Chairman

*E

The notes on pages 145 to 264 form part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Choon Hoi Kit Edwin

EB F*ﬁ R

Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBE X

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB)  (LAA KRB Z31)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
RAAERRRER
Property  Fair value Non-
Share Capital  Contributed ~ revaluation reserve (non-  Statutory  Exchange  Accumulated controlling Total
Share capital  premium surplus reserve  recycling) reserves reserve losses Total interests equity
NEER DAERE - ) FER Ea
RE  RAEE BARR e (TI28) iTHE EXEE 2058 At 50 o
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETFT AR¥TI AREFTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARETRL
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
300) - 30(d)) 300)ii) - 300)w) - 30@)v) - 30@)v) - 300)i)
(Hrat (Hyat (Bt (Wit (Wit (W (Krzt
300)))  30(a))) 30)ii)  30(d)iv))  300))  30(d)i))  30(d)vi)
Balance at R=B==%
1 January 2023 -B-B&# 199,369 1,136,595 995,255 1,343,923 (76,973) 129,585 97,214 (2,274,186) 1,475,838 31,194 1,507,032
Changes inequity AEEEHREH:
for the year:
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - - - (453,250)  (453,250) (6,893)  (460,143)
Other comprehensive s 2 E Y%
income - - - 120,403 10,111 - (17,661) - 112,853 1,942 114,795
Total comprehensive REE 2
income for the year #% - - - 120,403 10,111 - (17,661)  (453,250)  (340,397) (4,951)  (345,348)
Appropriation b - - - - - 8,740 - (8,740) - - -
Disposal of equity ~ HERERELS
securities designated  EitEHEEE
at FVoCl AR EEK
B ERER - - - - (12,609) - - 14,642 2,033 (2,033) -
Cancellation of AR
convertible BER
preference shares (Kist24)
(Note 24) (95,767)  (117,341) - - - - - - (213,108 - (213,108
(95,767)  (117,341) - - (12,609) 8,740 - 5902 (211,075 (2,033)  (213,108)
Balance at 31 R-B-=%4=
December 2023 A=t-H&#H 103,602 1,019,254 995,255 1,464,326 (79,471) 138,325 79,553 (2,721,534) 924,366 24,210 948,576
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREaRS X

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB) (A A K Z271)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
RAARERRES
Fair value
Property reserve Non-
Share Share Capital Contributed revaluation (non-  Statutory  Exchange Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve surplus reserve  recycling)  reserves reserve losses Total interests equity
NEERE DAERR 2R i
R&  RHEE EXRE  BARH E (TUHE) EERE ENRE ZiHER fit i L
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%TR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TZ ARET:R
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
30)@) 306 0@)i) - 30)ii)  30()iv)  30(d)v)  30()vi)  300d)vii)
(HizE (Kt (Kizt (Kiz (K& (K& (K& (K&
300)@)  306)i)  30)i)  30()ii))  30@)iv)  30()v)  30()vi)  30(d)vii)
Balance at RZB-mE
1 January 2024 -A-H
&8 103,602 1,019,254 (74,944) 995,255 1,464,326 (79.471) 138,325 79,553 (2,721,534) 924,366 24,210 948,576
Changes in equity rEEER
for the year: 25:
Loss for the year TFEER - - - - - - - - (538,091) (538,091 (1,983)  (540,074)
Other comprehensive income £ % L i &5 - - - - 113,005 3N - (10,298) - 103,019 59 103,078
Total comprehensive ~ AEE2E
income for the year KR8 - - - - 113,005 k1Y) - (10,298)  (538,091)  (435,072) (1,924)  (436,996)
Disposal of
equity securities ER9:
designated at FVOCI BYwERES
(Note19) (Hiz#19) - - - - - 97 - - (114) (17) 16 (1)
Balance at R-B-RmELZA
31 December 2024 =t-B&R 103,602 1,019,254 (74,944) 995,255 1,577,331 (79,062) 138,325 69,255  (3,259,739) 489,277 22,302 511,579

The notes on pages 145 to 264 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB)  (AA KRB Z5I)
2024 2023
—E-OE —E =45
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Mt & AR TR ARKFT
Operating activities RETH
Loss before taxation MR ES 18 (550,997) (463,552)
Adjustments for: T
Depreciation expenses TERX 12 214,290 197,407
Expected credit losses on trade P K B 35 R L At B R
and other receivables TEEEEEE 58,150 58,423
Net gain on disposal of BREMENRBRKREN
property and equipment and EXZWaF8
investment property 5 (263) (4,142)
Interest income B WA 5 (99) (2,090)
Net finance costs S B RFERE 6(a) 283,651 231,802
Share of result of a joint venture ShEERRIEE 17 (2,408) -
Change in fair value of financial RAnBEFEAEZEHTA
assets measured at FVPL BasemEEZRANE
gk 5 - (453)
Valuation losses/(gains) on an BEMELHEEE
investment property (Wezs) 13 17,131 (1,270)
Reversal of provision B O 17 S (51,328) (60,733)
Impairment losses on prepayments Ut BEY) % 2 FENRIBE
for acquisition of properties BB EE 57,134 35,747
Changes in working capital: LEEE:
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEZREL () 20 4,604 (5,953)
Increase in trade and other B 5 I H Ath fE W 5118
receivables and prepayments LA R FEASF FRIE 2 32 N (68,505) (90,292)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and FENBEZREMEN
other payables CRA) /#n (69,382) 122,152
(Decrease)/increase in AHBaEZ CRd) /1Em
contract liabilities (4,081) 5,914
Net cash (used in)/generated & (A /FBREFE
from operations (112,103) 22,960
Income tax refund/(paid), net BRE/(BEXH)MEHFERE 28a) 937 (2,397)
Net cash (used in)/generated KReEEs (R FEEE
from operating activities FHE (111,166) 20,563

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

o)

BERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB) (A A K Z271)
2024 2023
—E-OE —E =5
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Mt i AR¥TFT AR F T
Investing activities REED
Payments for the purchase of BEMERZBRNR
property and equipment (26,071) (52,943)
Proceeds from disposal of property §& & )% K& & & 2 P15 5878
and equipment 4,639 25,097
Interests received 2 U A B 99 2,090
Proceeds from disposal of equity HEETEAZANEFERE
securities designated at FVOC| BRI AR M 2 E MR 2
T re 7 < PTG 58 1,717 207,010
Proceed from disposal of FVTPL HEZRANBHEAEEY
STABRZ B HIA - 15,128
Decrease in restricted ZRIBITIR SR A
cash at bank 22(a) 1,398 1,264
Investment in a joint venture ?xﬁ/\ EBNE] (4,000) -
Loans to related parties BBt E R 25,999 (26,114)
Repayments to related parties Bl EWH%%{ (10,788) (160,828)
Net cash (used in)/generated REZS (FFA) i
from investing activities B FEE (7,007) 10,704
Financing activities RMEEE
Capital element of lease rentals ENEEZERBS
paid 22(b) (22,231) (33,437)
Interest element of lease rentals EfHe 2R EE D
paid 22(b) (26,710) (18,408)
Proceeds from new bank loans IR TTERATIS R 22(b) 588,412 119,900
Proceeds from new other I EMEE TS HE
borrowings 22(b) 1,037,257 1,544,586
Repayment of bank loans ERIEBPITER 22(b) (481,800) (390,810)
Repayment of other borrowings BEEHEMEER 22(b) (781,579) (850,883)
Other finance costs paid EMBE R ERAR 22(b) (232,788) (370,777)
Net cash from financing activities BE EEFTB RS FHE 80,561 171
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB)  (LAA KRB Z31)
2024 2023
—E-OE —E =45
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ft &+ AR¥FT ARETFT
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BHERBLEEHEBEZ
and cash equivalents FOR2) /1B (37,612) 31,438
Cash and cash equivalents at the TR REESEEEE
beginning of the year 22(a) 42,931 11,484
Effect of foreign exchange IEHBEBB 2 E
rate changes (5) 9
Cash and cash equivalents at the EFRE L RELEEHEHE
end of the year 22(a) 5,314 42,931

FE1455 2648 2 I DR ZSHRA WS
WK 2B

The notes on pages 145 to 264 form part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 8 August 2000 as
an exempted company with limited liability under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The shares of the
Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 23 October
2000. The consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2024
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). The principal activities of the
Group are the operation of department stores, shopping
malls and supermarkets and properties management in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Quijiang Cultural Financial International Investment
Limited (“Qujiang Investment”) and Glory Keen Holdings
Limited (“Glory Keen”) were substantial shareholders of
the Company, holding 29.24% and 28.07% respectively
of the issued ordinary shares of the Company. Qujiang
Investment is a wholly owned subsidiary of a state-owned
enterprise, Xian Qujiang Culture Financial Holdings Group
Co., Ltd.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRS Accounting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
HKFRS Accounting Standards comprise Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Material accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
to HKFRS Accounting Standards that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current accounting period
reflected in these financial statements.

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

ARIER

oS EHELERER AR ([AA
ANRZZEEZFNANBREER
E—NN\—FRVERBRETMK
N AERRERAG - ANQE Z KD
N-_ZEETFE+A-_+=HEEESR
BEHAERSHAER AR ([BZFT])
tH-ARAREBE-_T_MFE+_A
“+—HULEFEZHEUBERE
BEARBIREMB AR (K IAE
) AEBZTEEBANPEA
RAME ([FEH])KEEaENS B
D R TIG AR FEETR

BT b SRt BEIRR IR A BBR AR ([#h
TIRE|)RERERBRAA ([
Z)AARBRZEERRE DRlEE
AKARBBETERBBRMD 229.24%
$28.07% - TR E A—EBHB
AL I ezl (EE)ER
NEZEENBRA -

RAUEEREARETHRESR

(a) BHIEHA
ZEMBHROBIBEBT B S
RE ([EBSFELE])BEM
ZFrEERBERYHRE LS
APEARE - FEY MR E 2R
S EMERBEMHRESE
Al BAEER ([FEGTE
A1) Rk - % F M HRER I
BEBRARGRD ZBRKERE
AR g Em AR (T E
AR ) Z BRI - N
BERAZEXRGHTRREEN
o

BEGMAG D RME THA]
KEERT BB RS ERIER
HH) WAAKE 2 A et H
BEREMKAIHRIERRA B
RERZSFRAREEEH2ER
P S 2RI FT 5| BUE A K PATE
Bz S ERES B R
BRNEZEMEHRERA - BEEHR
BT EE2(c)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R R Y &E

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except for investments in equity securities (Note
2(g)), land and buildings held for own use (Note
2(h)) and investment property (Note 2(i)) which are
stated at their fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with the HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of the HKFRS Accounting Standards that
have significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in Note 3.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ))

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 RBEEEREARSHBERER
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (4&)
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(b) MBHREREE ()

statements (continued)

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately
RMB540,074,000 and had net cash used in operating
activities of approximately RMB111,166,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2024 and as of
that date the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately RMB1,572,570,000 and a relative low
balance of cash at bank and on hand of approximately
RMB10,710,000. However, the directors of the
Company do not consider that material uncertainties
related to events or conditions exist which, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. This is because
based on a cash flow forecast of the Group that cover
a period not less than twelve months from the date
of approval of these consolidated financial statements
prepared by the management, the directors have made
an assessment and concluded that the Group is able to
continue as a going concern for at least the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period and to
meet its repayment obligations, as and when they fall
due, having regard to the following:

— the Group has obtained new short-term
loans from two banks with a total amount of
RMB55,000,000 after the end of the reporting
period;

—  Xian Quijiang Culture Financial Holdings Group
Co., Ltd. (“Qujiang Financial Holdings"”) (the
controlling shareholder of Qujiang Investment),
a state-owned enterprise, has extended its
short-term loans for two years granted to the
Group of approximately RMB3,814,486,000
during the year ended 31 December 2024;

—  Qujiang Financial Holdings has committed
to provide additional loan facility of
RMB1,000,000,000 to the Group and provide
guarantees with its subsidiary for the loan facilities
from banks or any other financial institutions. The
directors are of the opinion that the Group can
rely on the financial support of Qujiang Financial
Holdings for at least twelve months from the end
of the reporting period;

RZE-_WMF+=-_A=+—8"
AEBZRBABEFENAA
R #1,572,570,0007T ° LA B A&
E-E_NWFE+=-HA=+—H
IHFEEABBRFREHARE
540,074,0007T % 48 & E B FT IR
&R EA ARE111,166,0007T K
HERIE ZRITRFER A8
#9 A R #10,710,0007T ° #R 1 » A
NAERRE  WHMFAEERE
Brego A SERELEER S
EREAREMNEMNIE RS
HIE R HETEME o it Jh AR IE S
BEREASEREZBEZELS
A ERRES AR PRETDR
+ZEAHBEZRERETEA
EEOHEITIME WRETRAEE
REEBREFREKZ D+ =@
P RE MU B IR B B
7% - AERRMESE AR R TH(E
BEE EFEFTRATEE:

- RBEHPERE AEEE
EMERITERESHEHE
X4 EE A R ¥55,000,000
JC

- —HEBALEATHIX
temizElRk (SE)EFR
AR ([ IR ])
(HIRBEZERRKRR)
EREE T -_MFEL+—
A=+—BILFEBEY
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R R Y &E

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 BAIAAREZ )

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

@%ﬂ%&ik%%‘l‘ﬁ%ﬁﬂ

(b) MBHREREE ()

()

statements (continued)

- the Group has maintained long-term strong
business relationships with its major banks and
financial institutions to get their continuing
support, and is actively discussing with these
banks and financial institutions for renewal
of loans or new facilities amounting to
RMB176,000,000, and the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that renewal or
new facilities are likely to be obtained during
the year ending 31 December 2025.

The directors of the Company are therefore of the
opinion that the Group will have adequate funds
to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due
for at least twelve months from the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, the directors are of
the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the
Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 on a going concern basis.

Application of new and revised HKFRS
Accounting Standards

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the
HKICPA for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2024 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities

()

- AEE—EHFHEFEAR
RITR© BB REFRE
BEMNEBBER LLES
BEZRHRESF WIERE
TR ZERIT R RS
SmERERSTRE S
HiE AR ¥176,000,000
T ARAREZERE R
HE-_Z_AF+=A
—t+—BHI-FEREA B
EESERIFHRE-

Ay KRR EERE AEE
HERHESENEAREER
Bl +-_@RRHBzEaE-H
I EERA BFELERE
REAEEHE-_T-_NFE+ =
A=+—RUIFEZMERETY
BEE-

AT REEITEBMBER
HEAE A

REE RS VS HRK A
BAEAR-_Z-_MF—H—H
32 18 B 1A B FF 5 RS 58 i £ 30
MEE SRS BM T
KIS BB RS LR
Al

BEETER BAERIER

as Current or Non- FE158 B sk IER
current and related (BFTAN) FREER
amendments to Hong ESH (=
Kong interpretation 5 T-FF)
(2020) Z HEREE]
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities BEAGFER WERHEZIE
with Covenants F15 MEAEE
(BETA)
Amendments to HKFRS  Lease Liability in a Sale BEAUBHRE SrEECHE
16 and Leaseback A BIZE 1658 E8E
(BRI )
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(BRIFFZBHER TAUARKEZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Application of new and revised HKFRS
Accounting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7  Supplier Finance
and HKFRS 7 Arrangements

The amendments to HKFRSs Accounting Standards
listed above effective for the current year beginning
on 1 January 2024 do not have any material impact
the Group’s consolidated financial statement.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity interests
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those equity interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those equity interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company.

@%ﬁ%&ik%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ
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ERIEEPNCIVE RN SE e Il 4
HAEEEE2RERERNZ
AR EEZAAZRRIT AR
ERAENRERIENZEZLT
O M ARESZERERE
HltE - ERA AR E R T B
N EeER (ARELEM
NESE=DE-=RiL: Pk

A B A R E RN A B 53R
RN HI A BRI T4
HIF&GREERE-

RS IEARRLEEENK
B A A MM B A R - M3k
ST S - ANSR [ 4 B R T A
ZRBEANERSASERELE
REZENERERABETENR
BT A #) & (9 10 B A0 16

Eo
A °

FEIE R 5 R IR & R RS AROR
RZESET  AREBRAR
ARREGERED

o

HESHEHEERERLA
“ENEER

149



150

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R R Y &E

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

(continued)

Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the period
between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (Note 2(1)), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale.

Goodwiill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interests in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess
is recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(Note 2(1)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(BRIFFZBHER TAUARKEZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

()

Investment in a joint venture

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the equity
method and is initially recognised at cost.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment
loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group’s share of a joint venture’s post-acquisition
profits or losses and other comprehensive income
is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the joint ventures.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of joint
ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(9)

Investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries,
associate and joint venture, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investment. The investments are
initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) for
which transaction costs are recognised directly in profit
or loss. These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment the Group makes an election to
designate the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling)
such that subsequent changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment
meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the
amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At
the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred
to retained profits. It is not recycled through profit
or loss. Dividends from an investment in equity
securities, irrespective of whether classified as at
FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policy set out
in Note 2(v)(v).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ))

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 RBEEEREARSHBERER

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (%)
(continued)
(h) Property and equipment (h) MERRE

Land and buildings held for own use are stated at
their revalued amount, being their fair values at
the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amounts of these assets
do not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.

Changes arising on the revaluation of land and
buildings held for own use are generally dealt
with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as
follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior to
the revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

Residential properties held for own use and other
items of property and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (Note 2(1)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(h) Property and equipment (continued)

ltems may be produced while bringing an item
of property and equipment to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. The
proceeds from selling any such items and the related
costs are recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation
surplus is transferred from the property revaluation
reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to
profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property and equipment, less
their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

2
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Estimated
useful lives
fhat £ A 5
Land and buildings held for own use carried at fair value 20 - 50 years
NRAREIRZFHIEER L RETF 202504
Residential properties held for own use carried at cost and leasehold
improvements 3 — 35 years
ERANEZHEEREEMEREEMERE 3E354F
Properties leased for own use 1 — 13 years
BREEYE 12135
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 — 28 years
B RERRE 3E28%F
Motor vehicles 3 - 10 years
ERITA 3E 104

Where parts of an item of property and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of
the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value
are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(BRIFFZBHER TAUARKEZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(h) Property and equipment (continued)

(

()

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

Investment property

Investment property is land and/or building which
is owned or held under a leasehold interest (Note
2(k)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the end of the reporting period and its fair value
cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment property is accounted for as described in
Note 2(v)(iii).

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (Note 2(1)).

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for prospectively from the date of change and is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(k) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single
lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets which, for the Group are
primarily office furniture. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the
lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where
applicable, the cost of the right-of-use assets
also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (Notes 2(h) and 2(l)(iii)), except for the
right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
investment property are carried at fair value in
accordance with Note 2(i).

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines
at lease inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A lease
is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. If this is not the case, the
lease is classified as an operating lease.

(i)

(ii)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

(ii) As a lessor (continued)

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis. The rental income from operating
leases is recognised in accordance with Note

2(v)(iii).

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following item:

- financial assets measured at amortised
cost (including cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables);

Financial assets measured at fair value,
including equity securities designated at FVOCI
(non-recycling) are not subject to the ECL
assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls
(i.e. the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

—  fixed-rate financial assets and trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current
effective interest rate;

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information about
past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

U]

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following
bases: (continued)

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are
always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets
are estimated using a provision matrix based
on the historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors and an assessment of both the current
and forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date
with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to
pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or
(i) the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and
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Bt %5 ¥R R Y &E

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

U]

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition: (continued)

—  existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date
to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account for
which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the
fair value reserve (recycling).

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the
period in which the recovery occurs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

U]

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each end of reporting period
to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property and equipment, including
right-of-use assets (other than land and
buildings held for own use stated at
revalued amounts);

- intangible assets;
- goodwill;

- non-current prepayments for acquisitions
of properties; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that
have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable
amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). A portion of
the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(for example, head office building) is
allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit if the allocation can be done on a
reasonable and consistent basis, or to the
smallest group of cash-generating units if
otherwise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 BAIAAREZ )

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2 RBEEEREARSHBERER
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (4&)
(continued)
(I) Credit losses and impairment of assets

() FEBEBEREERE(E)

(continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of the assets in the unit (or group of
units) first on goodwill then on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below
its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

(m) Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process of
production for such sale or in the form of materials
or supplies to be consumed in the production
process or in the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method
and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to
the sales proceeds of items sold in the ordinary
course of business subsequent to the financial year
end date or to management estimates based on
prevailing market conditions. Costs necessary to
make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs
which the Group must incur to make the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(BRIFFZBHER TAUARKEZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(m) Inventories (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (Note 2(x)).

Convertible preference share capital

Convertible preference share capital is classified as
equity if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable only
at the Company’s option, and any dividends are
discretionary. Dividends on convertible preference
share capital classified as equity are recognised as
distributions within equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(a)

(r)

(s)

(t

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
trade and other payables are stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at invoice
amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks
and other financial institutions. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECLs in accordance with
the policy set out in Note 2(I)(i).

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the period in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to
business combinations, or items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the period, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(BRIFFZBHER TAUARKEZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination and at the time of the transaction
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the
Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(i), the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of this asset at its carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(BRIFFZBHER TAUARKEZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(v)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to
settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, a separate asset is recognised
for any expected reimbursement that would be
virtually certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of
the provision.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of goods, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets
under leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s
business.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(BRIFFZBHER TAUARKEZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer, or the
lessee has the right to use the asset, at the amount
of promised consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(i)

Sale of goods and net income from
concession sales

Revenue arising from the sale of goods
and net income from concession sales
are recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the goods. No
revenue or net income is recognised if
there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due, the
possible return of goods, or continuing
management involvement with the goods.
Payments received in advance from customers
that are related to sales of goods not yet
delivered are deferred in contract liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Revenue is recognised when goods
are delivered to the customers. After expiry of
prepaid stored value cards, the corresponding
receipts in advance are normally recognised
as income based on the Group’s previous
experience in forfeiture of prepaid stored value
cards by customers.

Service fee income

Service fee income from the operation
of department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets is recognised over time.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group’'s customer loyalty programme
awards customers credits which entitle the
customers to the right to exchange for
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme and gives rise to a separate
performance obligation. The Group allocated
a portion of the transaction price to the
customer loyalty programme based on relative
standalone selling price. Such amount is
deferred and revenue is recognised when the
programme credits are redeemed and the
Group has fulfilled its obligations to supply the
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme. Deferred revenue is also released
to revenue when it is no longer considered
probable that the programme credits will be
redeemed.

Dividends

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (continued)
(vi) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For credit
impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (Note 2()(i)).

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(x)

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than RMB, the Group’s presentation
currency, are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that
are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(BRIFFZBHER TAUARKEZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

(y) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group's
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

The Group’s revenue is substantially derived from
retail customers in the PRC and the Group’s
operating assets are substantially located in the
west region of the PRC. Accordingly, no segment
analysis based on geographical location of the
customers and assets is provided.

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES
(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying

the Group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
accounting judgements:
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 BAIAAREZ )

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3 SEHETRMEE (&)

178

ESTIMATES (continued)

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying

(a) EAXRKEESTBERK ZBE

the Group'’s accounting policies (continued) SEHHE (&)

(i) Going concern assessment (i) FHFELETE
Management has made judgement about EEEHASERELE
the Group's ability to continue as a going ZBENEL HIE - W
concern and concluded that there are no 45w 0 N A R Bl o A
material uncertainties related to events or AR AEEBELE 2
conditions which, individually or collectively, BENBREARMZ EMH
may cast significant doubt on the Group's HIENE M 2ERTHAMA
ability to continue as a going concern. Further o — T ERFHRNMH
information is set out in Note 2(b). FF2(b) °

(i) Classification of interests in leasehold (i) BIEEAZHELMRIE
land and buildings held for own use FHEERER

In accordance with HKAS 16, Property, plant
and equipment, the Group chooses to apply
either the cost model or the revaluation
model as its accounting policy for items of
property and equipment held for own use on
a class-by-class basis. In applying this policy,
the Group has concluded that its registered
ownership interests in leasehold properties
and the right to use other properties leased
under tenancy agreements are two separate
groupings of assets which differ significantly
in their nature and use. Accordingly, they are
regarded by the Group as separate classes of
asset for subsequent measurement policies
in accordance with Notes 2(h) and (k).
Specifically, registered ownership interests
are carried under the revaluation model,
while rights to use properties under tenancy
agreements are carried at depreciated cost.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ - —

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying
the Group’s accounting policies (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Classification of interests in leasehold
land and buildings held for own use
(continued)

In making this judgement, the Group has
taken into account that, as the registered
owner of a leasehold property, the Group
is able to benefit fully from any changes in
the valuation of these properties whether
as holding gains or by selling the property
interest to others, as well as being able to
use the properties in its operation free of
paying market rents. In contrast, the shorter
term tenancy agreements are typically for
periods of no more than 15 years and are
subject to other restrictions, in particular on
transferability of the Group's tenancy rights to
others. These shorter term tenancy agreements
are executed in order to retain operational
flexibility and to reduce the Group’s exposure
to the property market fluctuation. They may
contain termination or extension clauses, and/
or rental payment are usually increased every 1
to 3 years to reflect market rentals.

Recognition of deferred tax on
withholding tax on distribution

At 31 December 2024, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of
certain subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC amounted to approximately
RMB609,430,000 (2023: RMB701,485,000).
Deferred tax liabilities of approximately
RMB30,472,000 (2023: RMB35,074,000) have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that
would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that profits
from these subsidiaries will not be distributed
in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 12, 13, 14, 15 18 and 27 contain information
about the assumptions and their risk factors relating
to values of land and buildings held for own use,
and investment properties, impairment assessment
on goodwill, intangible assets, prepayments for
acquisition of properties and provision for cash coupon
card issued but not yet consumed and financial
assets measured at fair value. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i)

Impairment losses of non-current assets
and prepayments for acquisition of
properties

At 31 December 2024, non-current assets
(other than prepayments for acquisition of
properties) and payments for acquisition
of properties of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB5,159,822,000 and
approximately RMB2,217,041,000 (2023:
RMB5,210,270,000 and RMB2,189,475,000),
respectively. If circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of a long-lived asset may not
be recoverable, the asset may be considered
“impaired”, and an impairment loss may be
recognised in accordance with accounting
policy for impairment of long-lived assets as
described in Note 2(l). The carrying amounts
of long-lived assets are reviewed periodically
or when indications are identified in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have
declined below the carrying amounts. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the
fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In determining the value in use, expected
future cash flows generated by the asset are
discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to the level of
revenue and amount of operating costs. The
Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of the recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of
the level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. Changes in these estimates could have a
significant impact on the carrying value of the
assets and could result in additional impairment
charge or, except for goodwill, reversal of
impairment in future periods.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Depreciation

As at 31 December 2024, the carring
amount of property and equipment and
deprecation of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB3,517,687,000 (2023: RMB
4,085,901,000) and RMB214,290,000 (2023:
RMB197,407,000) respectively.

Property and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, after taking into account the
estimated residual values. The management
reviews the estimated useful lives and the
residual values, of the assets regularly in order
to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during any reporting
period. The determination of the useful lives
and the residual values is based on historical
experience with similar assets. The depreciation
expense for future periods is adjusted if there
are significant changes from previous estimates.

Provision for Cash Coupon Card issued
but not yet consumed

As at 31 December 2024, the Group recognises
provision for approximately RMB177,502,000
(2023: RMB228,830,000) in relation to Cash
Coupon Card issued but not yet consumed.
The provision is based on the amount of
Cash Coupon Card that is expected to be
consumed in the future of approximately
RMB177,502,000 (2023: RMB228,830,000).
The Cash Coupon Card issued but not yet
consumed of approximately RMB357,538,000
(2023: RMB410,972,000). The amount of
Cash Coupon Card that is expected to be
consumed in the future are estimated by
the management’s assessment based on the
latest and subsequent Cash Coupon Card
consumption data availabe to the management.
The amount of provision could change
significantly as a result of changes in market
expectation and trend.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 BAIAAREZ )

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHEKRDEB®E

W z=
AEBZEZEBRNPREE
BERS EBYTLRBRETS
ARMEER-

(a) Revenue (@)
The principal activities of the Group are the operation of
department stores, a shopping malls and supermarkets
and properties managements in the PRC.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold to
customers, net income from concession sales, gross
rental income and management and administrative
service fee income.

(i) Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major products or service lines is
as follows:

WasEmEPEL 2 BmiEE

B -FHEEHEEFEA BH
TWRA - AREERITHRRSEE
WA o

(i)

KABE
REEEMmIARBEEH
ZEPEHNE Y EN
T

2024 2023
—EE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETTT

Revenue from contracts with BB FHREERF155EE
customers within the scope EBERZRBEFEHZNK
of HKFRS15 ey

Sales of goods 7 on S

Net income from concession sales 43 #F SLHE 4 & F U A

Management and administrative &2 & 17 AR B WA
service fee income

Revenue from other sources  H 1t 38R Uk 25
Gross rental income from KEMERE WA

investment properties

Disaggregated by timing of R EREIAKE S E
revenue recognition

Point in time 7 B

Over time B B ]

The Group’'s entire revenue is attributable
to the market in Shaanxi province, the PRC.
No analysis of geographical information is
therefore presented.
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174,183 191,395
70,318 82,344
54,831 44,782

299,332 318,521
58,202 45,305

357,534 363,826

244,501 273,739
54,831 44,782

299,332 318,521

AEENEFYERE S
BIRP 5 - Wit - BER
513038 &KL D AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue (continued)

The Group engages in the retail business, and
accordingly, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s customer base
is diversified and has no customer with
whom transactions have exceeded 10%
of the Group's revenue for the year ended
31 December 2024 (2023: Nil). Details of
concentrations of credit risk are set out in Note
31(b).

Information on gross revenue

Gross revenue for concession sales charged to

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

4 WHEKkoBEE (F)

(a) Wz ()

(i)

WADHE(E)
AEBRETEER A
fARAEERE K
SBENEFPEMREZITIL:
Bz -_mFE+=
BA=+—HLEFELXE
EWERZBEBAEERIK
mIOMBERF(ZE ==
F:|) - FERRBREPH
EAE 2N RV

BB e B B2 B
AATERFPZFHHEE

retail customers. SHE T EIES o
2024 2023
—E-NmE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARBF T
Sales of goods 2 on 86 & 174,183 191,395
Gross revenue from concession  FEF BB E E YR
sales 558,956 695,224
Gross rental income @ e WA 58,202 45,305
Management and administrative & I & 17 AR % & Uk A
service fee income 54,831 44,782
846,172 976,706

Further details regarding the Group’s segment
reporting are disclosed in Note 4(b).

BERAKED RS &
— HFBR M T4 B EE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(BRIFBEEH TAUARKEZZ)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued)

(a)

(ii) Revenue expected to be recognised in

the future arising from contracts with
customers in existence at the reporting
date

The Group has applied the practical expedient
in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales
contracts for prepaid stored value cards
such that the Group did not disclose the
information about revenue that the Group will
be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining
performance obligations under the contracts
for sales of prepaid stored value cards
because the Group recognises revenue at the
amount to which it has a right to invoice,
which corresponds directly to the value to
the customer of the Group's performance
completed to date.

(b) Segment reporting
The Group manages its businesses by lines of
business. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following
two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

Department stores and shopping malls: this
segment operates 3 department stores and 2
shopping malls.

Supermarkets: this segment includes the
operation of 1 community supermarkets, 3
comprehensive supermarkets and 1 fresh food
supermarkets.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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4 WHEkoBERE (&

Wi ()
(i) FRIRAREREFE AR

FHEZEFENMELZ
W a2z

AEBEHEEMNRHEER
HEANRMBE BT R
HEXERIEI55R 121 &y Al
TR BWAEELT
EBEWENRCEMNEER
HEAHNBRTREOEMER
AEBEBWR 2 K2 1=
B RAAAXEEKHES
EREzoBEER KD
MZzeBEEERREZS A
SERNEFBHZEE-

BEHE

SEEBEGRUEERER
oW EIR DB R RBEFFEM
5 RTAAAEEZESHRE
BREERBREEM T A&
B2 IR A T ME R R & 2 BT
2W - BMEBLEDEEHHABK
AT s D8 e

S
i &

e BHEBLEBYHL: M
DHBEEE=XAEH
B RMRBY L -

s HBAMB:UoMEREE
B-FRuRBATES =
REFABAME R —KE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment information

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results attributable
to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and net income and expenses
are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue and net income
generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments.
However, assistance provided by one segment
to another is not measured.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is “adjusted EBITDA" i.e. "adjusted earnings
before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation”, where “interest” is regarded as
including interest income, and other financial
charges and income, and “depreciation
and amortisation” is regarded as including
impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets and valuation gain or loss on investment
property. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the
Group’'s earnings are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as head office or corporate
administration costs. No inter-segment
sales have occurred for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023.

Assets and liabilities are not monitored by the
Group’s senior executive management based
on segments. Accordingly, no information on
segment assets and liabilities is presented.

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

4 WHEKkoBEE (F)

(b) DEHmE (&)

(i)

S EEH
MR BB AT 9 B R IR
RORERME ~EE
ZEBREREERESER
HBESBzEMESE H
BN

Yoz BOFAA BB 2 9
Rz HmEnal 2R
& EDEATE £ RF
WA %% D BT £
FISC o AT o &R 2 [EI P32
HXEAL A TETE-

AR#mEsHafzh
SR A [ #EFH ZEEBITDA |
Bl [ A& 2 Rt F B -
HE -TERBHEIZA
FMl-ERIFE]BEF
B AR E A B 7 &
WA - [ITEREH] B
REREEREREEZ
REBEREEME A
BEREZHEE - BFTEL
FEEBITDA REB 2 &
FITHE W AR W EFIIE T B
P E B 5 22 3B B 1 H
E—SHAE NEHER
HARITHAA -REZE
TECNER T -=F
+-A=+—HIFE-
REB D SRR B & o

BEERBELELHAE
Brzem@EEERy i
o RF - EEyIEE
LEBEBEARZERNZR-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 BAIAAREZ )

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WERDMBEE (F)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DE/E (&)
(i) Segment information (continued) (i) ZHEHR (&)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 is set out below:

WTHEEBEASEE 27
MEDEBERTIIRME T
rEBEZEERERE-
NHFEEREE—ZT =T
FER-E-_=%+=H
=t+—BLFELIREER

Rt o &R IR
2024
1 3
Department
stores and
shopping malls  Supermarkets Total
BEBER
B BRHE CH)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTFT ARE T ARETF T
Disaggregated by timing of KUK EHRAKHELE
revenue recognition
Point in time i 113,792 130,709 244,501
QOver time sl 50,366 4,465 54,831
164,158 135,174 299,332
Revenue from other sources R B E R 2 ki 48,475 9,727 58,202
Revenue from external AREFzZBERTRE
customers and reportable 2z
segment revenue 212,633 144,901 357,534
Reportable segment profit PECRE: Y
(adjusted EBITDA) (48 FH#EBITDA ) 4,479 19,548 24,027
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

4 WHEKkoBEE (F)

(b) DEHmE (&)

(i) Segment information (continued) (i) 7EHER (&)
2023
“E--F
Department
stores and
shopping mall Supermarkets Total
BEESE K
BoH BRT5 CEH)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
Disaggregated by timing of RUWERABEIE
revenue recognition
Point in time 5 123,017 150,722 273,739
QOver time BE B i 34,621 10,161 44,782
157,638 160,883 318,521
Revenue from other sources 3 B & ft 36R 2 W 35,464 9,841 45,305
Revenue from external AREFZUBRTHS
customers and reportable 2 Uz
segment revenue 193,102 170,724 363,826
Reportable segment (loss)/profit A 55 % 20 (E18) /
(adjusted EBITDA) i A (48 FEEBITDA) (2,068) 6,981 4,913

HESHEHEERERLA
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 BAIAAREZ )

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WRRRkoBHEE (EF)
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DE/E (&)

(ii) Reconciliation of reportable segment (i) TREDZB (FBE), B
(loss)/profit T #1 AR

2024 2023
—E-MF —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARET T

Reportable segment profit o] 5 o 2B A
(adjusted EBITA) (A HEEEBITA) 24,027 4,913
Other income H o e A 1,030 6,685
Share of result of a joint venture DEEERAEE 2,408 -
Depreciation expenses TEMX (214,290) (197,407)
Impairment losses on prepayments U B8 ¥ % 8 (4 FUB 2 RUEE1E
for acquisition of properties (57,134) (35,747)
Net finance costs B EREE (283,651) (231,802)
Valuation (losses)/gains on REMEMLE (BR) s
investment properties (17,131) 1,270
Unallocated head office and corporate  7& %3 Bt 42:3F & /A 8147 B 5 52
administration expenses (6,256) (11,464)
Loss before taxation B ATEE (550,997) (463,552)
5 OTHER INCOME 5 HilgA
2024 2023
—E-NME —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FR AREFT
Interest income B U A 99 2,090
Change in fair value of financial assets BAnREFERHEBTABRELZ
measured at FVPL CREEZANEEY - 453
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BB REH 2K
equipment 263 4,142
Sundry income FMIEHA 668 -

1,030 6,685
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ))

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6 KRBAIEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRIEATEBE MR, (FTA)
(crediting):
(a) Net finance costs: (a) BIBERFRE:
2024 2023
—E-ME ZE=F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARETT

Interest expenses on bank and other BRI REMEE ZFEX H

borrowings 334,173 296,395
Interest on lease liabilities MEEBZHE
(Note 22(b)) (Ktat22(b)) 26,710 18,408
Bank charges and other finance costs ~ $R1TE R K E b B 5 E B 7,369 1,535
Total borrowing costs BEERAR 368,252 316,338
Less: interest expense capitalised W BERMEARBYEENR
into prepayments for acquisitions of HZHBRX
properties (Note 22(b)) (KfzE22(b)) (84,700) (84,700)
Net foreign exchange loss BE 5B 185 58 99 164
283,651 231,802
The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate HE_Z-_NF+_RA=+—
of 7.00% for the year ended 31 December 2024 HIEEE fEEKABE R
(2023: 7.00%). ET00%ER(ZT =4
7.00%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

6

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

6

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

BRELAIE R (&)

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed
by the local government authorities, whereby
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to
the schemes at 16% of the employees’ basic
salaries. Employees of these subsidiaries are entitled
to retirement benefits, calculated based on a
percentage of the average salaries level in the PRC,
from the above mentioned retirement schemes at
their normal retirement age.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
for employees under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant salaries, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant salaries of HK$30,000.

Contributions to the retirement schemes vest
immediately, there is no forfeited contributions that
may be used by the Group to reduce the existing
level of contribution.

The Group has no further obligation for payment of
other retirement benefits beyond the above annual
contributions.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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(b) Staff costs: (b) BT A
2024 2023
—E-NmEF —EC-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETFTT
Salaries, wages and other benefits He ITEREMER 58,109 75,013
Contributions to defined contribution [ & 28 it 3R R 5T 2l 5%
retirement plans 7,750 9,377
65,859 84,390

REBRPBEXIZZMERRZ
BREZEMTRTRBEEIREZE
B FTORKEME B B % F
MBARARREELAFHEZ
16% A% 35 5T &I 5K IR I% it
RRGHE ZEHBARRER
EHIEERNFRISEER Dt
BRAKGHEZBRPEFHHFENX
FEDLEEZRKER -

REBENMRBEEEAHERTES
BB BB B RBIED Z 5%
e T 2REEEE—([@as
RESEFTE ([RERETE]) -
siE et A —ERBIIITA
BIE 2 EREMRGTE - BIERTE
8- BRERERBYHERKE
BHBHFEZ% (FAEBEH
& IR A30,000/8 70 ) Mt 24

o
N

AR AR &2 SR BB 57 8 o A
SETE2H A ORI TR
KRB OHFKF -

B 1B ot & R SER4N NS [E
MELEMRARENSRZE
Fo
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M ERREE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 PMRBIAIEE (&)
(c) Other operating expenses: () HttZ&EmMx:
2024 2023
—B-NE —T_=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFR AREFT
Auditors’ remuneration 22 G
- audit services —ZHRH% 2,600 2,600
- non audit services — R BRTS - -
Other professional service fee HithEXRBEE 9,602 10,683
Property management fee MEERE 3,130 7,405
Expense related to short-term lease EHHERBRX - 72
Others HAh 40,004 37,433
55,336 58,193
7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 REBERAMEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) FEBRKRAZBIERE:
profit or loss represents:
2024 2023
—E-NE —T-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T
Current taxation (Note 28(a)): KEAB IR (HiiE28(a)) :
~ withholding tax on distributed —DIkBNFEMB
earnings - 2,888
— provision for PRC Corporate — B EFTETEE
Income Tax 513 221
— over-provision in respect —REFEBRERE
of prior years (1,963) (712)
(1,450) 2,397
Deferred taxation (Note 28(b)): BB (KaE28(b)) :
- origination and reversal of —EREECZELARED
temporary differences (9,473) (5,806)
(10,923) (3,409)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &% —
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax credit and

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R R Y &E

F_MFE+_A=1+—HIFFE
(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

REBBERAMEN (&)

(b) BHBERREFHERRBEAB

accounting loss at applicable tax rates: RZBAHWT :
2024 2023
—B-NE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFR AREFT
Loss before taxation BRI B 1R (550,997) (463,552)
Expected tax on loss before tax, GRHAERBRNE KA R

calculated at the rates applicable BB AR HERTRTE

in the tax jurisdictions concerned (B aEG) ~ (i) % Giii))

(Notes (i), (i) and (iii) (137,286) (115,202)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses N AT 41 3z i 2 TR 75 52 2 60,868 11,283
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERTMAZ BB E (12,832) (15,183)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ~ AERMEEE 2 HHTE 66,354 98,911
Tax effect of temporary differences not AEREREB 2 HHTE

recognised 14,538 14,606
Tax effect of share result of a joint HEBRAREEIRG

venture Efé (602) -
Withholding tax on distributed earnings %k 2 ¥ T8 #0#% - 2,888
Over-provision in respect of BEFEEERE

prior years (1,963) (712)
Income tax FTiS# (10,923) (3,409)

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax credit and
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%). No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made,
as the Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong did not have assessable
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: RMB Nil).

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in countries other than the PRC
(including Hong Kong) are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of
their respective countries of incorporation.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are subject to a PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of
25% for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
25%).

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

rERBERAMEHR (&)

BEXHRETERZERB
RZREWMT: (&)

GEE

() ARARAEEBRESFMEK
S MWEBRRIBBMNE SR
BHHREAE165% (ZE-=
F:16.5%) HRARAE R
REBERE BT 2 B
AEBEE-_NMF+=A
—t+—HLEFETEEMNE
BHEH RSN (=
Z=FARBZL) R
KB BRE B AL BE -

(il ARRERAEERGTE (21
BB ) ASNBEI SR EE A S 2 Bt
BRRIREE S 8 M E
RIERRERBRGRER
FTiSH -

(il BEZZ-_MF+-_A=+—
AIEFE  REBRFABIKZ
ZWBARIEGSMNP R
BRI R A25% (2=
F:25%) e
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 BAIAAREZ )

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

8

EEHMH

RIFE B R BHEDIFE3I83(1)IE R A7
(WEREEENmEHR) ROIF 280K E
ZEFFMT

2024
—E-mg
Allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Directors’ fees in kind contributions Total
EER
EEHe ENERN  BARGEHER &t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFIT ARETT
Chief Executive and Executive Director THEARRHTES
Mr. Choon Hoi it Edwin (note (a)) BRNLE (Wita) 23 - - 3
Mr. Qin Chuan (note (d) ®%EE (Kitw) 620 - 10 630
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Yao Jiangang s 600 654 - 1,254
Ms. Wan Qing BEXL 562 414 48 1,024
Ms. Zhang Wei (note (e)) RELL (M) - - - -
Non-executive directors FUTES
Mr. Chen Shuai (note (b)) REDGE (Bict(b) - - - -
Mr. Huang Zhihua (note (c)) BUELE (Wito) - - - -
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUEHTES
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng Bulsis i 4 112 - - 112
Ms. Song Hong R &t 112 - - 112
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai LHELE 169 - - 169
2,198 1,068 58 3,324

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024



Notes to the Financial Statements

M ERREE
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

8 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

8 EEHM (&)

2023
—E-=F
Allowances Retirement
and benefits scheme
Directors' fees in kind contributions Total
28R
ESHs ENRA RINGTEIER A3t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTT AREFTT ARETFL
Chief Executive and Executive Director {THAZBRHTES
Mr. Qin Chuan (note () RIEE (K@) 1,442 - 16 1458
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Yao Jiangang e L 262 1,151 3 1,416
Ms. Wan Qing RELL 318 676 44 1,038
Non-executive directors FUTES
Mr. Chen Shuai (note (b)) BabE (WD) - - - -
Mr. Huang Zhihua (note (c)) BRERE (W) - - - -
Independent non-executive directors ~ BIFHTES
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng Buié % & 206 - - 206
Ms. Song Hong R L 206 - - 206
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai LHEELE 229 - - 229
2,663 1,827 63 4553
Notes: it 5t -

(a)

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit Edwin was appointed as an executive
director, and Chief Executive Officer on 15 October 2024.

The emolument of Mr. Chen Shuai from 1 January 2022 to
31 December 2024 in relation to his service rendered for
the Group was borne by Hony Capital and not allocated to
the Group.

The emoluments of Mr. Huang Zhihua from 14 December
2022 to 31 December 2024 in relation to his service
rendered for the Group was borne by Quijiang Financial
Holdings and not allocated to the Group.

Mr. Qin Chuan was resigned as an executive director and
Chief Executive Officer on 10 July 2024.

Ms. Zhang Wei was appointed as an executive director on
30 October 2024 in related to her service rendered for the
Group was borne by Quijiang Financial Holdings and not
allocated to the Group.

(e)

HEARNCER - -_MNE+/+H
HEZTARITESHRITHAH -

RENEAEHENR —_ZE-_—_F—H—H
EZE-NMFE+-_A=+—HBAXK
S EREIRF A E B AR E A
B-mAkAIRETAEE-

ERELEEN-_ZE-_—_F+=A
+HONRAE-_ZEZ_WNE+-A=+—
AAEAEERERFEHOHMAHT
SRUMERESE  MARDIE T ASHE -

ZNEXAER -_Z-MWEFELA+H
BHERITESRITRAE -

REZTN-_Z-_MWF+A=+H
BZERNTES RASHEIEHR
PR 75 £ 35 B e fih )T & mb %8 AROARCHE
MARDE T ANEHE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B35 B8 BAIAAREZ )

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,

three (2023: three) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note 8.

The emoluments in respect of the other two (2023: two)
individuals are as follows:

9

RE#HAL
EREASEHFALR =4 (=T
SSEZR)REE MEAMEHE
B B -

BHEHEMRE (ZTEZ=F :MWE)A
TZMEmT:

2024 2023
—EmE It e
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind % & REE R EMEWREF

Retirement scheme contributions ROREFEIE R

The emoluments of the two (2023: two) individuals who
are not directors and who are amongst the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are within the following

1,246 1,877
79 79
1,325 1,956

ME(CE-=F MB)AUHFEFH
BRASERLZRSFHA L ZERIA
TZHMNFATEE:

bands:
2024 2023
—E-NE B
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE
HKD Nil to HKD1,000,000 Z% 021,000,000 7T 2 1
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7L 21,500,000/ 7T - 1
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10 HttZ2mEk =
(a) Tax effects relating to each component of other (a) HBHMPEWEEEHBBE N
comprehensive income B2
2024 2023
“E-ME —E-CHF
Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax  Before tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount  expense amount amount expense amount
BB EA NRBE  REEN nkHKE
8  REMX #eHE 8  HERX BB
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARMTT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETI
(Note 28(b)) (Note 28(b))
(Kii28(b)) (B£28b)
Surplus on revaluation of EfffEER LR
land and buildings held ~ BF 7 &%
for own use (Note 12) (B15#12) 150,673 (37,668) 113,005 160,538 (40,135) 120,403
Other financial assets net  Ef & BEELLE
movement in the fair RE2HTE
value reserve 3N - 3N 12,053 - 12,053
Exchange differences BERRTEE L
on translation into ERZES
presentation currency (10,298) - (10,298) (17,661) - (17,661)
Other comprehensive EzmEks/
income/(expense) (Ax%) 140,746 (37,668) 103,078 154,930 (40,135) 114,795
(b) Components of other comprehensive income, (b) EHEME2EWHRZLD (BIEEHD
including reclassification adjustments. HAE) -
2024 2023
—E-NE S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFT
Equity investments measured at BRARBEBHSHTA
Fvocl Hitt 2 E W 2 RAE S
Changes in fair value recognised during & RHER 2 A 7 EE
the year 371 12,053
Reclassified to accumulated losses upon HEEEFH D EZE RaHEE
disposal 114 (14,642)

HESHEHEERERLA
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Bt %5 ¥R R Y &E

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

11 BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company of approximately RMB538,091,000
(2023: loss of RMB453,250,000) and the weighted
average number of approximately 1,149,695,000
ordinary shares (2023: 1,165,819,000 ordinary and
convertible preference shares) in issue during the
year.

The holder of the convertible preference shares
is entitled to receive the same rate of dividends/
distributions as the holders of ordinary shares.
Accordingly, for the purpose of the calculation of
basic loss per share, the convertible preference
shares issued have been included in the calculation
of the weighted average number of shares in issue.

On 6 January 2023, the Company had completed
the off-market share buy-back of non-voting
preference shares, details of which are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Diluted loss per share

The calculation of diluted loss per share is the same
as the basis loss per share as the Company did not
have any potential dilutive shares outstanding for
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

11 BEREARRBEER

(a)

(b)

BREXRER
EREABEEDERAEAR
AIREEMLMEBEEOAREK
538,091,000C ( =& = =4 :
518 A R #453,250,0007T) &
RAFADEITINEFETEHLD
1,149,695,000/x L@k (==
=% :1,165,819,000/% & @A
KA R B 5% ) o

BB A AGEIRE
EERFAEABRZLERER

BB ik B et E &I
EXEEME  FFEERTRND

IMEFHEED AR EITA ]
P8 S B o

RZEZ=ZF—AH &AQF
Bz INE s mIE R RE KL
f% - BN R A ISR KR W
3¥30 °

BREEESR
HRARRREE S -_NF K
—E=F+-A=t+—HIF
[N A BERITEINEER
- WEREEBE HENRES
EREEAR -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

12 MERRZRE

Residential
Land and  properties held
buildings held ~ for own use
forown use carried at cost Properties Furniture,
carried at fair ~ and leasehold leased for fixtures and Motor  Construction in
value  improvements own use equipment vehicles progress Total
REASEL
Pt KEER
ZEFER ftENE &R
T#REF REENEEE BREENX  RERRG E®IR ERIE CHl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT AEEFT AEEFR AEEFR AEEFT AEETT AEETT
Cost or valuation; HARME:
At 1 January 2024 RZE-mF-F-H 3,641,462 200,920 464,503 30,410 794 12,534 4,350,623
Exchange adjustments EX#E - 6 - 230 - - 236
Additions NE - 5915 3,262 1439 - 18,717 29,333
Disposals RE - (7,084) (5,349) (28,640) - - (41,073)
Transfer inffout) #)\/(1) - 11,830 - 815 - (12,645) -
Reclassification to investment property XA EHHE
(Note 12()) (BE120) (528,108) - - - - - (528,108)
Surplus on revaluation (Note 10) BB (Af10) 150,673 - - - - - 150,673
Less: elimination of W EHEHAE
accumulated depreciation (147,915) - - - - - (147,915)
At 31 December 2024 RZZZMET-ZF=1-4 3,116,112 211,587 462,416 4254 794 18,606 3,813,769
Representing: N
Cost AR - 211,587 462,416 4254 794 18,606 697,657
Valuation - 31 December 2024 HE-—T-mE
+ZA=1+-A 3,116,112 - - - - - 3,116,112
3,116,112 211,587 462,416 4,254 79 18,606 3,813,769
Less: accumulated depreciation ' RHTERHEFS
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2024 RZE-WE-A-H - (143,568) (90,820) (29,996) (338) - (264,722)
Exchange adjustments EjEE - 6) - (230) - - (236)
Charge for the year TEEHE (147915) (20,906) (42,733) (2,669) (68) - (214,290)
Written back on disposals REBHED - 2,445 4166 28,640 - - 35,251
Elimination on revaluation BRERER 147915 - - - - - 147915
At 31 December 2024 RZBZMETZA=+-H - (162,039 (129,387) (4,254) (406) - (296,082)
Carrying amount: REE:
At 31 December 2024 RZZZMET-F=1-H 3,116,112 49,552 333,029 N 388 18,606 3,517,687

HESHEHEERERLA
“ENEER

199



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R R Y &E

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIFS B8 BAIAAREZ )

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12 MERRE(E)

Residential
Landand  properties held
buildings held for own use
forownuse carried at cost Furniture,
carried at fair -~ and leasehold  Properties leased fixtures and Construction in
value  improvements for own use equipment  Motor vehicles progress Total
BEATI &L
WA MBS REER
LEfEER frzng B
1HREF REENZEE BREENE  RERRE EHTA ERIE At
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RIMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ANREFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT ANRETT AREFT ANREFT
Cost or valuation: HAS{EE:
At 1 January 2023 RZFZ=F-A-H 3,734,360 172,465 255,753 29971 651 13571 4,206,771
Exchange adjustments 3K - 11 - 38 - . 397
Additions hE - 12,584 211,871 2,458 143 37,758 264,814
Disposals RE - (22,935) (3121) (2,405) - - (28,461)
Transfer in/fout) g1/ (1) - 38,795 - - - (38,795) -
Reclassification to investment property [FIREMEEH 7%

(Note 12(b) (Hizt12(e)) (104,358) - - - - - (104,358)
Surplus on revaluation (Note 10)  EfEB# (Hf#10) 160,538 - - - - - 160,538
Less: elimination of B EERHE

accumulated depreciation (149,078) - - - - - (149,078)
At 31 December 2023 RZZZ=#+-F=1-H 3,641,462 200,920 464,503 30,410 794 12,534 4,350,623
Representing; &

Cost ik - 200,920 464,503 30410 794 12,534 709,161
Valuation - 31 December 2023 hE--5-=%
t-h=1-H 3,641,462 - - - - - 3,641,462
3,641,462 200,920 464,503 30,410 794 12,534 4,350,623
Less: accumulated depreciation W R MEREESR

and impairment losses
At 1 January 2023 RZEZ=F-f-H - (135,393) (58,836) (28,550) (250) - (223,029)
Exchange adjustments EHAE - (1) - (386) - - (397)
Charge for the year TEEHE (149,078) (10,463) (34,497) (3,281) (88) - (197,407)
Written back on disposals REBEMD - 2,299 2513 2,21 - - 7,033
Elimination on revaluation EfBRH 149,078 - - - - - 149,078
At 31 December 2023 RZEZZH+ZA=T-A - (143,568) (90,820) (29,99) (338) - (264,722)
Carrying amount: BHEE:

At 31 December 2023 RIZZZFTZA=T-H 364146 57,352 373,683 414 45 12,534 4,085,901
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment properties

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value
of the Group’s land and buildings and
investment properties measured at the end
of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

J Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
guoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

. Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

12 MERRE (&)

(a) BRAEINKRZTHBREFR
REVMEZAAEE

(i)

RRAEER
TR N REHRIRE
FUHEAEFEZAREZ
THREFARKREYE
ZRRB-BRZARE
RO EHE(RE
B B % e 2 RSB 1357
[(AREHEIZEE)D
F-BAREAESHZ
E&RD2EMTEHERE
FrREAREZ IBEM
NEZUHREF:

e FAfAE:EER
F—RE ABiE (8
RETERRBEEEK
BENAEMS 2K
RPAERE)FTEZ

NIME -

s F_AMAEERE
— R ABUE (AR
REERE-—RzAE
R AHRE) X R
EREXRTAIBRE
ANBBEFHEZAR
BE-TABRG AR
BEREMSBEREMR
TZBABE-

. BERHEERE
ARE] BB A B
HEZARE:
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIFS B8 BAIAAREZ )

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12 MERRZE (E)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and () RAAREIRZIHBREFR
buildings carried at fair value and REMEZANARETE (&)
investment properties (continued)

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (continued) (i) AREER(E)

Fair value measurements
categorised into Level 3

DPEABBE=ZRZAAEFTE

2024 2023
—2omE T -F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Al

RfE

S
ﬂ_l‘l_f
o

Recurring fair KEM
value measurements

Land and buildings held for BEER T NET

own use 3,116,112 3,641,462
Investment properties (Note 13) &K&W (Kt:F13) 1,345,377 834,400
During the year ended 31 December 2024, Hz_—_Z2_-_MmME+_- A
there was no transfer between Level 1 and =t+—HLEFE UWES
Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3 — R EAE — R 2 B RS
(2023: no transfer). The Group’s policy is to BAFEBHE=AR(=ZZ
recognise transfers between levels of fair value TEFEEBRE) KK
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period ZBUR BB R Y 3R
in which they occur. HEHRERAAEERS

DARE B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment properties (continued)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

All of the Group’s land and buildings
held for own use carried at fair value and
investment properties were revalued as at 31
December 2024. The valuations were carried
out by Newland Appraisals Limited (2023:
Newland Appraisals Limited), an independent
professional qualified valuer. The valuer has
experience in the location and category
of properties being valued. The Group’s
Financial Controller has discussions with the
external valuer on the valuation assumptions,
techniques, inputs and valuation results when
the valuation is performed at each interim and
annual reporting date.

Since the current economic conditions,
whereby the relevant markets became less
active and the market evidence became
less available and reliable. The directors of
the Company believe discounted cash flow
approach is more representative of fair value in
the current circumstance.

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

12 MERSEE (H)
(@) BAREIRZTHREFR
REAMEZDAEHE (4)

(i)

RAEER (F)
AEBFARRAETR
ZREE R REF I
REEMENR T _MF
T-A=T—HBE&TE
fH-ZAERBLEXRS
BERGEMFTHSFILE
BEMGEARAR(ZF
TR HEEBHMESR
EHEAER AR ETT %
MEMNGENEZGE
RIBRIERER -NEF
BN FERE AT
B AEE P BRAE
2 8250 5B 1 B Bl & & 45 9
EEMRE &l WAER
RAGEER -

e 3 B A1 AR AR+ 48 B
i 1 TR B 5 B
BB ETHAERA K-
ARFEERAURAS
REEBEREABER
THARE-:

HESHEHEERERLA
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment properties (continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used in

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

12 MERRKRE (&)

(a) BAREIRZLHREFR
REWMEZNARERNE (F)

(i) E=RAREAEFER

Level 3 fair value measurements ZEEGERBABIEE
&
As at 31 December 2024 Valuation techniques Significant unobservable input Range
RZB-WF+ZA=1-H fhlER % EXTARRGAER e
Land and buildings held for Discounted cash flow approach  Risk-adjusted discount rate 2%
own use
RIEERTHREF BRRSRERE Bl E R
Expected market rental growth 3%
BEmSEEER
Market monthly rent rate (per sqm) RMBY5 ~
RMB178
w5 AR (8T AK) ARBBTE
AR®178T
Market comparison Average market unit RMB12,300
approach sale rate (per sqm)
5 BE THMGENEE (BFAA) AE#12,3007C
Average parking spot market unit RMB180,000 ~
sale rate (per sqm) RMB196,000

Investment properties-ownership
interests in land and buildings

RENE-THREFY
HRERD

BRAEREE

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

Discounted cash flow approach

THEETSEUEE (ETHK) AR$180,0007T

ey

==

AK#196,0007

Risk-adjusted discount rate 2%

B E L

Expected market rental growth 3%
EEmSEEER

Market monthly rent rate (per sqm) RMB113 ~

RMB216

w5 AR (8 AK) ARBI37LE

ARE2167
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(BRIFFZBHER TAUARKEZS)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment properties (continued)

12 MERRE (&)

(a) BAREIRZLHREFR
REWMEZAARERNE (F)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used (i) E=RAAETEFEA
in Level 3 fair value measurements ZIEEFERBA S5 E
(continued) B (%)

As at 31 December 2023 Valuation techniques Significant unobservable input Range
RIBZ=F+-A=1+-H fEER% EXTUEEEAER LS
Land and buildings held for Discounted cash flow approach  Risk-adjusted discount rate 6%
own use
BIEERTHREF BRRSRER ElCE R R
Expected market rental growth 2% to 5%
BHmEHEER 2%Z5%
Market monthly rent rate RMB92 ~
(per sqm) RMB284
msAR (BFAK) ARERLE
ARH284T
Market comparison Average market unit sale rate RMB14,100
approach (per sqm)
BB TETHEMER (BTHK) ARB14,1007T
Average parking spot market unit RMB180,000 ~
sale rate (per sqm) RMB210,000
THEETSENEER AR#180,000%
(§F7K) AR%210,0007
Investment properties-ownership Discounted cash flow approach  Risk-adjusted discount rate 6%
interests in land and buildings
REME-THREFZ ERRENEE BRARSRE
HEREER
Expected market rental growth 2% to 5%
BEmSEEER 2%%5%
Market monthly rent rate RMB239 ~
(per sqm) RMB290
w5 A" (8 AK) ARE239TE
ARH2907

HESHEHEERERLA
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B %5 8 = MY &
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment properties (continued)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used

in Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

The fair value of certain land and buildings
held for own use carried at fair value and
investment properties-ownership interests
in land and buildings located in the PRC is
determined by discounting a projected cash
flow series associated with the properties
using risk-adjusted discount rates. The
valuation takes into account expected market
rental growth and estimated rental value of
the respective properties. The discount rates
used have been adjusted for the quality and
location of the buildings and the tenant
credit quality. The fair value measurement is
positively correlated to the expected market
rental growth and estimated rental value
and negatively correlated to the risk-adjusted
discount rate.

The fair value of certain land and buildings
held for own use carried at fair value located
in the PRC is determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent
sales price of comparable properties on a
price per square meter basis in the relevant
market. Comparable properties of similar size,
characteristics and location are analysed and
selected for each property in order to arrive at
a fair comparison of their fair values. The fair
value measurement is positively correlated to
the average market unit sale rate.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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(BIBEHY  BAUARELZS)
12 MERSEE (H)

BAREHRZ L HRETR
REAMEZDAENE (&)

(i) E=RAREAEFER

ZIEETER WA BEBE
(&)
ETRAAEINRZFFE
BRTHEEFRIREY
NP EZ - R1E
FZHRBEEESZ HEAR
1875 5R P R e 3 B A 3R
BRI YR ARG 2 FBR R
ERERIIMEE - %A
B REVENERTS
HeZREGHFEEE
B-FEAZMHBAEER
BFzBERERUENLEE
FzFEEERFHAER-
AREFEEBHTISHE
TRERGFESEES
AR R - S B 58 B BL IR
REZRMEHE-

IR Bz mA R ES R
ZETHREAR L RE
FZAREEATSLER
EEE AEK2EAHL
BMEZHEBTISETF T
KEBEEFE ZIOHE
BE-RBRARLBREREY
XZRRE D RERE
MR R B R B AR 2
Al LL B 5 o % A SU(E R
ENARFHMISEME
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of land and
buildings carried at fair value and
investment properties (continued)

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

12 MERRE (&)

(a)

BRAREBEIRZIHEREFTR

REWMEZAARERNE (F)

(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used (i) E=RAAETEFEA
in Level 3 fair value measurements ZIEEFERBA S5 E
(continued) B (%)

Fair value adjustment of investment properties WEWEZ AARBEBRFHER
is recognised in the line item “valuation gain HEBERRZ I REME
on investment properties” on the face of the 2 BN ERER -
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Surplus/deficit on revaluation of properties BFIEERMEZBERH
held for own use are recognised in other BRI [MESHREE] RN
comprehensive income in “property R AHMEE WS -
revaluation reserve”.

All the gains/losses recognised in profit or loss REEERBRZFIBI
for the year arise from the properties held at W/ EEETERSHR
the end of the reporting period. RBEZME-

(iii) Depreciated cost of land and buildings (iii) ARAEIIRZIFEERA
held for own use carried at fair value T REFITERAR

2024 2023
—E-ME B =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFTFRT ARKFIT
Had the revalued land and MPAR S (ESBR 2 E il i
buildings carried at fair value RIEFUKNRRITE
been carried at cost less MBEEERYE  REE
accumulated depreciation and  # /A&
impairment losses, the carrying
amount would have been 2,269,071 2,384,907

HESHEHEERERLA
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Bt %5 ¥R R Y &E

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIFS B8 BAIAAREZ )

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(b) Reclassification between investment

property with property and equipment
Reclassification from property and
equipment to investment property

In a view to adjust the operations of the reopened
department store, the Group used certain areas
of its shopping mall for lease to third parties
instead of operating own department stores from
31 December 2024 and 2023. The above change
in use resulted in the reclassification of these
areas from land and building held for own use to
investment property. On the date of reclassification,
the fair value of these areas recognised under land
and building held for own use was approximately
RMB528,108,000 (2023: RMB104,358,000), which
was determined based on a valuation carried out by
the same valuer using the same valuation technique
as mentioned in Notes 12(a)(i) and 12(a)(ii) above,
and is deemed to be the property’s initial cost for
subsequent accounting under investment property.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

12 MERSEE (H)
(b) REMERWERREZEH

Pl
UYWERRBEEHTERRE
/ES

RARENRECEERSZ
eiE AERR T _NFR-
T_=F+-A=+—HEEFE
BEEYWHLZETEEUA
FE=F MIELEAEFHS-
AR EEENZE R AT
Rzt REFEFN DA
EREYME-REFTHDEHE
ZEREBEFEER 2R
BFBIZALBHEARE
528,108,0007C ( =& = =4 :
AER#104,358,0007T) * Jy4n E
SCREEE12(a)(i) K2 12(a)(ii) Py 3t 4R
BHRE—(HERMERER 2 AE
RiTETzGEMSE AR
HBREREYEETERESHE
18 2V EIAKA
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Bt 3% ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(c)

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use
assets by class of underlying asset is as follows:

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

12 MERRE (&)

(c)

ERAEEE

ERAEEERIFERABEE
B|RIDHaT

2024 2023
—E-mME —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
fft &t AR®FT ARKFT
Ownership interests in KRB AR R ESRZ
leasehold land and buildings  FH{EE R 2T E +ih
held for own use, carried REF B RERERS
at fair value in PRC, with B e THEAN T
remaining lease term 102504
between 10 and 50 years (i) 3,116,112 3,641,462
Properties leased for own use, ZRITERK AT ER 2
carried at depreciated cost EREEYME (ii) 333,029 373,683
3,449,141 4,015,145
Ownership interests in REEREMEZHESR
leasehold investment R AR ES
property, carried at fair value,  BR - A THHEAN F
with remaining lease term 102504
between 10 and 50 years (i) 1,345,377 834,400
4,794,518 4,849,545

HESHEHEERERLA
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Bt %5 ¥R R Y &E

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(BRIFBEEH TAUARKEZZ)

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(c)

12 MERRKRE (&)

Right-of-use assets (continued) () EREEE (&)
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases BARBERERCHERXIER
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: DT :
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E - =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFRT ARKEFT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use & HRI & E AR &2 M E A
assets by class of underlying asset: HEETEXL:
Ownership interests in leasehold land 7 s B A A S (B IER 2 £ 1
and buildings held for own use ERZHEELTHMEEFTZ
carried at fair value in PRC HEEEZ 147,915 149,078
Properties leased for own use, carried ZITEK AT A BAHEE
at depreciated cost LS 42,733 34,497
190,648 183,575
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a)) FEBEZFI B (fit6(a)) 26,710 18,408
Expense relating to leases of low- HEEEEHEEEBNRA
value assets, excluding short-term X T EEEBEEENE
leases of low-value assets HHE - 72

During the year ended 31

December 2024,

additions to right-of-use assets were approximately
RMB3,262,000 (2023: RMB211,871,000). This
amount primarily related to the capitalised lease
payments payable under new tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the
maturity analysis of lease liabilities and the future
cash outflows arising from leases that are not yet
commenced are set out in Notes 22(c), 27 and 31,

respectively.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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HEzReRbERIEERARG
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ))
12 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12 MERFRE (EF)
(c) Right-of-use assets (continued) (c) FEHEEE (&)

(i) Ownership interests in leasehold land () BIEEAZHEELHRKIE
and buildings held for own use and in FREEREYEZHE
leasehold investment property EER
The Group holds several commercial buildings AEEREHEREET
for its department stores and shopping mall NWRERERSMESE
operation business. The Group is the registered B-RAEBERZEMFERE
owner of these property interests, including mHMETHEAA BEHE
the whole and part of undivided share in Btin 2B RE D KD
the underlying land. Lump sum payments ZI A%t o 2N 55 B 38 % 2t
were made upfront to acquire these property —E@NRE - UNBERIF
interests from their previous registered MwEE ABEZSMERE
owners, and there are no ongoing payments m BV ERBEEZESY
to be made under the terms of contract for 1%?&2\ BT S FRIE o
assignment.

(ii) Properties leased for own use (i) BFHEEYxE
The Group has obtained the right to use other KE EEBEAHERHAE
properties as its retail stores through tenancy 1F1E A Eﬁﬂ%%f’ﬁ%/\ z
agreements. The leases typically run for an EEZ%?'J HE—%&
initial period of 1 to 15 years. Lease payments TRE-—ZETHFE-HE
are usually increased every 1 to 3 years to NRBET —E=FE
reflect market rentals. - ARBAISHEE -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13 REYWEF
2024 2023
—EIME T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®Fr ARETFT
Valuation: fh{E:
At 1 January w—H—H 834,400 728,772
Reclassification from property and ER/EIE L ER
equipment (Note 12(b)) (HtaE12(b)) 528,108 104,358
Fair value adjustments NAEFHE (17,131) 1,270
At 31 December Nt+-_A=+—H 1,345,377 834,400

The Grou
operating
period of
the lease

p leases out investment properties under
leases. The leases typically run for an initial
1 to 10 years, with an option to renew
after that date at which time all terms are

renegotiated. Lease payments are usually increased every
1 to 3 years to reflect market rentals. Certain leases
include variable lease payment terms that are based on
the revenue of tenants.

AEERBEEEHENBREMSE-

ZEHE—RVFTRE—ZETF U
BHEERTZBEREN ERNAEIK
R EFET-HedsE—£=
FEM—R: J«/Uiﬂ%rhiﬁfﬂ/\ a7t

Tﬂi"f’éﬁufﬂ}fu&m%%

B

2‘2\ fﬂ
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIFS B8 BAIAAREZ )

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13 REWHE (&)

Undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable R EER - REERE T AT HEEL
operating leases in place at the end of the reporting EHANARREAF Y 2 RAIREE

period will be receivable by the Group in future periods BT

as follows:

2024 2023
—E-E TE-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR FRT ARETT

Within first year —FER 22,478 14,147
In the second year M E A 528 528
In the third year —F R 528 528
In the fourth year P94 A 528 528
In the fifth year hERA 528 528
After five years FHF1% 4,049 4,363
28,639 20,622
14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BEFEE
Trademark
BE
RMB’000
ARBTFIT
Cost: AR :
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, R-_E-_=%—H—H-
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 - =%+-_A=+—H"
—ETMNFE-A—BRK
—E-WF+=ZA=+—H 524,812
Less: accumulated impairment losses W RBFREEE
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, R_EBE_=F—HA—HB - ZT_=%
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 +ZA=+—8 -Z—F-WF
—A—ARkZZE-_NF
+=-ZA=+—H 280,330
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 31 December 2024 R-_E-_WE+_F=+—H 244,482

At 31 December 2023 KRB -_=F+-_A=+—H 244,482

2 1 2 Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Intangible assets represented trademarks with indefinite
useful life. These are allocated to the Group's cash-
generating units identified according to the department
store and supermarket operations as follows:

14

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

BRILEE (&)
myEEEAASRBTERERY

iR

CHREBIVEERBNTNZBER

B REBRTERBOEERAEE 2
ERbR e EEEN:

2024 2023
Country of operation and —EB-WF —E-=F
operating segments RMB’000 RMB’000
FBERREE D AR¥FT ARETT
Century Ginwa Company Ltd. Department stores and
("Ginwa Bell Tower") shopping mall, PRC - -
RS ERNBRAR ([REEE]) BEBSKBEDT L B
Golden Chance (Xian) Limited Department stores and
("GCX") shopping mall, PRC 69,802 69,802
BERESLEDTL P
Ideal Mix Limited Department stores and shopping
mall and supermarkets, PRC 74,680 74,680
BEESKEDR LR
HRmE
Trademark-use-right of the trademark
“Ginwa" (Note (a)) 100,000 100,000
(St MR EIRERE (K@)
244,482 244,482

Note:

The Group enjoys the entire rights and interests in and to
the trademark “Ginwa”, free and clear of any restriction,
which result in the Group having the right, for itself and/
or to license to other third parties, to use the trademark
for any other newly opened shopping malls, department
stores and supermarkets. Accordingly, the intangible asset
is regarded by the Group as having an indefinite useful
life. It has been carried out impairment testing at the end
of the reporting period by testing all of the Group’s cash-
generating units together with goodwill and intangible
assets include in the carrying amount.

Details of impairment tests relating to for cash-generating
units containing goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful life are set out in Note 15.

Wit

(a)

REBEZEMER ST 22 8BERN
KiEns  PRAEMEBS Bt A%
EERBEAS K ABREEME
= REAHEREYT L BERA
B RBEMSERZAER At A
SESEVEERIEAFERNRA
ERFEH NBERR BBELE
BAERSELENERMERE
WEESHAREEER HZELE
EEITRERND -

FREEmRENESRAIERFHZ
BVEEZReEEEM ZRERH
ERCEANGEIRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

15 GOODWILL 15 B8
RMB’000
ARETFT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, RZBE-_=F—HF—HB —F=-=F
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 +-A=+—8 -—&E-_lmF—
A—BE-_ZE-_WNF+-_A=+— E|1451814
Less: accumulated impairment losses A REIREEER
At 1 January 2023, 31 December 2023, R-ZE-_=%—H—H-
1 January 2024 and 31 December 2024 2 =F%+-_HA=+—H"
—EOMFE-A—BR
—E-_NE+=ZA=+—H 1,416,685
Carrying amount: BREIE :
At 31 December 2024 R-E-_ME+-"/F=+—H 35,129
At 31 December 2023 N-_E-_=F+_F=+—H 35,129

Impairment tests for cash-generating units

containing goodwill and intangible assets with

indefinite useful life

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating
units identified according to the department store and

supermarket operations acquired as follows:

Country
operatin

EBERREED P

BREBHERERRUERFH &
REEZREELEMZRENR

HERBINTAAKEZBE®S LIS
AMSEBIEEANEEZ 2 RHIR
TEEEM:

2023
—E-=4F
RMB’000
ARMTFIT

2024
—RomE
RMB’000
AR T T

of operation and
g segments

Ginwa Bell Tower

TILER
GCX

Department stores and
shopping mall, PRC

BEBSLKBYTL FEH

Department stores and
shopping mall, PRC

BEBESMBEYT L T

Ideal Mix Limited

Department stores and shopping
mall and supermarkets, PRC

35,129 35,129

BERSEEYPOE

HBAR™

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

15 GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful life (continued)

Notes:

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

15 B8 (&)
BERmERENRUCAFHZE
FEEREEAENZRERNR
(%)

GES

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the financial
performance of the Group’s department store and
supermarket operations, as a consequence of the slowing
down of economic growth in the PRC as well as a
consequence of the intense competition from surrounding
shopping malls and online retail sales, did not meet
management’s expectations. Management performed
impairment assessments of the relevant cash-generating
units to which goodwill and intangible assets has been
allocated.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units
were determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period. These cash flow projections adopted
the annualised rates of sales growth ranging from 2.0%
to 42.00% (2023: from 0% to 36.40%), which are
based on the Group’s historical experience with these
operations and adjusted for other factors that are specific
to each cash-generating unit including the renovation and
upgrade of the GCX which positions the department store
in the high-end market this enable the Group to reach a
wider and more premium customer base after their grand
re-openings during the year ended 31 Deceber 2024.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated
using an estimated growth rate of 2.02% (2023: 2.20%).
The cash flows are discounted using discount rate of
15.61% (2023: 15.70%). The discount rates used are pre-
tax and reflect specific risks relating to the respective cash-
generating units.

(a)

BHE-_Z-_NF+-A=+—HL
FE BHRPBELEERRENR
FIE2EYRS MR ETEHE R
R ASEBENS MBRTIS
EBRNMBRRARFTERETRE -
EREECHOCEIREBERELE
EMERRSEEBMEITRER
fiie

REEEBNMITRDE©EIEE
FREETEMETE -BHEEE
BREEEEBM ENTFHETB
EEAEENE SRR -%F
ReneBADNBEREERZS
¥ RSP EHRRAFHEERE
B2.0%%E42.00% (ZE=-=F:
0%%E36.40% ) ETHE - WHE—
EReEFEMNBECHMAEA
B BEBEGCXMEIF EAL  iRe
BERHEERBEMR KIS -
FEAREEREE S -_MFE+— A
=t HLEFECEMRAFAER
BhEZRmBE P - AFHME
MRS TEEAGBIERE2.02%
(T - =F:220%)ETHEEZ-
BeRERAMIEEISE1% (ZF
ZZ=F:15.70% ) #EITERIR - FT{E
RN R AKRTBIATANIE £ - R 6
SHeESXEMBEAZEERR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

15 GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful life (continued)

Notes:(continued)

(b)  As a result of the above impairment test, no impairment (b)
loss on intangible assets were recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the current
financial year which relates to the cash-generating unit of
Ginwa Bell Tower, GCX and Ideal Mix Limited.

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations
for the above three cash-generating units are as follows:

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

15 &8 (&)
BE AR R AR R G AR
REAEZRSELENZRENR
(%)
Fiex: (%)

BMEBERAYBFENGS Ba

HREIEEE GCXK

Ideal Mix Limited~ 3R & FE 4 B8 {17

ER=EREELABUNERER
SHEPTEMAM AR KRR T

Key assumptions 2024 2023
BRER ZECQF —ECo=F
Ginwa Bell Tower Annual sales growth rate for the first 0.00% 0.00%
five-year period
&EEE BERFHENFHERRE
Annual sales growth rate after the 2.02% 2.16%
five-year period
LFEHRBNFHERRE
Discount rate 15.61% 15.70%
LAEES
GCX Annual sales growth rate for the first 2.00% - 18.00% 2.20% - 30.00%

five-year period
ERFHENFHEERE
Annual sales growth rate after the
five-year period
TFPRBRAFHEERE
Discount rate
LIRS
Ideal Mix Limited Annual sales growth rate for the first
five-year period
BLEPHOFHEERE
Annual sales growth rate after the
five-year period
LFHMBNFHEERE
Discount rate
LAEES

Any reasonably change in the assumptions used in the
calculation of recoverable amount of cash-generating
units would result in change of impairment losses.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ))

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 REMBERE
The following list contains only the particulars of major TRESHINFEXEAEEEE B
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets EfGEyTEWBARE-

or liabilities of the Group.

Proportion of ownership interest
FRERLIL
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023
R-B-MER-B-=E+-B=1-A

Place of Particulars of The Group's
establishment ~ registered and paid ~ effective Held by the Held by
Name of companies and operations up capital interest ~ Company subsidiaries  Principal activities  Legal form
HAAT
AR Btk AREz @ARE  WELE
RS X% MRRrER  BRER 2] 2 IERR AR
Ginwa Bell Tower* £TEE 18 The PRC 1 RMB AR 83.88% - 83.88% Operation of  Limited liability
235,500,007t department store ~ company
REBsls  BREELA
Xi'an Century Ginwa Saigo Shopping ~ The PRC 1 EE RMB AR 100% - 100% Operation of  Limited liability
Mall Company Limiteq* 30,000,000 department store ~ company
Bzt e tRRENERAT BEEEHS  AREELA
Xi‘an Century Ginwa Shopping Mall  The PRC HKS 65,000,000 100% - 100% Operation of  Limited liability
Company Limited* BT department store ~ company
Bt EENERAS BEREEs EREELT
Xianyang Century Ginwa Trade and ~ The PRC L RMB AR 100% - 100% Operation of  Limited liability
Commerce Company Limited* 3,000,007 department company
At e tHEERAT storesand  BREFAT
supermarkets
R )6
g
Xi'an Yixin Property Management ~ The PRC FFEL RMB AR 100% - 100% Properties  Limited liability
Company Limited* 536,885,7507C management  company
RZEENZERERAA NEER  BRELAT
Shaanxi Qianhui Properties The PRC &l RMB ARE 100% - 100% Operation of  Limited liability
Company Limited* 252,800,0007 shopping mall ~ company
RETEEXARAA and properties  BRETAF
management
FEBIDLR
NEEE
Xi'an Honghui Property Management  The PRC RMB AR 100% - 100% Properties  Limited liability
Company Limited* 124,000,0007 management  company
AR EENZERERAT NEEE  BRELLT
*  The English translation of the names of these companies is * BERATRNELEMBEZ
for reference only. The official names of these companies FRAIZIEAEBAPXRZE-

are in Chinese.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

The following table lists out the information relating
to Ginwa Bell Tower, the only subsidiary of the Group
which has material non-controlling interests (“NCI”).
The summarised financial information presented below
represents the amounts before any inter-company

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

16 REMEBLF (&)

NREFIAEEE—FEERIER
a (EEREED Z2RBARR
TEEERBZEN - TX2I 2/
BRBR R ARAAER A FREEE
ZEHE

elimination.
2024 2023
—E-ME =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARKF T
Revenue Wz 262 272
Loss for the year RFEEERE (12,301) (42,761)
Loss for the year attributable to NCI 74 & 3F 22 B 4 25 B 15 /&5 18 (1,983) (6,893)
Other comprehensive income for ARFEEGHMEEBE
the year 75 -
Other comprehensive income for JEIERR e FE (R AN E A
the year attributable to NCI 2 HE K= (1,908) (6,893)
Non-current assets EMBEE 35,578 41,164
Current assets mBEE 514,579 518,576
Non-current liabilities EmEBEE (1,927) (9,194)
Current liabilities mEEE (409,880) (400,354)
Net assets BEFR 138,350 150,190
Net assets attributable to NCI R EREEEETE 22,302 24,210
Net cash generated from operating ST SIE & F 5
activities 10,615 179,654
Net cash (used in)/generated from EEE (FRA) 5
investment activities e FHE (10,143) 199,340
Net cash used in financing activities MEEHFRRE F5E (1,645) (377,592)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RehIReFEEE
and cash equivalents CRL) /B nFE (1,173) 1,402

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

17. INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

17. RESE N H

2024
—EomE
RMB’000
ARBF T
Unlisted investment: RERIGE

Cost of investment ¥ & Al 2N 4,000

Share of post-acquisition profit and other MW REF KEM 2B
comprehensive income 2,408
Share of net assets DIFEE 6,408

Details of the Group’s joint venture at 31 December 2024

are as follows:

Place of

“E-NF+-A=+—H &%
EAELARZFHBHIMT

Percentage of
ownership interest/

incorporation/ Issued and voting power/ Principal
Name registration paid up capital profit sharing activities
AR ERITR B’/ REE/
=y ot ff it 2 BEEX =R 2 R Bl TEEH
Xi‘an Century linhua Zhuohe PRC Registered capital 40% Operation and

Commercial Management
Company Limited*
(ARELEETAEE
ERABRAF)

AR L EEEAEEER
L NG

of RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital of
RMB10,000,000
AMERARE
20,000,000
BRERARE
10,000,000t

Xi‘an Century Jinhua Zhuohe Commercial Management
Company Limited is a strategic investment of the Group.
The Group has joint control of Xi‘an Century Jinhua
Zhuohe Commercial Management Company Limited with
other joint venture shareholders in accordance with the
relevant contractual agreement which decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control and accordingly has been
accounted for as a joint venture. The Group collaborated
with other joint venture shareholders to enhance the
capability and efficiency of operational management and
brand procurement, and to complement the strength of
each other and share the resources and expertise for the
operation and management of the Gaoxin Shopping Mall.

management of
Gaoxin Shopping
Mall
LEREERSME
BT L

AZELEEEAEmEEREEARA
AR ANEEN —HBRKIRE - RIEE
Matms AEBEREEMSE QA
BEREEARELSEEAEMEER
BRABz HRZESE (BEESZ
RBBAEDEEFIENZTT —RE
B HEARINEEERR] - ANKE
HEHEMAZARRREERETEE
BN an R SR B RO BE 7 B R - A Bk
SHEBYTRONSERERRILZ
REZEM TAAZTEREER-
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

17. INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE

(continued)

The following table show information on the joint venture
to the Group. This joint venture is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method.
The summarised financial information presented is based
on the HKFRS financial statements of the joint venture
which decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

17. REGE QT (&)

TRINRAEBAERRINER %
BERANGEMBRRPERMAE
BEAR - WBERBREIRIEA S
RAMTFERHEREENFTERERZE
5 ERREBHRR AL ZE B
BRI —BRE-

2024
—E-mEF
RMB’000
ARMTF T
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:
Current assets mENE B 18,024
Current liabilities mENEE (2,005)
Net assets BESFE 16,019
Group’s share of net assets AEEDHEEFE 6,408
Goodwill kS -
Group’s share of carrying amount of interests  ANEEE S5z 2 BREE 6,408
Cash and cash equivalents included in current asset st AT B EZ RS RIS ZEER 8,922
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade mEemasE (HREMERK
and other payables and provisions) HAth JE 5 R R 5T ) (2005)
2024
—E-mEF
RMB’000
ARMTF T
Year ended 31 December: BE+t-A=+t—HLHFE:
Revenue Wz 8,000
Depreciation and amortisation e N -
Interest income FEWA 26
Interest expenses FERX -
Other operating expenses HmgEmz (M
Income tax expenses FrigHi < (2,006)
Profit from operation B s 6,019
Other comprehensive income Hfh 2 -
Total profit and other comprehensive income % Fl| K E b % [ Uk 25 48 58 6,019

The Group share of total profit and other
comprehensive income

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

AEES GBI R 2 E RS B8
2,408



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ))

18 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITION OF 18 WYX 2TBNFRE

PROPERTIES

RMB’000
ARKF T
At 1 January 2023 RZE-_=F—H—H 2,128,943
Additions NE 96,279
Impairment losses BB (35,747)

At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 E’;\_ T _=F+-_A=+—HK
—E-NFE—H—H 2,189,475
Additions NE 84,700
Impairment losses VERIEN SR (57,134)
At 31 December 2024 RZE-_MFE+=—A=+—H 2,217,041

The amounts represent payments made by the Group
for its intended acquisition of commercial properties
under development that are situated in the PRC. On
4 December 2014, the Group, through Ginwa Bell
Tower, entered into an acquisition agreement with
Shanghai Huade Investment Company Limited (“Huade
Investment”), pursuant to which Huade Investment
agreed to procure a project company to develop the
above properties in accordance with the requirements
of Ginwa Bell Tower, and Ginwa Bell Tower agreed to
purchase part of the above properties for an aggregate
consideration of RMB1,651,112,750. The substantial
construction of the commercial properties commenced in
October 2016. These properties are intended to be used
by the Group to expand its retail operations.

The additions included capitalised interest expense and
the consideration settled based on the contract. As at 31
December 2024, prepayments for acquisition of properties
with balance of approximately RMB2,217,041,000 (2023:
RMB2,189,457,000). Impairment with approximately
RMB57,134,000 was recognised in 2024 (2023:
RMB35,747,000). Management assess impairment by
comparing the carrying amount with the recoverable
amount which is based on the discounted cash flows
and certain estimation and discount rate to calculate the
value of the properties. After considering the development
progress, the management expect the properties can be
completed and transferred to the Group in the first quarter
of 2026 and to recognise as land and building held for
own use under “Property and equpment”.

Z 5 Eh$$lﬁ%$uﬂ¢lz
EREEEMEMER 2R R

—m&E+=-AmA- $ElﬁLéﬁ
ﬁ&@t/ﬁﬁhﬁﬁﬁ A ([7E

W& )RS EE ﬁ%t“ﬁ&
ﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ“?@#u?ﬁﬁg
kKFE L E mMeftEEREIN
“HREARY1,651,112, 7500 B
o LMME-FENFENEETLR

R-ZE—RETARF ZEVEH
HAKRERARNBEATERHZE

ERREEALCFERAI RIRE
é@%ﬁZﬁ%°ﬂ_2_E$+_
A=+—8 WEWENBENZRIBEL
thi B ANRYE2,217,041,0007T (=
—=fF: AR¥2,189,457,0007T) °
RZEZNFEBERBEHDARE
57,134,000 (ZE - =F: AR¥
35,747,0007T) - B EFEBLLEEER
B ] U O] & B ARE © it DRI
BRI S MERE THFTAKERE
FTEWMEEE HE ZEIMEHE
B EEEBEEPRZEMEIN_ST
CREFE SR T W EANE B E
REMEREE] THRIEER LTI
MHEF o

ﬂ}
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIFS B8 BAIAAREZ )

19 EQUITY INVESTMENTS 19 #EZRE

Equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-
recycling)

EEARDAERERAAEZHTA
HttzmEas (R 8E) 2 RAE
%

2024 2023

—F-mE T =F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT ARETFT

Listed equity securities ETRARES 10,188 11,534

These securities represent the 1,304,536 (2023:
1,548,236) Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc. (“Ginwa
Enterprise”) A-shares listed in the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. The Company obtained the approval from
the Shareholders on 7 July 2022, which allow the
Company to dispose the A-Shares (in whole or in part)
when market condition is favourable during a period
of 12 months from the date of the approval. The
Company disposed 243,700 A-shares through on-market
transactions during the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: 24,891,064 A-shares).

ZEBFERLELERORSHMETZ
1,304,536[% (== = =4 : 1,548,236
Bl)ettE(EE) 2R ([£ED
¥)AR-ARRER B - _F+
R BERRIE Bt ARFHR
B BRES T Z@EARNETRAEF
FFHEAR(2HHBH) BEZZT
“E+-_A=1+—HILFE  AQF
BIBTIER S HE243,700lAKR(ZF
=4 :24,891,0648% ARR) ©

20 INVENTORIES 20 78
2024 2023
=EF-mFE —FT-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBF T
Merchandises 7 h 21,582 25,730
Low value consumables KESFER 1,817 2,273
23,399 28,003

An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense and included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss is as follows:

BRAEZUFIAGABRE L FE
SEANMT

2024 2023

—E-NE —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARBF T

Carrying amount of inventories sold DEFEEREE 152,496 168,753

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

21 BEUWARFR K H b fE UK

2024 2023
—EmE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBF T
Trade receivables from third parties, JEUE = T BRF HIBRE I8 B &
net of loss allowance (Note (a)) (H1a%@)) 22,043 21,963
Other receivables from third parties E e = 5 B 16,462 8,305
Amounts due from related parties JrE U BE B N = F0E
(Note (b)) (KaE b)) 114 26,114
Deposits e 85,661 88,517
Financial assets measured at BEEKAFTECEMEE
amortised cost 124,280 144,899
Value added tax recoverable AR B (E R 13,115 21,476
137,395 166,375

Except for deposits of RMB4,503,000 (2023:
RMB500,000) which without fixed term of refund or
recognition, all of the trade and other receivables are
expected to be recovered within one year.

(a) Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade

receivables (net of loss allowance) with the
following ageing analysis (based on the invoice

Bz 4 AR4,503,0000T (ZE ==
£ ARMS500,0007T) (I EE R
B ERARRR ) SN A AR R H
ftb & UG SR TE HR A8 A — S A U [E) -

(a) FRERTDHT
AH AR MR R R N At B R 2 T
R (EMEREERE) N ]
TR EZ A2 Rk an

date) as of the end of the reporting period: N
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TFT ARMFT
Less than 1 month PR—1EA 12,711 14,271

More than 1 month but less than — @AM FBLR=M@EA

3 months 9,332 5,367
More than 3 months ={EANU - 2,325
22,043 21,963

Trade receivables from third parties are due within 3
months from the date of billing. Further details on
the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from
trade debtors are set out in Note 31(b).

ERE=TRREEZAHE=
BEARNEH FRAEEEER
REEUEREE 2 EERR
H#E— FERENHE31(D) °

HESHEHEERERLA
“ENEER
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

(b) The balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and are expected to be settled within one year.

22 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

21 EWERRHtEWRR

(#&)

(b) EHBEEER ¢ REHER
— R A o

22 BOEEFERFERS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

() RERRESEHERBABRE:

2024 2023
—E-EF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®TFT ARMTFIT
Cash at bank and on hand in SAEMEAARRIB NRITER
the consolidated statement of K FEEIR &
financial position 10,710 49,725
Less: restricted cash at bank B XRIBITRS
(Note (i) (F1aEa) (5,396) (6,794)
Cash and cash equivalents in the  #ZABELHREXRZRE R
consolidated cash flow statement IR&ZEIER 5,314 42,931

Note:

(i)

Restricted cash at bank at 31 December 2024
represented bank deposits of approximately
RMB264,000 (2023: RMB1,436,000) pledged
to secure the Group’'s bank loans (Note
26(c)), approximately RMB5,065,000 (2023:
RMB5,048,000) for performance guarantee
for certain suppliers of concession sales, and
approximately RMB67,000 (2023: RMB310,000)
frozen by the banks for different reasons.

The Group’s operations of department stores,
shopping mall and supermarkets in the PRC are
conducted in RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible
currency and the remittance of RMB out of
Mainland China is subject to the relevant rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

Ff it

(i)

R-FE-_mM&E+-—A=+—H
RIRTT R B3R &8 RIS
NEERITE K (M FE26(0))
MEFEORITFROARE
264,000 (=& = =%
AR #1,436,0007T) © & &t
R EmEsEs THERDY
FRERMEFOHHARE
5,065,000 (ZZE==%F: A
R #5,048,0007T ) A &R 1T
ETRERREZHOARE
67,000 (ZZE=Z=F: AR
#310,0007T) °

AEERTBEZAEEES B
o RBR TS EEBT
NAREE#ET ARERIEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ))

22 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued) 22 $SR{T&EFERFEBRE (£)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) MEZTBELEZEBZYHE

financing activities
Payables for
Bank Other interest Lease
loans borrowings  expenses liabilities Total
EfefRE  EAAR
BITER g X HEAR at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR AR%TR ARETR
(Note 26) (Note 26) (Note 23) (Note 27)
(Bit26)  (Wit2e)  (Wa23)  (Wit27)

At 1 January 2024 R-B-mE-A-H 708,090 3,783,308 8,879 361,770 4,862,047

Changes from financing cash RERERESS:

flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans MERTERMETE 588,412 - - - 588412
Proceeds from new other borrowings  #73& & it (& & FT/5 5008 - 1,037,257 - - 1,037,257
Repayment of bank loans BERTER (481,800) - - - (481,800)
Repayment of other borrowings BEEMES - (781,579) - - (781,579)
Other finance costs paid Ht o HRER A - - (232,788) - (232,788)
Capital element of lease rentals paid B4z EREHH - - - (22,231) (22,231)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 24 2 FEHH - - - (26,710) (26,710)
Total changes from financing REELRER

cash flows 106,612 255,678 (232,788) (48,941) 80,561
Other changes: Hit 25
Interest expenses, bank charges and  F|8 R BIFEERE

other finance costs (Note 6(a)) R E KA (Hfzt6(a)) - - 256,941 26710 283,651
Capitalised borrowing costs BRLEEERA

(Note 6(a)) (Kiit6(a) - - 84,700 - 84,700
Decrease in lease liabilities FRHEHREY

from termination of leases HEABHD

during the year - - - (1,450) (1,450)
Increase in lease liabilities from FRFTUHBNHL

entering into new leases REAREM

during the year (Note 22(d) (Het22(d) - - - 3,262 3,262
Total other changes A EEH0E - - 341,641 28522 370,163
At 31 December 2024 R=-B-ME

+ZA=1+-H 814,702 4,038,986 117,732 341,351 5,312,771
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22 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

(BrIF=B1EH

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %5 8 = MY &
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

BAIKAREZ5)

22 RITEERFEES (£)

(b) MEFBELEZREZHIER

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

financing activities (continued) (#&)
Payables
Other  for interest Lease
Bank loans  borrowings expenses liabilities Total
EpfEE  ERFE
RITER m xh  HEAE Bt
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBFR ARETT ARETR
(Note 26) (Note 26) (Note 23) (Note 27)
(Mz26)  (Ka2e)  (W##23)  (K#27)
At 1 January 2023 RZE-=%—F—H 979,000 3,089,605 81,562 183,809 4,333,976
Changes from financing cash flows: FiEH ¢ H &%
Proceeds from new bank loans HERTERMERE 119,900 - - - 119,900
Proceeds from new other borrowings  #73% & it (5 & fr/5 5078 - 1,544,586 - - 1,544,586
Repayment of bank loans BERTER (390,810) - - - (390,810)
Repayment of other borrowings BEEMES - (850,883) - - (850,883)
Other finance costs paid HbBHRERR - - (370,777) - (370,777)
Capital element of lease rentals paid 2% 2 EAEH - - - (33,437) (33,437)
Interest element of lease rentals paid 24 25855 - - - (18,408) (18,408)
Total changes from financing BEBLTELT
cash flows (270,910) 693,703 (370,777) (51,845) 171
Other changes: Hit2E:
Interest expenses, bank chargesand R8I BIFEERE
other finance costs (Note 6(3)) R ER A (Hfzt6()) - - 213,39 18408 231,802
Capitalised borrowing costs EABERAR (Hit6(e)
(Note 6(a)) - - 84,700 - 84,700
Decrease in lease liabilities from FRBEREESEY
termination of lease during the year ~ FHEEE R - - - (473) (473)
Increase in lease liabilities from FERITUHENZ
entering into new leases HERR
during the year (Note 22(d) Em (HE22() - - - 211,871 211,871
Total other changes EnEses - - 298094 229,806 527,900
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F
+-A=1+-H 708,090 3,783,308 8,879 361,770 4,862,047
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

22 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND (continued)

(c)

(d)

Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow
statement for leases comprise the following:

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

22 RITEERFEES (£)

(c)

HEZRERHARE
AARERERERCHESR
BRETIIFIA:

2024 2023
—E-ME —E =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARKFT
Within operating cash flows RERTMEN - 72
Within financing cash flows MEREMEN 48,940 51,845
48,940 51,917
These amounts relate to the following: ESHEHUTRIBAR:
2024 2023
—EImE T o=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREKFT
Lease rentals paid BEfEE 48,940 51,917
Major Non-cash transaction d) EEHFRERS

Additions to right-of-use assets during the
year of approximately RMB3,262,000 (2023:
RMB211,871,000) were financed by lease liabilities.

FRNEAREERENARE
3,262,000 (ZZE==F: AR
#211,871,0000) HFEEEE
RIES -

HESHEHEERERLA
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

23 B RRAR K HAth B A FK

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARMF T

Trade payables arising from: ERERANTSEESE

— Concession sales — B REHE 181,297 160,853

— Purchase of inventories -HBERE 38,585 44,014

219,882 204,867

Amounts due to related parties FEHRAE A T FE (KaEa))

(Note (i) 1,036 11,824

Other payables and accrued expenses: E b E N EHE F -

— Payables for staff related costs —ENZETHBEER 17,198 15,316

— Payables for interest expenses and ~ —ENMFEZENREEZR S

transaction costs on borrowings BN 117,732 8,879

— Deposits from concessionaries —“HHKEEkERPES

and customers 45,524 9,532
— Dividends payables —ERIRE 2,211 3,661
— Others (Note (i) — B Al (Bt & (i) 169,827 286,274
352,492 323,662

Financial liabilities measured at REEKATECERA%E
amortised cost 573,410 540,353
Other taxes payable FEAH B A T 18 4,658 3,910
578,068 544,263

Notes: Bt st -

()  The balance as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are () RZ2EZEFER-_ZT-_=%+=A
unsecured, non-interest bearing and are expected to be ZT—HZESRAERTF 2B
settled in coming year. R TR R IR F LT -

(i) At 31 December 2024 included in the balance are (i #HeRErZT-_NWF+=A

payables of approximately RMB142,601,000 (2023:
RMB141,031,000) due to a third party relating to the
renovation and upgrade of one department store and the
shopping mall. Remaining balances mainly are payables to
other non-trade related vendors and accrued expense for

daily operations.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024

=t+—HEMNE=ZFAREHARE
142,601,000 (ZZEZ=F: AR
#141,031,00070) » H & 3 & F
F—HEERSREDTRLER-
BTRBTIBAENEMIESZ S8
BE S AREMBELE 2 EAH
io



23

24

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 23 BERRRREMEMSR (Z)
Ageing analysis SR AT
Trade payables from third parties are due within one ENE=FERAEEZAHE—EA
month from the date of billing. Included in trade and A EIE o 5T A & A BR 5% N H A FE < 3K
other payables are trade payables with the following ZENEFNmEHARRIAA 2R
ageing analysis (based on the due date) as of the end of BoOmT:
the reporting period:
2024 2023
—EEF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T T AREFIT
Due within one month R —1{E A A2 H 219,882 204,867
PROMISSORY NOTE 24 EHERE
2024 2023
—E-NEF —T=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR F T ARKF T
Promissory Note A 223,330 229,214

On 15 June 2022, the Company and Glory Keen entered
into an agreement, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to buy back from Glory Keen, and
Glory Keen conditionally agreed to sell 1,177,068,181
preference shares to the Company at the buyback price
of approximately HK$0.21 per preference share and a
total consideration of HK$247,184,318. This transaction
was completed on 6 January 2023 and the preference
shares have been cancelled by the Company with effect
from 6 January 2023. The consideration have be satisfied
by the Company by issue of the interest-free promissory
note in the amount of HK$247,184,318 due on 6 January
2024.

On 6 January 2024, the Company issued an interest free
promissory note in favour of Glory Keen, a substantial
shareholder holding approximately 28.07% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company, in the amount
of HK$247,184,318 (the “Promissory Note").

RZE-__FXA+HH XAQAF
MERTUHE B AR A K
HREBRELE BEEEFIEHGR
EmARQFEE,177,068,181 K&
S BIEEASRELKRL21E
T HRB A247,184,3188 7T 0 = 1E
RHERN_E_=F—ANBEK"
BEARAARBEEZZE-_=F—A/<H#
THEELAKR - RECHARAEBHE
TR -_ZE_NMFE— A BIHNEEE
F247,184,318B T R B R 5 R IE
Ko

RZEZWMFE— AXNE  KRAR M
BEARRBEBITRMBEL28.07%
MEERBEEETEEALRE
SR8 R247,184,3188B T ([HFEHE
®Bl) -

HESHEHEERERLA
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

24 PROMISSORY NOTE (continued)

25

On 8 February 2024, the Company and Glory Keen
entered into an agreement to extend the maturity date
of the Promissory Note (the “Extension Agreement”),
pursuant to which the parties agreed to, among other
things, extend the maturity date of the Promissory Note
to the 6 January 2025 or the date on which Glory Keen
declares early maturity of the Promissory Note, following
the failure of the Company to make repayment pursuant
to the repayment arrangement as specified in the
Extension Agreement, whichever is earlier.

The repayment arrangement of the outstanding amount
due under the Promissory Note of HK$247,184,318
pursuant to the Extension Agreement shall be: (i) no later
than 29 February 2024, the Company shall repay to Glory
Keen not less than RMB15,000,000; (ii) no later than 31
July 2024, the Company shall repay to Glory Keen not
less than RMB50,000,000 in aggregate (i.e. including
the amount repaid pursuant to subparagraph (i) above);
and (iii) no later than 6 January 2025, the Company shall
repay to Glory Keen all outstanding amount.

On 27 January 2025, the Company and Glory Keen
entered into a Second Extension Agreement; for details
please refer to note 36.

(BRIF=BEH

BAIKAREZ5)

24 ARERE (E)

E/\_ZQ_EE SWAN SR/ EEE S

BRI WhaE LAL%??KRTTJ’EZ | 53
B ([E8mE]) Bt FTHESE

RE(EPEFE)BALRE IS
BEREZZ-_RAF—ANBHHER
REREERBIEE B PTAT A 2 (EI&
RHHEHERR  REEMANLZE
REPINH A (UARBEERE) -

BIBTHHE AHLEHIETER
2 ARIEE L E247,184,3188 L 2 (8
EBTHEMT (u)TLﬁA_?_mi_
AZ+NnB ARRERELEEER
OB ANRES, ooo 0007T (i) N8
RZEBE-_WFEF+LA=+—H AR
RIAMEEEEAGETLORARE
5000000075<Eﬂ FERE £ (i)D
BEEEZ®®E) MV TER=-Z
—RHF—AXRH AREARLEE
EMAREESE-

R-ZE-_FE—A=-++tH AQH
BRI B DT EA s SE IS
LRI EE36 -

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25 ERIAE
2024 2023
—E-OE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARBTFIT
Contract liabilities in relation to HEFAHEFE BB
customer loyalty programme aRAE 3,590 2,486
Contract liabilities in relation to receipts 75 78 & P I8 1)
in advance from customers (Note) S48 E (M) 150,667 155,852
154,257 158,338
The contract liabilities represented the aggregate amount BHBEERREHRSEERER

of the transaction price allocated to the performance
obligations that are unsatisfied as of the end of the
reporting period. The Group expects the transaction price
allocated to the unsatisfied performance obligations
will be recognised as direct sales and gross revenue
from concession sales when the Group transfers goods
or services to the customer in the ordinary business
operation.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ))

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 25 SRIAE (&
Note: Bt et -
Movements in contract liabilities in relation to receipts in FRARFBERREZEHEEES

advance from customers

2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFR AR¥TT

Balance at 1 January R—A—B&&% 155,852 147,853
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of HRREFEIF AN BEZ ENHE

recognising revenue during the year that Rl AHaERD>

was included in the contract liabilities at

the beginning of the year (127,885) (121,120)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of ~ EREIRBTEN HE RBWEF

receipts in advance from customers during FIEMEMZ AR BE

the period in respect of prepaid stored

value cards 122,700 129,119
Balance at 31 December Rt+—A=+—RB 2zt 150,667 155,852
The unsatisfied performance obligations resulting from direct REZEHE SR EREEEEZRE
sales and gross revenue from concession sales are expected to TRAEERERGTERER —FRIZ
be recognised as revenue within one year or on demand. BREE-

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 26 RITRHEMEE
The Group's bank loans and other borrowings are AEBEZRITEREEMBEES TN
analysed as follows: T
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR FRT ARETT

Bank loans RITER 814,702 708,090
Other borrowings HpEE 4,038,986 3,783,308

4,853,688 4,491,398
Less: Current portion E BN ER SR (596,769) (1,042,885)

4,256,919 3,448,513
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIFS B8 BAIAAREZ )

26 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 26 SRITRHMEE (&)

(continued)

(@) The Group’s short-term bank loans and other

(a) AEEZEHRTERREAM

borrowings are analysed as follows: BESHMT:
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFTRT AREFT
Bank loans: WITER
— secured by the Group’s land and —AAREE i RIEFE
buildings and guaranteed by the IR AR R R AT
Company and Qujiang Financial & TR AR
Holdings 95,000 -
— guaranteed by a subsidiary of — TS LR
Quijiang Financial Holdings — B MY B & R HER 10,000 14,900
— guaranteed by a subsidiary of —HBARA—HEWEAA
the Company BR 4,412 -
- guaranteed by Qujiang Financial — BT & BT ER
Holdings 50,800 10,000
160,212 24,900
Other borrowings: EmEEs:
— guaranteed by the subsidiary of —HBARA—HEWEAA
the Company EIR 7,500 -
— guaranteed by the Company —HBARRAE RIS
and Quijiang Financial Holdings R ER 50,000 50,000
— unsecured and unguaranteed — IR EER 27,000 595,109
84,500 645,109
Add: current portion of long-term m:RHBETEREEME
bank loans and other borrowings Rz BNERER1y (KTat b))
(Note (b)) 352,057 372,876
596,769 1,042,885

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ))

26 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 26 MITREMBE (£)
(continued)
(b) The Group’s long-term bank loans and other (b) XEBRHABTERREM
borrowings are analysed as follows: BESHMT:
2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AREFRT ARETT

Bank loans: RITER:
- secured by the Group’s investment —JAKRER 2R EYEE+
properties and land and buildings i, R 4 5 I R AR M A R

and future income rights and B WHARQAF X
guaranteed by the Company and R—EBEAER
Mr. Wu Yijian 212,000 260,000
- secured by the Group’s investment —AAREE 7 K&
property and land and buildings ES RS =
and future income rights and KRN FEEE AR
guaranteed by the subsidiary and WM BRI &
Qujiang Financial Holdings BT © BT AR B AR 400,000 -
- secured by the Group’s — A REE 7 R R WA RE
future income rights and VEIRIR - I R T & R iTE
guaranteed by a subsidiary A& — 1 Bt BB A B R
of Qujiang Financial Holdings - 34,990
— guaranteed by a subsidiary of — BT & RIE R — KB
Quijiang Financial Holdings NAER 8,500 59,200
- guaranteed by Qujiang Financial —— B #)T & BHIE IR IER
Holdings 33,990 29,000
- secured by the Group’s land and ~ —LAZRE B 7 +ith KAEFIEER
buildings and guaranteed by e WEHERYEZRK
future income of the pledged WA RARBIER
properties and the Company - 300,000
654,490 683,190
Other borrowings: HMEE :
— unsecured and unguaranteed — I N EER 3,814,486 2,892,223
— guaranteed by Qujiang Financial — — @ )T € B2 I IE LR
Holdings - 45,976
— secured by the Group’s investment —AREBE 7 EEME KR+
property and land and buildings R EFEEE - I E
and guaranteed by Qujiang T B AR K 7 £ [ T B
Financial Holdings and NAER
subsidiaries of the Group 140,000 200,000
3,954,486 3,138,199
Less: current portion of long-term  Jat : REFSRITER N HMER
bank loans and other borrowings ~ ~Z ENERER(H (Hi5E(a))
(Note (a)) (352,057) (372,876)
4,256,919 3,448,513
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

26 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)
(b) The Group’s long-term bank loans and
other borrowings are analysed as follows:
(continued)

The Group’s long-term bank loans and other
borrowings are repayable as follows:

(BRIF=BEH

BAIKAREZ5)

26 SRITRHEMEE (&)

(b) FAEEzRBWRIT

R E Aty

BEIFWT: (&)

AEEZ RERITEREEAME
EARTHIMEER:

Bank loans RITER
2024 2023
—E-NF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F ARKF T
Within 1 year — &R 142,900 266,900,
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFR 311,590 225,900
After 2 years but within 5 years MEEBERLFNR 200,000 182,800
After 5 years A& - 7,590
654,490 683,190

Other borrowings HihE &
2024 2023
—EC-mME —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARKFT
Within 1 year —F R 209,157 105,976
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERMFA 3,745,329 3,022,223
After 2 years but within 5 years MFZERFAN - 10,000
After 5 years hFi& - -
3,954,486 3,138,199
All of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans FrAIEENERET B R ITE S R H A

and other borrowings are carried at amortised cost.
None of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings is expected to be settled

within one year.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

(d) Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings (d)
are subject to the fulfilment of covenants commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group breach the covenants, such
borrowings would become repayable on demand.
At 31 December 2024, none of the covenants
relating to the bank and other borrowings had been

breached.

27 LEASE LIABILITIES
At 31 December 2024, the lease liabilities were repayable

26 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 26 SRITRHEMEE (&)

(continued)

(c) The following assets and their respective (0 THEERHZBAZEREER
carrying values as at the end of the reporting FAHREMRERERUERSE
period are pledged to secure the Group’s SEZRITRAEMBEEZE
bank and other borrowings: R

2024 2023

—E-NE —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Property and equipment (Note 12) 1% K& (Kfat12) 3,116,112 3,641,462
Investment property (Note 13) WEMEE (KaF13) 1,345,377 834,400
Cash at bank (Note 22(a)(i)) RITEETF (HfaE22(a)()) 264 1,436
4,461,753 4,477,298

REBETRITREMERER
CHSHMMEBE L ERTHFRZE
REHE - WAEEERRESE Z
LEEBEXNAREREE -
—EFNFEF+ZA=+—H %
mERBBRITREMEERNR

it
ah °©

27 HEEE

RZEZ_WFE+-_A=+—H #E&

as follows: BEMNEFRNOT:
2024 2023
—E_NUF T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBF T
Within 1 year —F R 27,732 19,886
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEHEMRFRN 30,798 18,858
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZRERFNR 106,701 77,641
After 5 years hF & 176,120 245,385
313,619 341,884
341,351 361,770

HESHEHEERERLA
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

27 LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates
applies to lease liabilities range from 6.70% to 7.97%
(2023: from 6.70% to 7.97%).

28 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Movements in current taxation in the

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

27 HEEE (&)
FEREHEaBEZ NMEFHRIEES
MENT670%ETI7% (ZE ==
F:6.70%ET.97% ) o

28 HWEMBRRRAZHAER

(a) HEMBRRTRAZAHHIEA

consolidated statement of financial position 2EiE:
are as follows:
2024 2023
—E-MME —E=%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T AREFIT
Balance of income tax payable R—A—HENFESHER
at 1 January 36,098 36,098
Payment for withholding tax on B IR BT AR
distributed earnings - 2,888
Payment for income tax on the BN RN AR R TR A
estimated taxable profits for the RSN (Hat7@)
year (Note 7(a)) 513 221
Over-provision in respect BAEFEBEEEE
of prior years (Note 7(a)) (Ktax7(a)) (1,963) (712)
Income tax refund/(paid) during the FRZRE (D)
year PS5 937 (2,397)
Balance of income tax payable R+—A=+—HER~NZ
at 31 December PRSI s 8 35,585 36,098

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ))

28 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 28 FBEMBMRRERZAB/HR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (%)
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERREEHEEERERSE:
Fair value
adjustments on
property and
equipment,
Expected credit investment Interest

losseson  properties and  capitalisation on
Accrued  financial assets  intangible assets  prepayment for
expenses and measured at and related  acquisition of
deferred income  amortised cost depreciation properties Net
VESESR
RENER
BREEL
MEEE
REEHATE  UREBAE L LS
BBk LEHEE REKEE RRfER
BEWN CREEEER P2 Megaf B
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
NEBTT NEBTT ANRBFT ANRBFT ANRBFT

Deferred tax arising from: RTGEEL 2 EERE:
At 1 January 2023 RZB-=5-—-H 904 10,135 (537,498) (122,454) (648,913)

(Charged)/credited to the consolidated statement (18 /3 AN A1RE R (Hi73))

of profit or loss (Note 7(a)) (681) - 27,662 (21175) 5,806
Charged to reserves (Note 10) REENR (Wit0) - - (40,135) - (40,135)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 RZE-ZF+-f=1-H

R=Z-mE-A-B 223 10,135 (549,971) (143,629) (683,242)
Credited(charge) to the consolidated statement 5t A/ (H18) A BE K

of profit or loss (Note 7(a)) (Witna) 381 - 30,267 (21,175) 9473
Charged to reserves (Note 10) REENR (W) - - (37,668) - (37,668)
At 31 December 2024 RZZ-mE+-A=t-A 604 10,135 (557372) (164,804) (111.831)
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(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

28 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 28 FBEMBMRRERARZABHR

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (&)

(continued)

(c) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets and () AZEEMKMRRRERNIEL
liabilities recognised in the consolidated REEERABRYHER
statement of financial position

2024 2023
—ENEF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TFT ARKFT
Deferred tax assets recognised in the WR4EAE MBI KREZRZ
consolidated statement of financial — iEIER B & B
position 10,739 10,358
Deferred tax liabilities recognised REATBEMRRERERZ
in the consolidated statement of EERIBEEE
financial position (722,176) (693,600)
(711,437) (683,242)

(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised (d) KRERZEZEHRBEEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set RIBEW E200FT 8 < G FTECR - &

out in Note 2(t), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax losses
of approximately RMB1,925,049,000 (2023:
RMB1,659,632,000) as it is not probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The remaining unused tax
losses at 31 December 2024 will expire on or before
the financial period ending 31 December 2027.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of provision of expected credit
losses on financial assets measured at amortised
cost of approximately RMB11,993,000 (2023:
RMB7,714,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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SEWRERE BAREARIEE
B4 AR #1,925,049,0007 (=
T - =44 AR¥1,659632,000
TIZEBEEREEE REAAKE
ARG EERMEEETK
A B8 & BUAS 2R 2K JE 2R B s ) A
FAEBEE- N _ZE_MNFE+_-A4
—t+—HZBTREABBE
BEREE-_ZE-_+HF+_-H
=+— BB ERME AT fE
i ©

RNEE W AR IR A
TECZERMEEZBHREEEE
%ﬂ%iﬁ/\ﬁﬁgﬂ 993,0007T ( —
T-=F: AR¥7,714,0007T)
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ))

28 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 28 GLEAUMBMRRARAZAAEBHR

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (%)
(continued)
(e) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (e) KRERZELZEHIEEE

At 31 December 2024, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of certain
subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
amounted to approximately RMB609,430,000
(2023: RMB701,485,000). Deferred tax liabilities of
approximately RMB30,472,000 (2023: RMB35,074,000)
have not been recognised in respect of the tax that
would be payable on the distribution of these retained
profits as the Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits from these subsidiaries will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

RZE-_MF+=-_A=+—H"
H AR BE TR B2 M B
RRIZADGF BB EEE
E#) A AREE609,430,0007T (=
T - =4: AR¥701,485,000
L) BEEMEBEBEHARK
30,472,000 (ZE =% A
R #35,074,0007T ) & & 5t #5 3%
ZERE R Z IR ZF
BT AR REAKRRQFE
HZEREME AR 2SR
MEEBTERBZEMNBARZ &

MAKATBER A T8 R A 2R T LA D

K ©
29 PROVISIONS 29 &

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARBTFIT
At 1 January W—HA—H 228,830 289,563
Reversal 2 (o] (51,328) (60,733)
At 31 December W+=—B=+—H 177,502 228,830

Reconciliation to the consolidated A BRSO R R

statements of financial position:

Current Vi) 177,502 228,830

HESHEHEERERLA
“ENEER
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29 PROVISIONS (continued)

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

29 BE (2

Certain subsidiaries of the Company (the “Relevant
Subsidiaries”) have begun cooperation with the Prepaid
Card Management Company in 2009 for its provision
of services in managing the issue and usage of Cash
Coupon Card (single-use prepaid card) (the “Cash
Coupon Card”) for the Group's department stores,
shopping mall and supermarkets (the “Relevant Stores”),
and entered into a termination agreement with the
Prepaid Card Management Company on 31 October
2019 to terminate the cooperation with the Prepaid Card
Management Company in respect of the Cash Coupon
Card thereunder, pursuant to which no new Cash
Coupon Card will be issued and sold by the Prepaid Card
Management Company.

Pursuant to the applicable PRC laws and regulations
and the rules related to the Cash Coupon Card,
consumers can still use the issued Cash Coupon Card
for consumption in the Relevant Stores, and the Prepaid
Card Management Company remains obliged to repay
the consumption amount of the abovementioned Cash
Coupon Card to the Relevant Subsidiaries.

As of 31 December 2024, the total amount of the
Cash Coupon Card issued but not yet consumed is
approximately RMB357,538,000 (2023: RMB410,972,000).
After comprehensively considering the amount of
Cash Coupon Card that is expected to be consumed
in the future of approximately RMB177,502,000
(2023: RMB228,830,000), have been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z — =& _/Efﬁ+ A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIESBIEH  TAILAARKZ2)

Movements in components of equity (a)

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the
changes in the Company’s individual components of
equity between the beginning and the end of the
reporting period are set out below:

Share capital ~ Share premium  Capital reserve
i R &R ERfR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETT AREFT
(Note 30(c) ~ (Note 30(@)i))  (Note 30}
(Baso0)  (Maso)  (WE300)

30 EX-REERRE

REBGRD
AR B A 52 5 BD1A 2 20
TR A 2 HIR YRR A
HEHE - AREBIERAA

DT & B E 2 BB
Byl

Contributed Exchange  Accumulated
surplus reserve losses Total
EON:L] EXRE 2iTER ait

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000

AREFT  ARBTT  ARETT  ARETR
(Note 30(d)ii)  (Note 30()vii)
(Ba3oai))  (Ba30aNi))

Balance at 1 January 2023 R-E-=5-F-A#&k 199,369 1,136,595 6377 995,255 73,154 (939,484) 1,471,266
Changes in equity for the year: FEERESE:
Total comprehensive expense for the year FEERANEAE - - - - (58,916) (253,295) (312,211)
Cancelation of convertible preference shares  sE 457 iR B %% (#fi24)

(note 24) (95,767) (117,341) - - - - (213,108)
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZBZZETZR=1-BR

and 1 January 2024 “E-ME-B-R&R 103,602 1,019,254 6377 995,255 14,38 (1,192,779) 945,947
Changes in equity for the year: REEEESE:
Total comprehensive expense for the year rEE2ANELER - - - - 32,844 (497,027) (464,181)
Balance at 31 December 2024 R-B-ME+-A=+-H&R 103,602 1,019,254 6377 995,255 47,802 (1,689,806) 481,766
Dividends (b) BE

(i) The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: RMB
Nil).

(i) No final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year has been approved for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: RMB Nil).

() AAREELFRHEN
BE-T-_mE+=A
=t+-ALEEzBRE

—E-=#:ARKET

) *

—~~

i) BE-_Z_MWE+_A

=+t—HIEFEWEE
F-HMBRFEENRARE
—E=ZF:ARET

JC) °

—~
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30

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(continued)

(c) Share capital

(i)

Issued share capital

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

30 EXR-HERRE (£)

() B=X

(i) BRITRE

2024 2023
“ECME —ECCE
Number of shares Number of shares
L G
‘000 RMB'000 ‘000 RMB'000
i AEEFR T® AEETT
Authorised: BT
Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each BIR0.1BTL . LER 15,000,000 1,351,680 15,000,000 1,351,680
Preference shares at HK$0.1 each BROABT BLR 5,000,000 450,560 5,000,000 450,560
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: BETRETLER:
At 1 January and 31 December R-B-ART-A=1-H 1,149,695 103,602 1,149,695 103,602
Convertible preference shares, BRARARTRRELR:
issued and fully paid:
At1 January ®—A—-H - - 1,177,068 95,767
Cancellation (Note 24) a8 (Writ24) - - (1,177,068) (95.767)
31 December t-A=1-H - - - -
Total share capital st 1,149,695 103,602 1,149,695 103,602
Ordinary shares ZiE AR

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company’s

residual assets.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

Issued share capital (continued)
Convertible preference shares

Convertible preference shares do not carry the
right to vote. The holder of the convertible
preference shares has the right, at any time
and at the sole option of such holder, to
convert the convertible preference shares in
whole, or in any part, into fully paid ordinary
shares in the Company. The conversion ratio
is 1 convertible preference share to 1.1
ordinary shares. Holder of the convertible
preference shares ranks pari passu with other
holders of the ordinary shares in respect of its
entitlement to dividend or other distribution of
the Company. In the event of any liquidation,
winding-up or dissolution of the Company,
holder of the convertible preference shares
shall receive an amount equal to HK$1.60 per
convertible preference share, plus all accrued
but unpaid dividends in preference to the
ordinary shareholders.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Capital reserve

At 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023,
capital reserve comprises the following:

- the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share
capital and share premium of a subsidiary
acquired through an exchange of shares
pursuant to a group reorganisation took
place on 28 September 2000;

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

30 EXR-HERRE ()

() B=A&(#&)

(i)

BRITRAE (&)

A] 12 % 18 55 iR

A AR B S BT AR 1R 2R
EorBRELRIFTEA
ARER ] B R M iR ek
BEAZRBEEEZEREZITR
B& 1B 5t i% 2 BB Sk AR /] 561D
EBRARKNGZEHEYE
B - IR AR TR R
BERERTIRE B -
ARRELERIFEAEARE
L BERFEALREE
BARR AR S H AL Dk
F A B RS A
NaER  BEE SR 1]
BBRELRFEABRL
BAREERELRDREES
5] 7 4% 5 A% AT 2 % 48 o0 iR
1.60/87C » i1 LRI A EEHE
AT B ZFRIE -

(d) RE2MERRARZR

(i)

(i)

BRG%EE
B aERMERBRR
E— NN\ —FRAEFHL0

By
IREEE o

- ARERBER-ZZE
TFNAZ+N\Bi#
T2 RBEAMET
Bz mERE B
P tn 32 P W B 2 —
BB AR 2 IR &
Bein s BaE M2
ER
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Capital reserve (continued)

At 31 December 2024 and 31 December
2023, capital reserve comprises the following:
(continued)

—  the difference between the carrying
amounts and the principal amounts of
the unsecured notes redeemed in 2011
and 2012; and

—  the difference between the consideration
paid on the acquisition of non-controlling
interests and the carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests.

Contributed surplus

The application of the contributed surplus
account is governed by Section 54 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been
set up and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted for land and
buildings held for own use in Note 2(h).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of other financial
assets held at the end of the reporting period
and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Notes 2(g) and

2(1)).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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30 EXR-HERRE (£)

(d) REZUEERRAR (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(e)

(vi) Statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association
of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC, these subsidiaries were required
to set up certain statutory reserves, which
were non-distributable. The transfers of these
reserves are at discretion of the directors of the
respective subsidiaries. The statutory reserves
can only be utilised for predetermined means
upon approval by the relevant authority.

(vii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
operations into the presentation currency. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(w).

Capital management

The Group’'s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

(BRIF=BHEH

BRIKAREZ7)

30 EXR-HERRE ()

(d) REZMEERRAR (&)

(e)

(vi) EE#E
BEBEAEE R BEKL
2B R 72@%@&
ARl EZ%W JZE /Asx
1%0%%1%%1%2%%&!3%
MEBARESMEET
EEHRBEANEBEBRER
BEBANRELEEE A
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(vii) B % f#E
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(BrIF=B1EH

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(e) Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this
purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt
(which includes promissory note, bank and other
borrowings and lease liabilities), less cash at bank
on hand. Adjusted capital comprises all components
of equity less unaccrued proposed dividends.

In order to improve the Group’s capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio as at 31
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

TRIAN R 25))
30 B -HEERE (&)

(e) BEAXERE (&)

REBURRHEFEEHEARL
RREEMEREENER -5l
s EHBFERDAES
IR (HBEREARER R
ThEMEEREERE)RR
TFBEAE KHBEEANBREAN
B B RRET FERAR ©

RNEREB 2 BERRE K&
B EBEXNTRRNOKE S
BBRITHED BERMNESR
MESHEEEARDER -

R-F-_FER—T_=F+=
A=Z+—H EHEFERAHE
EN RS UM

2024 2023
—E_NUF T =F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBF T
Current liabilities: MENE A -

Promissory note R 223,330 229,214
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEES 596,769 1,042,885
Lease liabilities HEBME 27,732 19,886

Non-current liabilities: ERBEE:
Bank and other borrowings MITREMEES 4,256,919 3,448,513
Lease liabilities HEAE 313,619 341,884
Total debt (R T GEE 5,418,369 5,082,382
Less: cash at bank and on hand B IRIT M FEIR e (10,710) (49,725)
Adjusted net debt RARFESE 5,407,659 5,032,657
Adjusted capital BARER 511,579 948,576
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio KFAB FEEEEARL = 1,057% 531%

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

30 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(e) Capital management (continued)

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the
Group that in order to maintain its listing on the
Stock Exchange is to have a public float of at least
25% of the shares of the Company throughout
the year. Based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float of at least 25% throughout
the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk as
most of the transactions are denominated in the same
currency as the functional currency of the operations
in which they relate. Exposure to credit, liquidity and
interest rate arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group is also exposed to equity price risk
arising from its equity investment in another entity.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk except for Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") and
United Stated Dollars (“USD"”) denominated bank
balances, promissory notes, other receivables and
other payables. Other that most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currency of the
Group’s entities. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities.
The Group monitors its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)
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31

(e) EXERE (&)
ZAN/NSI DSBS R Bl NG RN
SNRIEINZ BE AR TE IR ©
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EBETINREMNNERBERZHE
BEFERAARBRDELEE
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HAEBEZELS%HNERDRE
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RS SN SEID) NI S iy
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened 5% against the USD and HK$ with all
other variables held constant, consolidated loss
after tax for the year ended 31 December 2024
would have been will lead to an lower/higher of
approximately RMB1,276,000 and RMB5,728,000
(2023: RMB1,296,000 and RMB6,057,000) arising
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange gain/
loss on bank balances, promissory notes, other
receivables and other payables denominated in HK$
and USD.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place, and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash at bank is deposited with financial institutions
with acceptable credit quality. Management does
not expect any of these financial institutions with
fail to meet their obligations.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees
which would expose the Group or the Company to
credit risk.

Credit risk arising from trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
debtor rather than the industry in which the debtors
operate and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual debtors. At the
end of the reporting period 8% (2023: 15%) and
14% (2023: 37%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the Group’s largest debtor and the five
largest debtors, respectively.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ))

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 BiIBERBREERAAE
VALUES (continued) (4&)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERR (&)

Credit risk arising from trade receivables
(continued)

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all debtors requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the debtor’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the debtor
as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the debtor operates. Trade receivables
are generally due within 3 months from the date
of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from debtors.

For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in accordance with HKFRS 9
to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECLs.
Trade receivables are mainly due from credit
card centres owned by state-owned financial
institutions in the PRC and tenants operating in
the Group’s department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets, and accordingly, the management of
the Group considers the concentration and credit
risks to be low. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

BUWEMRELEZEERE
(%)

PEBWIRRM S - NEE Y ER
—EeBNELEERZMBER
NETTERBE G - ZFHA
FEEBABERENRELE R
EHIZ RGeS - WAt REFE A
RiE S BB AL 2 PR RBIR
RAEBER - BRER—RE%H
SHER=EARNZH - —Rim
5 OARETAEEREHARZL
H e

RERERMS  AEBCEMA
BBV WG ER BRI
Tk REHEMEEERERAE
EERE BRI ZRER
TEBREEmMEBRAEERT
LERAEEBERS BYT
LDRBRTSEEEZHEP ZR
B RAEAEEEEERRET
LEERRBE AR AEEZ
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

31

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

MBREBREERAAE

(%)

(b)

Credit risk arising from trade receivables

(continued)

The following table provides information about the

Group's exposure to credit

risk and ECLs for trade

FERE (&)
BUWEMRELEZEERE
(#&)

TR AEEHE 2 EERR
KEMER  BREEBEZE

receivables: o
2024
—ENEFE
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHERER HEREE EERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR¥ T
Current (not past due) BVER (R ER) 1.3% 12,884 173
Less 3 months past due I HINER B = @ A 2.7% 9,588 256
Over 3 months past due ¥ HfA 8 =@ A 100% 9,968 9,968
32,440 10,397
2023
—E =%
Gross

Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEE 1A = REREE EEEE
% RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETFIT ARETFIT
Current (not past due) BOER (ARzs8F) 2.3% 19,655 452
Less 3 months past due B0 HR R 3R = (8 A 2.4% 2,826 66
Over 3 months past due  #Hi#E:1E =@ A 100% 5,959 5,959
28,440 6,477

Except for debtors with significant outstanding

balances or credit-impaired
the ECL on these items
grouped by past due status.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2024
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ))

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 BiIBERBREERAAE
VALUES (continued) (4&)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERR (&)

Credit risk arising from trade receivables
(continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 3 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group's view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect
of trade receivables during the period is as follows:

BUWEMRELEZEERE
(%)
BEHEBREDRBBE=F2E&
BREBBREREEH ZFLXREE
8 B A Bk 57 SR SR 1 BRI
ZREEAR B IR AR R
R UIR TR I F B A LB AR
LBz ER-

HAN G B PR M BR SR 2 S 1R B AR
g

2024 2023

—E-MEF —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR® T ABR®F T

Balance at 1 January R—A—B#&#& 6,477 68
Impairment losses recognised FARERZREEE

during the year 3,920 6,409

Balance at 31 December RTZA=+—RHZH%E 10,397 6,477

Credit risk arising from other receivables
from third parties

The Group measures loss allowance for other
receivables at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting date.

REFB=FZHMEEKKEE
EZEERER

AEERBEN T _EAREHRE
EBBz o EEMEBWRGRIA
ZEERE ZFeREECR
HEEBRIRERNEEZBE
SEERERMG  LREER
AFBEZRRETHE  RFH
W& B E R RIER 2 RN
SUETT RS ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(c)

Credit risk arising from other receivables
from third parties (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect
of other receivables during the period is as follows:

(BrIF=B1EH

BAIKAREZ5)

31 MBEREERDAE
(&)
(b) EEER (&)

REE=TF 2 HMEERHKEE
EZEERBE (&)
HINERRE MR AR 2 B R R
BERzEHEFIIMT

2024 2023

—EmF B =F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARKF T

Balance at 1 January R—A—B#&&% 1,237 441

Impairment losses recognised FABRREEE

during the year 54,230 52,013

Written-off during the year =RVNE €S (53,871) (51,217)

Balance at 31 December BN+ —_B=+—Bz%% 1,596 1,237
Liquidity risk (0 REBELEE

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for the short-term investments of their
cash surpluses, where the raising of financings is
centrally managed by the head office of the Group
to cover expected cash demands. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

At 31 December 2024, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB1,572,570,000 (2003:
RMB1,967,172,000). The Group has undertaken and
will continue to undertake various measures in order
to further improve its liquidity position in the short
and longer term. Further details are set out in Note

2(b).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)
The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

31 BKEREERQAE
(%)

(c)

RBEERMR (&)

TREEAEEZTEEHE
BERBERRZH T BB
o BRBRIRES HRRMER
Reng (BREMS QN X
BB FBA R ARER
BEMRZMERFEZHNEN
) A Be AN 5= (B A] BE 1 2B SRAE R

reporting period) and the earliest dates the Group ZERFHEBEL-
can be required to pay.
2024
ZECME
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHABRRASRE
More than
More than 2 years but Carrying
Within 1 year 1 year but less less than More than amount at
orondemand than 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
S
—FR BB-F BBREF t-A=+-8
FEREX BORME BOIREE BBREF Rt ZEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFR  ARETR  ARETR  AREFR  ARETRT  ARKTR
Trade and other payables REEKAGTEL
measured at amortised cost  FET B H R E M EA 556,212 - - - 556,212 556,212
Promissmory note RLER 223,330 - - - 223,330 223,330
Lease liabilities HE&E 51,647 99,962 151,958 382,045 685,612 341,351
Bank and other borrowings FOREREE 4,127,131 464,400 321,500 - 4,913,031 4,853,688
4,958,320 564,362 473,458 382,045 6,378,185 5,974,581
2023
e -3
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ANRERR R
More than
More than 2 years but Carrying
Within 1 year 1 year but less less than More than amount at
orondemand  than 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
—E/ BE—F BEME +-A=1-H
AEEX  EIREE BYRRE BERF Chl LEHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT  ARETT  AREFr  AREFr  AREFTT  ARETR
Trade and other payables BRERARGEL
measured at amortised cost B R EMERF 525,037 - - - 525,037 525,037
Promissory note RLER 229,214 - - - 229,214 229,214
Lease liabilities BEBE 32,049 50,324 149,377 324,225 555,975 361,770
Bank and other borrowings BT REMEE 1,108,408 3,452,199 204,913 8,067 4,773,587 4,491,398
1,894,708 3,502,523 354,290 332,292 6,083,813 5,607,419
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIFS B8 BAIAAREZ )

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 BIBREKREERAAE

VALUES (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk

(%)
d) FERB

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from REEZFEREREERBFTE
interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at B E A B F X RIRE E =X
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group BIOIZEBEEAKRES RIAZE
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest eREMERR LA DENEE

rate risk respectively.

(i) Interest rate profile

)
A

(i) FIEER

The following table details the interest rate TRFANAEEHFBEE
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of MR EHRZ R =B -
the reporting period.
2024 2023
“ECQmE TR
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
ik P
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARKEFTT AREFTT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEFREE:
Other borrowings HinfEERE 7.3% 4,038,986 7.1% 3,783,308
Bank loans RITER 5.3% 814,702 6.3% 403,090
4,853,688 4,186,398
Variable rate borrowings:  AJ & F|REE :
Bank loans RITER - - 6.5% 305,000
- 305,000
Total borrowings BEAH 4,853,688 4,491,398
Fixed rate borrowings as ~ BEEFZREEHREEE
a percentage of total ARl
borrowings 100% 93%
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (i) SBEMD T
At 31 December 2024, it is estimated that a AZTE-_WNMF+ = H
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points =+—H EFRBAEMTA
in interest rates, with all other variables BEYARRBFITIE 22BN
held constant, would have increase/decrease Tl FFF = — AR B A0 ok
the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated 1005 2 A5 38 00 R
losses by approximately RMB Nil (2023: DPREERZEE R ARG

RMB3,050,000).

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ))

BEREERAAME
(%)
(d) FI=EK (&)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31
VALUES (continued)

(d) Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate borrowings held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact of which on the Group’s loss after

(i) MBS (E)
R D TR
EHREAKEEMFEE 2
REHHNERHEZEE
EXxzRERENER
m o WAREBEBRTRER

tax and accumulated losses is estimated as k2FFERZZEIRE
an annualised impact on interest expense of BN EEHHNERA 2
such a change in interest rates. The analysis FleEBMbET LD
is performed on the same basis for the years EREE_T_MER_

ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

(e) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from other financial assets (Note 19).

The Group’s investments in other financial assets
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The
performance of these equity securities is regularly
monitored.

At 31 December 2024, it is estimated that an
increase/decrease of 10% in the relevant stock
price with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group's
other comprehensive income by approximately
RMB1,018,800 (2023: RMB1,153,000).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s other comprehensive income
that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock price had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure this
financial instrument held by the Group which
exposes the Group to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period. It is also assumed that
none of the Group’s other financial assets would be
considered impaired as a result of the decrease in
the relevant stock price, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for the years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023.

(e)

E_=Ft+-HA=+—H
IEFEZHREERTT

R E R AR
AEERGEMEREEELL
ERERZEHEE (KE19) -

AEEREMEREEZRER
LBESR M LT RS
BHZREACETEMEE-

RZZE-_WMF+=-—A=+—8"
HETEEREER LR THK
10% ' fEFTE E b Al A =R
BREZBRAT AEEZEM
FHEIREEIE I, R HARKE
1,018,800 (ZE=—=F: AR
#1,153,0007T ) °

I BRERE DT FERBREREE

E%ﬁ%%i%ilﬂﬁ%mi
FErEASERAECZERMIT A
(RBEHRSAEEMBRE
B BATAEE KM 2E
U 25 78 3% A 2 BNBS S &) o [B] B I
BRASEzEtMSRmEERE
ABERBEIRE 2 THRMERAE R
& M&F“%EH@T ''''''' AEh A
ZNRFIE WA MEREE
_?_EE&_?__¢+ A
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7

e

HESHEHEERERLA
“ENEER

255



256

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R R Y &E

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31

VALUES (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group’s financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

. Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

The Group has a team headed by the finance
manager performing valuations for the
financial assets measured at fair value. The
team reports directly to the chief financial
officer and the audit committee. A valuation
report with analysis of changes in fair value
measurement is prepared by the team at each
interim and annual reporting date, and is
reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. Discussion of the valuation process
and results with the chief financial officer and
the audit committee is held twice a year, to
coincide with the reporting dates.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31
VALUES (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured
at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

BBEABREERAAE
(%)
() DREFHE(H)
() BAREHBZEBEAE
REfHE (#)
AAEEAR ()

Fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2024 categorised into

R-B-RETZA=T-Hz

Fair value at MAEHEAEA
31 December 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZB-mE
t-B=1-8
M £-§ £-4 F=4
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBFR AREFR AREFR
Recurring fair value measurements  B¥# A AEHE
Financial assets; SREE:
Fquity securities designated at VOCI £ F AR AR B BAE
(Note 19 a) F ERPN-L ke
(AHEE)  BaES
(H#19a) 10,188 10,188 - -
Fair value measurements as
at 31 December 2023 categorised into
RIZZ=FTA=T-HZ
Fair value at LREHEARA
31 December 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
g 3
t-A=1-H
ARfE £ E-R E=8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RIMB'000
ANREFT ANREFT AREFT AREFT
Recurring fair value measurements  B¥#AAEHE
Financial assets: SHEE:
Fquity securities designated at FVOCI % F AR AR BB AE
(Note 19 a) FRTALBRENS
(AFEE)  BRES
(Hi#196) 11,534 11,534 - -

HESHEHEERERLA
“ENEER

257



258

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %5 ¥R R Y &E

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIFS B8 BAIAAREZ )
31 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 31 BiIBEREEBRAAE
VALUES (continued) (%)
(f) Fair value measurement (continued) (f) DREFE (&)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured (i) BARBIHEZZHEE
at fair value (continued) REEFE (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NAEER (&)
During the year ended 31 December 2024, BHE_Z_ME+_A
there were no transfers between Level 1 and =t+—HIEFERN WES
Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 —AREAE R s e
(2023: Nil). The Group’s policy is to recognise ARBHE=R(ZT_=
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy F )  AREBZBRRBRN
as at the end of the reporting period in which B REHRRERA
they occur. REBREHHRE 2 EE-
(i) Fair value of financial assets and (i) LHFBAAREIRZEH
liabilities carried at other than fair value LEEREBEZALHE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial E’\_y_ F+ZA=+—
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost AkR=—Z=-_=%+=AH
are not materially different from their fair =+—8 REBDKAL
values at 31 December 2024 and 31 December BEKAYIRcEMT ALY
2023. FREEEEAADELEEKX
Zhle
32 COMMITMENTS 32 A
At 31 December 2024, the outstanding capital RZFE_MFF+—A=+—H FX&
commitments of the Group not provided for in the EREGEVBRMEABHEIRNE
consolidated financial statements were as follows: RAEENT :
2024 2023
—ECWEF —EC=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F ARETFIT
Commitments in respect of purchase of property B&E %)% N &
and equipment and investment properties ARISEMEZ
(note) EYE (M)
— contracted for —B 54 12,658 7,589
— authorised but not contracted for —EREBRETLD 17,541 365,000
Commitment in respect of capital injection EHEMEERANEE
to a joint venture 2 EHE 4,000 -
34,199 372,589
Note: fit 7 -

At 31 December 2024 and 2023, capital commitments in
respect of purchase of property and equipment and investment
properties are for leasehold improvements to be installed in the
Group’s department store and supermarket operations and for
the renovation and upgrade of the department stores and the
shopping mall.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 3% ¥R MY A

For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in respect
of a payable for acquisition of a property by Ginwa
Investments in August 2005. Ginwa Investments has
defaulted repayment of the above payable. As at the end
of the reporting period, the directors of the Company
do not consider it is probable that a claim will be made
against the Group under the guarantee. The maximum
liability of the Group at the end of the reporting period
under the guarantee issued is the outstanding amount of
the liability of approximately RMB9,500,000 plus accrued
interest (2023: RMB9,500,000).

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions.

(a) Transactions with equity shareholders
and their affiliates, and a director of the

33

34

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

ZAREE
CEEERSERENRZSZTRFN
R — I8 % 2 FE 3 3R IE M 12 4t
ZHER IR ECHEREE Lk
NHRBE-RBEHER AR EER
BB TRAUESRBERME NS
ERERE - AEERBREHRZE
BHERETZESABEARKE
E2BEHARE 500,000t (—F
— =% : AR%9,500,0007T) 1 fE 5t
FIB o

EXBREALIRS

BRax 5 W i R H A 2R 1) P BE 2 4
RN NREBIVETATERBEA
TR5e

(a) BAQXFARRRBEEHEAL
UR—BESETZXS

Company
2024 2023
—EIF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR®F T
Guarantees provided by Qujiang MO SRR SEME A AR
Financial Holdings or its subsidiary ~ #R& 8RR FA LB RITRE
for the Group's bank and other b & B 2 ER
borrowings at the end of the
reporting period 800,202 444,066
Repayements to from Qujiang A )T & B IE I8 K
Financial Holdings (Note) (Ktat) (79,157) (61,810)
Advance to Qujiang Financial M) T & R IR IR 2 B K
Holdings (Note) (Krax) - 26,000
Other borrowings from Quijiang HTemMIZERZHEMEER
Financial Holdings 3,735,330 3,328,716
Management fee to a joint venture A& ARIZEIEE 8,000 -
Note: Kt &t
The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and ZBFAERE - RERWERET
have no fixed terms of repayment. & AR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

34 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

(c)

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in Note 8 and the highest paid
employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

3 EXHEALRF (&)

(b) FEEEBAEFHM

TEEBABZHB (BEME
BTMBEC N T ARRESRZHK
BENMEMKREENTE TR
SEHMES 2HIB)WAT

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR F T

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EMREMEYEH
in kind 5,264 7,496
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIE R 223 228
5,487 7,724

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (Note
6(b)).

Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions

Certain of the related party transactions disclosed
in Note (a) above constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However,
those transactions are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as
they are conducted on normal commercial terms or
better and not secured by the assets of the Group.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF

35 COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

(BIFZHHER TRIAAREZS)

35 AEEHEMBMRRR

2024 2023
—EZME —E-=F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i 2t AR AR &
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RB ARz 1,268,385 1,734,240
1,268,385 1,734,240
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b JfE U 3R 33,184 32,653
Cash at bank and on hand RTHEFNTFHERS 97 90
33,281 32,743
Current liabilities REBERE
Other payables H b FE S 3R 596,570 591,822
Promissory note LR R 24 223,330 229,214
819,900 821,036
Net current liabilities REBEEEHE (786,619) (788,293)
NET ASSETS EEFHE 481,766 945,947
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR#E 30
Share capital A& A 103,602 103,602
Reserves E 378,164 842,345
TOTAL EQUITY EEAR 481,766 945,947

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 26 March 2025.

Yao Jiangang
Wk 2 4
Chairman

FE

REFeN _E_AFE=A-+/xBH#E

Ko I T3 o

Choon Hoi Kit Edwin
B
Director

BF
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Bt 7% R 3k MY &
For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) ([ 3E % & #5585

36 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE

REPORTING PERIOD

On 27 January 2025, the Company and Glory Keen
entered into a Second Extension Agreement, further
extending the maturity date of the Promissory Note by two
years. The new maturity date is now 6 January 2027 or
the fifth day after the date on which Glory Keen issues the
Mandatory Redemption Notice to the Company (excluding
the date on which notice is given), upon Glory Keen and/or
its shareholders reach the agreed liquidation condition or
are under other circumstances necessitating liquidation or
winding-up, whichever is earlier. Glory Keen has confirmed
that it will not enforce the GCX Share Charge (related to
Golden Chance (Xian) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands)
during the period from 6 January 2025 to the effective
date of the Second Extension Agreement.

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #Z_—F_NF+_-H=+—HILFZF
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEFFHEHH  ZAIAAREZ))

37 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS 37 EEMEMAREBE-ZE -
TO STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET F+-A=1+—HLEEEXE
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 M2ER BT ARZREZ
DECEMBER 2024 BESTE
The Group has not applied any amendments to standards AEBWEERAEEMENANR-E
to disclose that have been issued but are not yet effective “HFE—HA— BB ZHMEFEAER
for the financial year beginning 1 January 2024. AR Z BRI A R 2E -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RELT BEIE
ZEAEN
B HEER
Amendments to HKAS 21 and HKFRS 1 - Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
ERGHENSNFRBEMBRELENE 1R (BIIAX) —RZH] “E-RE—-A—H
HKFRS S1 General Requirements for Disclosure of Stainability-related Financial Information 1 August 2025
ERNBREIRERBENE 1T ARERBVBENREN —REX “T-_hEN\A—H
HKFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures 1 August 2025
ERNBREAHEREENFE2FRIRAHRE —E-RENA—H
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 - Classification and Measurement of Financial 1 January 2026
Instruments
ERNBHRELENZORREBHBERELENFETR (BFIA) —eRIADERE —E-RE-A—H
Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 11 1 January 2026
BEAMBHRELEAGH LN FREBE-F 1S —E-RE-A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 — Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent 1 January 2026
Electricity
BERNBHRELEANFIFR LB BN BRELNETH (BIIX) —KBERGEREEE —E-R"E-A—H
RSN
HKFRS 18 — Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 1 January 2027
BERNBRELNE 1SR N BEREZIIEERE —E-+%5—-A—H
Amendments to HK Int 5 — Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the 1 January 2027
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
BREREESH (BF1A) ~HHERENZI - ERAHBIAREZRERERRZ —E_+F-A—H
THERZHE
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture by the HKICPA
BEMBHRERUBI0HR LB BGERR28H (BFIAX) ~REFRABEAFNA rEEEHMAE
EhENEELRESNTE EE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 #HZ=-ZE=—UF+=-A=1+—HILFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIF=EEH CRIAAREZS)

37 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS

TO STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2024 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. The directors of the
Company expected that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements except for the following:

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements”

HKFRS 18 will replace HKAS 1 “Presentation of financial
statements”, introducing new requirements that will help
to achieve comparability of the financial performance of
similar entities and provide more relevant information and
transparency to users. Even though HKFRS 18 will not
impact the recognition or measurement of items in the
consolidated financial statements, HKFRS 18 introduces
significant changes to the presentation of financial
statements, with a focus on information about financial
performance present in the statement of profit or loss,
which will affect how the Group presents and disclose
financial performance in the financial statements. The
key changes introduced in HKFRS 18 relate to (i) the
structure of the statement of profit or loss, (ii) required
disclosures for management-defined performance
measures (which are referred to alternative or non-GAAP
performance measures), and (iii) enhanced requirements
for aggregation and disaggregation of information.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the
impact of applying HKFRS 18 on the presentation and the
disclosures of the consolidated financial statements.
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